PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, May 18, 2017

Time: 8:00 a.m.
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA
L. Call to Order
II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes:  April 20, 2017*
1. Public Comment
IV.  Old Business
A. Spyglass Development, LLC*** (Allard)
V. Finance
A. Financial Reports
1. Operating Result for Nine Month Period Ending March 31, 2017*
n Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to January 31, 2018*
3. Revolving Loan Fund Semi Annual Report Ending March 31, 2017*
VI.  Licenses/Easements/Rights of Way/Options
A. Approvals
. EAA-Chapter 225 - ROE* (Preston)
2. New England Aerobatic Club — ROE* (Lamson)
VII.  Leases
A. Reports
1. 222 International, Limited Partnership*
2. Two International Group, LLC*
B. Approvals
1. 119 International Drive, LLC — Concept Plan* (Torr)
VIII. Contracts/Agreements
A. Reports*
1. Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services
2. MTE Equipment Solution — Debris Blower
gl Tec Solutions Concept, Inc. — Electronic Key System

B. Approvals

Pease Golf Course — Fairway Mower* (Preston)

PSM Runway Reconstruction Design — Grant Acceptance* (Loughlin)
PSM Airspace Obstructions/Lights — Grant Acceptance® (Bohenko)
PSM Terminal Improvements Planning — Grant Acceptance* (Allard)
Skyhaven Airport Snow Removal Equipment — Grant Acceptance® (Torr)

N



IX.

XI.

XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

* %

4+ %
*
*

Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals

A. Reports
L. Golf Course Operations
2. Airport Operations
a) PSM

b) Skyhaven Airport
c) Noise Line Report*

B. Approvals
1. Bills for Legal Services* (Lamson)

Division of Ports and Harbors

A. Reports
L. Port Advisory Council
2. Commercial Use Mooring Transfers*

B. Approvals
I. Portsmouth Pilots Rates* (Torr)
2, Electro Source, LLC* (Loughln)
3. Albany Safran Composites, LLC FTZ Subzone Agreement* (Bohenko)

New Business

Upcoming Meetings
Golf Committee June 12, 2017
Finance Committee June 12, 2017 @ 8:30 a.m.
Board of Directors  June 15,2017

All Meetings begin at 8 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
Directors’ Comments

Adjournment

Press Questions

Related Materials Attached

Related Materials Previously Sent

Related Materials will be provided under separate cover

Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting
Confidential Materials



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, April 20, 2017
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
MINUTES

Presiding: George M. Bald, Chairman
Present: John P. Bohenko; Margaret F. Lamson; Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman; and

Franklin G. Torr

Via Telephone: Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; and Robert F. Preston;

Attending: David R. Mullen, PDA Executive Director; Lynn Marie Hinchee, PDA Deputy
Director/General Counsel; PDA staff members; members of the public;

L Call to Order

Chairman Bald called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m. in the Board conference room at 55
International Drive, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

Note: Due to Directors participating by telephone, all votes will be taken by roll call.

1L Acceptance of Minutes: March 16, 2017*

Director Torr moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby accept the Minutes of the March 16, 2017 Board meeting. Discussion:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried.

. Public Comments
There were no public comments.

IVv. Old Business

No old business was brought before the Board.

V. Audit Committee Report

Director Bohenko, Committee Chair, reported that the Audit Committee met on April 19, 2017
with Rob Smalley of Berry Dunn McNeil & Parker, PDA’s external auditors, to review the FY 2017 audit
engagement letter and plan for PDA’s annual external audit.

VL Finance Committee Report

Irv Canner, PDA Director of Finance, reported that the Finance Committee met on April 19, 2017
to review the status of PDA finances.

A. Financial Reports
1. Operating Results for Eight Month Period Ending February 28, 2017

Mr. Canner reported on the status of the PDA FY 2017 finances for the eight month period ending
February 28, 2017: including reviews of PDA’s operating income and expenses; budget variances; status
of the Balance Sheet; and the analysis of PDA business units. Director Lamson confirmed the status of the

Airport Obstruction project grant funding.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20,2017 Page 1



2. Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to December 31, 2017

Mr. Canner reviewed PDA cash flow projections for the nine month period ending December 31,
2017, including a review of PDA’s debt status; grant funded capital improvement projects including the
runway rehabilitation and the airport obstruction removal projects; status of PDA’s revolving line of credit;
and the status of the Division of Ports and Harbors unrestricted funds.

& Capital Improvement Plan ~ FY 2017 - FY 2023

Mr. Canner presented a review of ongoing and proposed capital improvement projects through FY
2023 including the expansion of the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (“PSM”) Terminal; the
airport obstruction removal; purchase of snow removal equipment; and traffic intersection upgrades.

VII. Licenses/Easements/Rights of Way/Options

A. Approvals
1. Port City Air, Inc. — Tow Tractor License Amendments

Director Preston moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute:

a. License Agreement Amendment No. 1 (“License”) retroactively effective October 15,2014
for use of the Hough T-500 Aircraft Tug; and

b. License Agreement Amendment No. 3 retroactively effective September 25, 2012 for use
of aircraft tow tractors including: 2)1978 International Hough tow tractor; b) 1980
American Coleman tow tractor; and c) 1982 Stewart Stevenson tow tractor;

between the Pease Development Authority and Port City Air, Inc. (“PCA”) on substantially the same
terms and conditions set forth in License Agreement Amendment No, 1 and License Agreement
Amendment No. 3 attached hereto. Note: Roll Call vote required. Discussion: None. Disposition:

Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.
2. Great Circle Catering, LLC — Airport Terminal

Director Lamson moved and Director Preston seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Third Extension to the
Right of Entry with Great Circle Catering, LLC attached hereto to extend the term for a period of
six (6) months beginning April 1, 2017 and to include one (1) six (6) month option to extend the term
through March 31, 2018 exercisable at the Executive Director’s sole discretion; all on the same terms
and conditions set forth in the Right of Entry dated September 16, 2014. Note: Roll Call vote
required. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.

VIII. Leases

A. Approvals
1. Sig Sauer Real Estate, Inc. — Parking Lot Concept Plan

Director Torr moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves of:

1. The conceptual site plan attached hereto submitted by Sig Sauer Real Estate, Inc.
attached hereto for the premises located at 72 Pease Boulevard; and

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20, 2017 Page2



2. The application to allow a waiver from Part 405.03(a)(4)d of the PDA Land Use
Controls;

all on terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager -
Engineering, dated April 13,2017 attached hereto. Note: Roll Call Vote required. Discussion: Maria
Stowell, Engineering Manager, gave a brief presentation of the parking lot concept plan presented by Sig
Sauer to add additional parking spaces at the premises located at 72 Pease Boulevard, and Sig Sauer’s
request to reduce the size of landscape islands. Joe Cornardi, Engineer with Jones & Beach, reviewed the
plans including the stormwater filtration, lighting, and location of the additional parking. Director Loughlin
noted his concerns regarding the lack of planting strips and wants standard sized islands to be used. Director
Torr felt that there was need to change the plans. Jeff Chierepko reviewed Sig Sauer’s possible future
expansion and the reasons for not using the front area of the building for parking at the present time.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.
2. City of Portsmouth — Wastewater Treatment Concept Plan

Director Loughlin moved and Director Bohenko seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion
Concept Plan submitted by the City of Portsmouth attached hereto for the premises located at 135
Corporate Drive; all in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager -
Engineering, dated April 13, 2017 attached hereto. Note: Roll Call vote required. Nofe: In
accordance with the Right to Know law, Directors Allard and Preston recused themselves from the matter
as they did not have access to the materials presented by the City of Portsmouth. Discussion: Terry
Desmarais, City of Portsmouth Engineer, reviewed the concept plan for the expansion of the wastewater
treatment facility including sitework, the building plan, and odor control. Peter Britz, City of Portsmouth
Environmental Planner, reviewed the project’s impact to the wetland buffers, the permitting process, and
use of stone infiltration systems. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.

IX. Signs
A, Reports

In accordance with the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor
Revisions to Existing Signs” Mr. Mullen reported that PDA approved of the modification to the Oxford
Network sign to change the business name to “FirstLight”. Director Loughlin approved the sign

modification.

X. Contracts/Agreements
A. Reports

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, Mr. Mullen reported that PDA entered into
the following contracts:

1. Fishnet Media — Golf Course Website

PDA contracted with Fishnet Media to update the Pease Golf Course website. The expenditure of
$5,000 was approved by Vice-Chairman Loughlin.

B. Approvals
1. Pinard Waste Systems Co., Inc. — Contract Extension

Director Allard moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority Board
of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to extend the contract with Pinard Waste
Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20, 2017 Page3




Systems Co., Inc. (“Pinard”) for the purpose of providing non-hazardous solid waste removal services
at Pease Development Authority facilities for a period of one year effective May 1, 2017 at the rate of
$4,303.38 per month; all in accordance with the memorandum of Mark H. Gardner, Deputy General

Counsel, dated April 12, 2017 attached hereto.

In accordance, with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII the Board waives the RFP requirement for
Pinard Waste Systems Co., Inc. based upon the following justification:

1. On May 1, 2015, PDA entered into its first universal agency wide waste removal
contract with Pinard for a one year period with a one year option to extend.

2. The agency wide contract has resulted in substantial savings to PDA; and

3. Pinard has agreed to a one year extension of the contract at a monthly rate of $4,303.38
which represents a 2% increase from the previous year’s rate of $4,219.00. Note: This
motion requires 5 Affirmative Votes.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.

2. Electricity Provider

Director Bohenko moved and Director Loughlin seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and enter
into a contract with ENH Power for the supply of electrical power for the 18 month period month
period effective May 1, 2017 through October 31, 2018 at the fixed price of $0.06583 per kWh; all in
accordance with the memorandum of Irving Canner, Director of Finance, dated April 19, 2017,
attached hereto. Note: Roll call vote required. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous

roll call vote; motion carried.
3. Military Cooperative Construction Agreement

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations with the NH
Air National Guard and to enter into a Military Construction Cooperative Agreement (MCCA) for
design work in connection with the runway reconstruction project at PSM all upon substantially
similar terms and conditions set forth in the attached draft MCCA and the memorandum of Maria

J. Stowell, PE., Engineering Manager, dated April 18, 2017, attached hereto; subject, however, to
final legal review by PDA’s General Counsel. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous

roll call vote; motion carried.

XI. Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals
A. Reports
1. Golf Course Operations

Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, reported on the activities at the Pease Golf Course, including
course opening dates, simulator activities, and Golf Course maintenance work.

2. Airport Operations

Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Supervisor, reported on aviation activities.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20, 2017 Page 4



a)  PSM

Enplanements as of March 31, reached 30,659 (ahead of last year). Allegiant Air will continue
some of its operations during the summer.

b) Skyhaven Airport
The taxilane drainage project will begin on May 1, 2017.
c) Noise Line Report

Nine inquiries were made to the PSM noise. Fiver inquiries were regarding rotor activities; three
were regarding fixed wing activities; and one inquiry was informational.

Director Lamson commended the staff for the work at the PSM Terminal during arriving and
departing flights. Mr. Mullen introduced Paul Brean, PDA’s new Airport Director.

B. Approvals
1. Bills for Legal Services

Director Lamson moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of
$19,187.47 for legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority by:

1. Kutak Rock LLP

Through February 28, 2017 $ 475.00%
$ 6,155.47
$ 6,630.47
2. Sheehan Phinney Bass + Green
Through February 28,2017 $12,557.00
Total $19,187.47

Note: Roll Call Vote required*Note: The City of Portsmouth will pay the remaining balance.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.

XII. Division of Ports and Harbors
A, Reports

1. Port Advisory Council

Geno Marconi, Division Director, reported that the Port Advisory Council met on April 12, 2017.
No action was taken by the Council.

a. Annual Report

Mr. Marconi reported that the Port Advisory Council prepared its annual report for the Board.

2, Commercial Mooring Transfer

Mr. Marconi reported that in accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent,
Approval and Execution of Mooring Permit Transfers”, commercial moorings were transferred for:
Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20, 2017 Page 5



Date of

Applicant Permit Business Approval
Seabrook Harbor No. 6056 Commercial Fishing 03/13/17
Transferor: David Takesian

Transferee: Steven K. Wojcicki

Seabrook Harbor No. 4724 Commercial Fishing 03/13/17
Transferor: Neal Pike

Transferee: Norman Pike

3.

Commercial Mooring for Hire

Mr. Marconi reported that in accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent,
Approval and Execution of Commercial Mooring for Hire Permits”, PDA approved of the following

Commercial Moorings for Hire permits:

Date of
Applicant Number of Permits Business Approval
Bayview Marina, LLC 3 Marina 3/13/17
Esther’s Marina, LLC 2 Marina 3/13/17
Charles Felch, Sr. 1 Shorefront tenant 3/13/17
Jay Gingrich 1 Shorefront tenant 3/13/17
Great Bay Marina 73 Marina 3/13/17
Great Bay Yacht Club 11 Yacht Club 3/13/17
Hampton River Boat Club 2 Boat Club 3/13/17
Island Club New Castle, Inc. 1 Boat Club 3/13/17
Kittery Point Yacht Club 8 Yacht Club 3/13/17
Lamprey River Marina 6 Marina 3/13/17
Little Bay Marina 4 Marina 3/1317
Matthew Metivier I Shorefront tenant 3/13/17
Mud Cove Boat Yard 1 Shorefront tenant 3/13/17
Dorothy Oliver 1 Shorefront tenant 3/13/17
Portsmouth Yacht Club 14 Yacht Club 3/13/17
Sagamore Landing Homeowners Assn 1 Shorefront Condo 3/13/17
Southend Yacht Club 1 Yacht Club 3/13/17
Split Rock Cove Ltd 1 Shorefront tenant 3/13/17
Warpath Family Farm | Shorefront tenant 3/13/17
Wentworth by the Sea Dockside 1 Shorefront Condo 3/13/17

Condominium Association
Wentworth By the Sea Marina 2 Marina 3/13/17
(Pier People LLC)

B. Approvals
1. Delegation of Authority — Charter Boats

Director Bohenko moved and Director Torr seconded that WHEREAS, RSA ch. 12-G vests the
management of the Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors (“Division”) in the
Pease Development Authority Board of Directors (“Authority”)

WHEREAS, RSA ch. 12-G further provides that the Board shall appoint an Executive
Director, who shall be the chief executive and administrative officer of the Authority and who shall

have general and active supervision and direction over the day-to-day business and affairs of the

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20, 2017 Page 6



Authority, subject to the direction and control of the Board, and shall perform all such duties as from
time to time may be assigned to him by the Board; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has duly enacted By-Laws in accordance with the provisions of
NH RSA 12-G:8, XIX; and

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to the management and regulation of the
affairs of the Division to delegate to the Executive Director the authority to consent, approve, and

execute Charter Boat Rights of Entry;

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority does hereby delegate to the Executive Director
the authority to consent, approve, and execute Charter Boat Rights of Entry in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval, and Execution of
Charter Boat Right of Entry” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Note: Roll Call
vote required. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.

2. Right of Entry — Adventure Fishing Charters & Rentals, LL.C

Director Torr moved and Director Preston seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of
Entry with Adventure Fishing Charters & Rentals, LL.C to operate a concession building at the
Hampton Harbor Marine Facility for one year effective July 1,2017; all in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth in the memo of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated April 13, 2017
attached hereto. Note: Roll Call vote required. Discussion: Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll

call vote; motion carried.

3. Right of Entry — Angler Management 101 LL.C

Director Preston moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with Angler
Management 101 LLC for marine charter vessel operations located at the Hampton Harbor Marine
facilities for a three year period effective July 1, 2017; and in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the memo of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated April 13,2017 attached
hereto. Note: Roll Call Vote required. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll

call vote; motion carried.
XIII. New Business
Non new business was brought before the Board.
XIV. Upcoming Meetings
Chairman Bald reported that the following meeting will be held:
Board of Directors May 18,2017 at 8 am.
All Meetings begin at 8 a.m unless otherwise posted.
XV, Directors’ Comments

There were no comments from the Directors.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20, 2017 Page 7



XVI. Non-Public Session

Director Torr moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors will enter non-public session pursuant to:

1. NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph Il(b) for the purpose of discussing the hiring of a
public employee;

2. NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph II(d) for the purpose of discussing the acquisition,
sale or lease of property; and

3. NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph I(e) for consideration or negotiation of pending
claims or litigation which has been threatened in writing or filed against the body or
agency or any subdivision thereof, or against any member thereof because of his or
her membership in such body or agency, until the claim or litigation has been fully
adjudicated or otherwise settled. Note: Roll Call Vote

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried. The Board entered into non-
public session at 9:03 a.m. The Board returned to public session at 10:17 a.m.

XVIL. Vote of Confidentiality

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91-
A:3, Paragraph III, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the
divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public session of its April 20,
2017 meeting related to:
1. Leasing of property;
2. Personnel; and
3. Litigation

would, if disclosed publically, a) render the proposed actions ineffective; and b) affect adversely the
reputation of any person other than a member of the public body itself; and agrees that the minutes
of said meeting be held confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the
aforesaid circumstances no longer apply. Note: This motion requires 5 Affirmative Votes
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried

XVII. Adjournment

Director Bohenko moved and Director Lamson seconded to adjourn the Board meeting.
Discussion: Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 10:22 a.m.

XIX. Press Questions

Respectfully submitted,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors April 20,2017 Page 8



uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu
zzzzzzzzzzzzz

LTOT ‘ST AV
ONILIIW SAO0LDIVIA 40 AUVOod

£T0C ‘T€ HOUVIN DNIAN3
dOI¥did HLNOW 3ININ 3H1 ¥04
1d0d3d TVIONVNIA £T0T Ad




{9vEE) (33 {(€8Vv'T) £6 €74 4) {T66'1) IWOINI DNILVHIJO 13N
"STANLIANIdXT
1509 7Tes el feyZaa™ TEDD TW1IdYD QILVdIDIINY NYHL SST
€ (€12 LESF v SIS T6b D NOILVIDIudIq OL 3NA YIMOT INTdXT Leamming =
(z# 39vd)
ISNIAXI ANV (IWODNI) SASN34dX3 ANV
68 (z2) e (99) £9 17 DNILY¥IdONON (IWODNI) DNILVYIJdONON ~
vir't  se £80° (2% 899'T 0TS’ IWODNI ONILVHIAO 10N STLLTIDOVY aNY SSiang
SZ5'TT (€61 5778 7Tz 5698 T86'Z OL NOLLYOOTIV 408Y1 LO3HIANT
oW W om G0 0Ty (NS IS HAG B0 01 300
NOILLOWO¥d
SS300Ud IWNUIDY
8¢ (12) €91 (9g1) 8/¢ (42 ANY ONLLINAYI aNT WY3A 9T0Z AT ISRy =
(9% 39vd)
4 LLT 8zT 8€T /91 S0€ SADIAYIS TYNCISSISOUd "07'8 A° ¥IMOT
= n
88 (S¢T) L9 (6+1) 989 [ES (9% 39ve) SILLTTLLN S1S0O SNILVY¥3dO
FALLYHLSINIINAY "STIVS 87 111U
4 dA (s4) ¥45 (2 s 661 ANV TWHINID YIHOIH WO¥Y SINNIATA
NNV NOISSIONOD JISYIIDONI =
’ . , ; “HIHLYAM / Q3AVTd
T2E'T (b6v) 199°1 (z59) 6181 £97'1 S3LLITIOVA ANV SONIATING moz:wr NI mmﬁ\mqu Ol
T S, ING -5334 4109 QISYIEONT =
£08'S €Le 90€'y 5143 £5E'y 69"y NV STOINMIS TINNOSUId <39 195440 ‘Hdd FHL NIHLIM STTVS
L dIDILNY NVYHL ¥3mo1 =
SASNIAEX3 DNILYHIdO Sl eI L 83IMo
. (c# F9va) 0% l'T A ¥IMO7T
0STrI [} 4 T9¢70T T 99¢€70T T670T SANNIAIY ONILVYILO -~SINNIATY DNILVIIdO N
SISATYNY
13oang JONVIHVA IVNLOV FONVYINVA 1Isang TYNLV -
UvaIA UVIA alva oL UYIA EAT aivq FONVINVA 1350aN8 LT0T A4
INIHEND OL¥VIA ¥VIA YOIdd INTHHND OLHVIA oL YvaA
(5,000 $)

9T0C ANV £LTO0T ‘TE€ HOYVIA
ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HLINOW ININ IHL JOo4
: SISN3dX3 ANV SINNIAIY 40 LNIWILVLS d3i1vdIioSNOD



(1] 24

[€2729) ¥59
L) 6 59 ) 86
e 86 19 (¢ S0T1
(zv1) 85¢ 91z (16) 8¢
(ve) LL b (82) 08
JONVIUVA SO0D $900 JONVIHUYA SATVS
SS0D aaiasand IVNLOY sSFVYS a3Lasang
0SC FT 0€C T9T 01 T4 992707 T65'0T
e 09T TZZ (VA4 9G¢ % 1IN -¥3Hl0 TV
ASIANYHOUIW
96T £z TH#1 It £TT $91 4109
ANNIATY
[£€ €z 8¢T oF STZ 192 NOISS3IDONOD
(LdvHD 335)
0/8 (€0) £65 (bb1) #99 0zs S3ITVS 1and
, (LuvHD 33s)
016° 81 8681 0¢ 9881 9T16°T SANNIATY 334
SIILITIOVAH
G65'6 64 0Z1's (c2) (44l 66172 40 TVYINTYH
139ang IDONVIUVA TWNLOV FJONVINVYA 139ang TVNALOY
Uv3A UvIA alva oL uvIA 3ilva 3lva
ANTHAND Ol YvaA UVIAHOTNd  ININUND 0L ¥VIA OL ¥vaA
(5,000 $) T
€

SIS

IYNLOY

JOFAYH NO.LAIWYH
UOFHVH I

dAId HSTH HINOWS1Y0d
LHOJUIV NIAVHANS

SISATVNY 13n4d

YIHICO TN
HOIVIAWIS 5109

5333 OHRI OO =

FNAJ0AQ ANT IOV IITHM

e

Ghi

\ %9

SHOIIVHLISIONY ANV IWSNHIIde
5324 SHDRIVA
SATHSHIAM3 F10H=

€333 109w

3LVQA OL ¥VIA SANNIATY 334

9T0C ANV £T0T ‘TE HOUVIW

SANNIATY DONILVIIHO @ILVYAITOSNOD



(o]
(=
mj
s o
g1
o
o™
o |
o
mJ
a
c:‘
h
¢
<

PET 3] TChT PerT
B - . D B TCT 80T 797 (CH)) 100 ¥IASNVIL
86 66 i} 4 8T T¢ wOoT 5T L9%'T (s¥) S8S'T 0bS'T f
ALIMOHLOY 89 ©0) 06 0z YIHLO TV
144 ke 9¢ F 14 H 6 - b 1d0d ¢4y (12) 701 18 dWOD SUINIOM
9 9 9 b - - € 3 Z JONVYNId b7 o) 692 Ske YoId
b b S - - - z - e 1woI1 79€ (£€) L6€ $9€ ANTWIULLTY
c ¢ ¢ - B B} . - ¢ ONIYZINONT €89 €5 Yadi 08¢ ANSNI HLTVAH
S1I14aN3g
6 ot 01 - z ! vy - ¢ 38UN00 4109 35N
0967C [5:74 76T SETE
b 4 4 i d € ) i ) NIAVHAIS 1555 758 555 88T 1N0 WIASNVUL
1HOduly J9E€ [Z3) 2% €BEE f
ST GT qT - - 9 ] - z HLNOWS LYOd OIS
ANV NOLLYDVA
0g 0g 0¢ - - 8L - L IONYNIINIVN € &l ) 8t sy
8z1 z5 b1 96T INLLHAAO
% € £ - - - I T 2 AILND3X3
FNLNO3X 8b (1o (9% 9 Q3 LT4INIGNON
€647 (evD) 998’ €L Q31143IN3g
anz an3 ang
HINOW ~ HINOW ~ HINOW  NOD 35  non  nag  nNon VS SIOTAYIS
NVC RER AW MH JaH /vs 1INNOSU3d
PR = . - 1 o e onn 6
SNOILISOd Q371114 -SISATVYNY 44V1S 3Lva oL AONVIYVA 13d5ang WLV !
UvIA AYVIA 3lva ol Ilva ol

HoIud

INFHHND UviA yvaa

9T0Z ANV £T0Z ‘IE HOUVIW
ONIAN3 dOT¥3d HLNOW ININ JHL 4O4
i S1I43INI9 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSYId AILVAITOSNOD



'S3FA0TdWT TYNOSYIS ANV LOVEINOD ‘SIIA0TdWI QI LI4INTE-NON 'S3anN1oXI ‘1

‘310N
jue3sissy
= ulpy ueysissy
istterads sdo swensq wyeg — uiwpy
RUPW - - abed uiqoy
audep
d0jesado
Juswdinby Srueyoapy
isneads sdo uung Aaioo ISISSY
uojasg - AatmeDop
ueysissy elhey m%c:o‘.w - a03esado
utw| uyBne o pa
— rupy isiemads sdo e Jusudinby
ajjaydoe| seyseuy uyog
eueq nesipnog | se0IIBg
eueq Buip)ing —|
Jv35R1 Jogael S1h] aneq SsjuswWIARg
™ uojuen u1Aay UOLION v
L isyepads sdo sonyoes
ybnouogop ™ —
Ajnass zipueg poomyy sueq sjuowoAeg
= puzpau G,
j 19Buljjod ueq —— pug| M PPoL
ueysiss =
Isyenads _wﬁw ».._% 1. Jo3esado
Apmnosg e SUNUNODY siueyday (N3d0) y m— Juawdinby
= H o
49|95 w0y, vewsio) ang plousy oneg — 3s1e109ds sdo T xXX0Q qog
[
JuUBIUNGIOY uojem 261099
wesissy llo4heq (N730) uewaLog t_Sm..__wam
- unupy rm— eljoqesusy eeISey s spunoan Ishesds sdo 59010495 mmw:mm:,uxm_:mnwvm
sjoqna Apng ejuy ! onieag saeq swnog - Suppng e
jebajesegq ey — woy, urdor awsuyogp
12)SRY JoqUeH juesissy tojensiunupy s6ues sn Jue3SISSY 044 JuspusuLsdng| Jo3essdg
P Andsd e unupy  fe— wIsAS LT 95 asueyduwoy HoOVDd 1 oeimos o185y 10s1ns0dng o umwﬁmmm_ww
SIOYIN JuRID peas jed tostaned ssaf 1EQUDUWILIOIAUT = wesag s uote) ueAy Isnewsds Bujueap) — waqoy
~ B e B T : $dQ I0IUBS urmpoon
JueInoDY Asxaty suew i P BTEREAS sawer
Jo1sel Jabeuely e Jojusg aag 3 19pusyunadng uews1o4
10g1ey JoIyD suonesado zpor uoy Jabeuen 4199 Y54 2sanon seBeuepy souBLRILIEY
sorjeys Aoeal uoSIIPUY UM sabeuen pofold  mmf osong Wy, EAUD UOAF Loﬁwﬁ.ﬁ%u WOWANDY el SPNIOEY
1 J suoney SDIB DWW 4 Aajuo) usy Auely
" saAo0jdwg e — - 532qn04d 3 spuey
{esunoy ejaddo) eduey 1abeue 1eBete J1obeur
Ajuowiny jiod soueuly lesusy sebeuen _a..vcvw_ sdg u..oaw‘.e. wucm:wu:__ﬁz
40 10300 jotomang  Aindeg BupsaauIbuy 954n05 3105 R :
uonie JsuUpLen Hie Aotouwog LoIsem v
! W ouan tauue) aux Bl NIy HPMOIS elBY e e MoIpuy
L » M | ] 5
weysissy —
- utwpy
e
fastho) eaeje z1q
lerouas (N340)
pue 10132110 Jopang
Andag yodary
33YDUIH LAY 40303uiQ
aAnnIaxgy
uInp
pmeq
SUOLDINUIA 40 AUVOE
-

LTOT ‘TE HOUYVI -LIVHD NOILVZINVDY

ALTYOHLNV IN3IWdO13AIQA ISVId



TZTT 079 €8 789
A4Sy
17 % % 18 1dvD 4709
ASIANYHOYIW
£5T 443 96 b1 4109
0)-48 19 S0T 74 AIT10YL 1SVYOD
£08 95+ 579 G8¢ Tand
IVNLOV
139ansg alva 13oang VNIV
dvaA OLYuvIA 3iva J1va
INTHUND ¥Oordd Ol ¥vaA OL ¥V3IA YIHLO 1V
€Te 81 9T 0¢€
C 6T /T 9T 13N -¥3H10 1Y
V4 0s SS 18 liany
ADOTONHDOAL
L %4 85 VA NOLLYIWIOANI
0S ST L€ 161 WOIT
IvnIov
13sang dLva 13sang Ivniov
VI OL¥VIA aiva iva SADIAY3S
AINTHAND dorud OL WVIA IRV TYNOISSI404d
(5,000 $)

T9¢
£1¢

8857
61€
910T

L30T

NIAVHANS

1¥0d3ava L
HMX dLA Ad

IRIOZ Lam z

NIAVHING

Wi0oL

Hdd
4709

WSd

¥17'2
LINN S

SISATVNV NOLLdWNSNOD HM

90T AL

sov opy  FOF
85t

ZIE'E €107 Ad
955 10T Ad
169 ST0Z Ad
SSP'E 9107 A4
HM IVLOL

SANISNY A9

88 L9 989
67T eTT T

729 123 VA4

90T St 08

8ET 9L Y01
344 15014 8EL

VNIV
l3asang aiva 13sang
dVIA 0L ¥VIA aiva
INTHUND OTUd

OLdvaA

LES

56

€6¢

IvnLy
Jlva
OLdVaA

d31VM

INVdOUd

110 ANV SY9
IVANLYN

1VSOdSIa
J1LSVM

AIDIMLD3T3

S3ATLITILN

9T0C ANV £T0T ‘T€ HOYVIN
9NIAN3 AOIY3d HLINOW ININ JHL ¥Oo4

e o

b

SISN3dX3 ONILVYIdO YIHLO AILVAITOSNOD

L pogt

I
|
H
i
i
i

L O0kT

001¢

(5,000) HMM)




"SALYY LSIYAINI INTHUND ANV TANLDMILS 1930 WHIL DNOT ANIHAND VAd IHL ONIAIYOTY NOLLYIWIOLNT YIHLHNA ¥O ST# I9vd 33S

68 £€ [CE)
6 9T IWLOL
HLNOWSLI0d
97 97 40 ALID © @ ©
ANYY
9/ - INIAINOYd 76 ¢ (€5)
13oang 3Lva
IVOSId OL dvIA
PSR <l i e e S . IvNIDY
13sang lva IDONVIUVA
dSN3IdX3 1STAIINI dUvaa OL ¥vIA UVIA
ANIFHUND yorud INTWAND
(5,000 $)

T
*31LON

S13ssvy

40 31VS

NO SSO1

- / (NIVD)

YIHILO
ANV JWODNI
(%) 1SIYIINI

ASNIdX3
91 L1STYILNI

WNLOY

9TO0C ANV £LT0C ‘TE HOUVW
ONIAN3 AOId3d HINOW ININ JHL JO4

ISNIdX3 (IWODNI) ONILVYIdONON d31lvdIioSNOD



769 TOT'E TViOL
69 0co
£ - 3AvYL NOIFIOS
QNN AYIHSIS
871 - -NVOT DNIATOATY
ONISAIYd
175 - HOgYYH
ANTWIOYNYI
- 675 HOGAVH
= 16 SANNS TWYaNaD
SHOHUVYH
ANV S1¥0d
40 NOISIAIQ
= I8v'C
= 17 MOUIST LNVYNIL
- 0Lv'e SANNS TYYINTD
ALDIOHLNY
AIN3WdOT13IA3a
3svid
J3DDTIS3d  Q3IoTdisTann
LT0T°TE HOUVI 1V

SINTIVAINOI ANV HSYD

{(s.000 $)

S5099 8/Y'S9
(r12'e) (z8s'n)
15 8
ITe 89¢
6ST'T LLT'T
Sv8'/9 £95'59
70T 0%
ToSZ ¥6E'Z
PIT 765%
85t 8ee
957’y 957'%
VAZ 4 008C
917 911
/65 $59
642 5
§S8'T 9/6'T
9T10T L1102
0€ NNLC

TEYVI

NOILISOd 13N 1V10L

Q3LDTHLSTINN

INOZ JAVYL NOITHOL
ONIDAFAA HOFAVYH
ANMH NYOT ONIAOTATY
404 Q310TH1S3Y

S1ISSY IV1LIdVD NI LNFWISIANT L3N
NOILISOd 13N

NOISN3d

SIUNOSIY
40 SMOTINI a3yu343d

SILLTTGVIT IVLOL |

SALLTIGVIT LT ¥3H10
ALTTIGVIT NOISNId 13N

SATLIIIAVIT INFHUNONON
SALLTIIEVIT INFH™END TWLOL

SILLITEVIT 17 -NOILIOd LNIHND
ALTTIOVH D07 ONIATOATY

INNIAFY QINYVINND

NOLLDNYLSNOD -I18YAVd SINNODDY
J18VYAVd SINNOJOY

SILLITIFVIT AINIHEND
SIALLITIGVI1

e

947 97
LY0'EL €0E2L
889°89 98659
PES 0¥9
$50°89 9b£'59
069'T J3 7481
€601 SS0°T
65 69
69.L°C 0LSY
L9% T€S
685 8€6
€T 101'€
9T0Z £LT02

NOISN3d

SININOSIY 4O
SMOT4LLAO Q343G

SL3ISSV 1vioL

STTIIVAIIOTY 17 -¥IHLO

(br#-01% 539vd) SSID0Hd
NI NOILDNYISNOD

IN3WCINDA
ANV SONIQTING ‘ONVT

S13SSV IvLidvd

S13SSV Q31014153 V.LOL

1IN
-STNGVAIZDIY SINNOJDY

SINTWVAINDT GNV HSYD
S13ISSY Q3 LOTH1SIU

S13SSV INIHUND v10L

S1ISSV HIHLO

13N
~319VAIZD3Y SLNNODDVY

SINFIVAINDI ANV HSYD
S13SSY INIWAND
S13SsyY

NOILISOd 13N 40 SLINIWILVYIS A3LVATTIOSNOD




|

<0
O
=t

00T

|

-
O
n

7g]

ETT

asuawgns vadang
ANNOWY AONVIVE

00s

01T

L1IT'E

0€T
(cep)

€01

S0T'T

800°C
876

Ilvaol
G3AIZ03Y

(t2)

(9)

(z81)

1)
(£9)
(88)

(11

(65)

(som)
(ev2)

FAVHS
vdad

(s,000 $)

€£G
ZA!
0¢s’s

6¢
508
88

IA44
$9T'T

£11'7
41T

3lva ol
d3gNadx3

69

6£S

109°¢

vt

50T
W9

Qavmy

AINVAD

65

£95

06.'c

01€T

0ST'C
08

1933r0ud
wiol

€1-#0-60
ST-T€-€0
¥1-81-90

9T-TZ-£0
91-1Z-+0
agr

P1-S2-40
€1-90-1T

£1-9T-40
80-0¢-T1

3iva
TYAOUddY

FUYMLIOS ANV ALTYND3S LA0d IAVHOdN ~Hda

(z102-50 9gS)
NODIY ANV NOISIA NNY NIAVYHANS

(5102-90 99S)
NIVIQ ANV AVd INYTIXVL NIAYHANS

(2107-50 94S)
£€-GT AVMNNY NIAVHANS

(9102-50 94S)
W3LSAS NOLLYDIJIINIAI ALRNDIS WSd

SNOLLYAONIY WOOUHLYE TYNIWYIL WSd
NDISAA-T4d #E-9T AVMNNY IWSd

($702-40 945S)
NDISIA/LIWYId / TYAOWIY NOILONYLSEO WS

(€097 Dgs)
JOVNIVIA ANV INIWIAVA WSd

(09T 949s)
15300Yd NOLLDNYLSNOD SV WSd

H1Vd 3SN-ILTINW 140d3avyL

FWVN 153r0dd

LT0T ‘T€ HOUVK 40 SY
SITAVAIIIIY TVINIWNYIAODYILNI 40 AUVIWWNS



|
|

=]
Q|
0
o
™
™
wJ
M
o
=i
[=
N
ln"
Lo
S
I
o

- 2 b bt - (20-9T-9495) NOLIDNYLSNOD HSY
- - 1 1 - (€0-9T 995) SINIWIAOUIWI IDVYNIVYA ANY LNIWIAV
- - (44 7z - LINN DVAH TYNIWY3L
Z67 122 - T2z 194 WILSAS NOLLYDIHIINIAI ALTHNDIS
- (ov) 447 18¢ ot ONIJOOMTY ANV OW3A VLLYVd 1D1Y
- (St) S - 2 3AVYOdN IIYMLII0S ANY ONILHOIT
88 SE - ¢ €S (Q9L -vv4) NOISIA-Tud HE-9T AVMNNY
87¢ 92z - 9¢T Z (A9.1-vv4) NOISIQ ANV ONLLLINYId NOLLDNYLSEO
- (59) 505 Obt 59 (Q8. -vv4) SNOLLYAONTY WOOUHLYE TYNIWYIL
1HOdUIY HLNOWSLIOd
L1-TE-€0 JONVHD I ED STUNLIANIAXI gy gegq
v UvIA NI INV1d UYIA iN IWVN 1D3[0dd
IONVIVE ANIYHEND L3N 01 UIASNVYIL INIREND AONYIVE
(5,000 $)

LT0T ‘TE HOYVI 40 SY
SSIUD0Ud NI MYOM NOILINALSNOD 40 AUYVWKNS



t
g
=
=)
&
=)
QO

- - 8¢ 8 - MONYL 14T WO IHSIENS LI
- (9) 9 - 9 AQOg MONYL dWNa
- - 59 59 - NVA NYIDTH1D313

FONVNILNIVI
B 91T I Z44 30T 97T
(5102-90 DgS)
- (911) SZT 6 91T NDISIA IOYNIVIA ANV INIWIAYL INVTIXVL
(z102-#0 99S)
- - 6 6 - NOLIDNYLSNODI Y ANV NOISIA AYMNNY
(z107-50 D8S)
- - 06 06 - JOVNDIS ANV ONIIIYIN-1ONYLSNODITY ££-ST AVMNNY
LAOdUIV NIAVHAIS
£1-TE-E0 IDNVHD IdDIAYIS STUNLIANIXT g1 gg.gq S——
v AVIA NI LNV1d UVIA iy dWVYN 103r0dd
JONVIVE INJHUND 1IN OLYIISNVHL LINIWIND JONVIVE

(5,000 $)

MO/ T0T “TE HOYVK 40 SY
SSIUD0Ud NI YYOM NOLLONYLSNOD 40 AUVWINS



cl

0l

ini
11
0}
[}

SINIWIDVIdId ¥ILNdINdD

NOILVYISININAY
T (€9) h¥4 4 85 ¥9

= - 6 6 - WITI0Y SNIFAD JdNL NYL
¢ T - T - AGNLS ALTTIGVIA T1EM
- - S S¢ - SNOLLYDIHIAOW INVINYLSTY 87 TITHO
2 - €1 €T - LINAWAINOI YOLYINWIS
% (+9) 9 . b9 (AINO NDISIA) NOISNVdX3 ISNOHENTD
3SYNOD 4109

LT-TE-€0 JONVHD IDIANIS STUNLIANAXI  9T-0£-90

v uVIA NI INVId dv3A v JWVN ID3atodd
JONVIVE INFHAND 13N OLYUIASNVIL LNFHAND JONVIVd
(5,000 $)

e/ T0C ‘TE HOYVK 40 SY
SSIUYD0Ud NI MUOM NOLLONYLSNOD 40 AUVWINS




LI-TE-E0
v
JONVIVE

Zs) 75 - s

(92) 9z - 9z
(1g) 1€ - 1€
IONVHD IDIANIS SIYNLIANIIXI 91-0€-90
UVIA NI LNV1d YVIA v
INIWUND 13N OL U34SNVUL INTHUND

JONVIVE

(5,000 $)

€l

UL TOT “TE HOYVK 40 SY
SSTUD0Ud NI HYOM NOILONYLSNOD 40 AUVWIHNS

3AYADdN DYAH L13991S 337
SINIWIAOYDINT FINLONYLSYIANI ANV NOILDISUILNI
JJ0d3avil

JWVN 103roud




vl

Tz 90T 78T 8881 PES WLOL
ic 91 8¢ S er
S S - g - TAVMILOS ANV ALTMNDIS 1£90d Iavesdn
4 4! - 4 - NOILYDIddY INVYD INVTLSYH
- - 1 Z1 - 45Sd -S31Id ¥IANIS IOV IdTA
PT b1 - ¥1 - NOLLDIdSNI JUYHM YiMve
- - LT [T - YIAYIS IONVHOXT 371
- (9) 6 ¢ 9 SIX0T TV ADNIDYIWT TIVISNI
- (6) - (6) 6 (9T02) NOILYOIddY LNVYD ¥3I91L
SHOGUVYH ANV S1H0d 40 NOISIAIA
LTI-TE-E0 JONVHD IDIANIS STUNLIANIIXA  9T-0£-90
1Y AVIA NI INV1d YVIA v JINVYN 123C0¥Ud
FONVIVE INFWHND 13N OLYIASNVIL ANIHHEND FONVIVE
(s,000 $)

Aom:zﬁzouvh.ﬁCN \.Hm —I—U¢<z u—o m<

SSFUD0Ud NI MAUOM NOLLONULSNOD 40 AUVWWNS



(343 V101
@HH N._”ON }”— e e e e e et e et et - e e e et it gy e e g
NI alvd
5ot
423 £EC 9TT WVIO0L
17 0coe
911 6T0C %05t ©
410N TOYINOD
o oroe NOLLNTIOd
dALYM
911 £L10¢ -HLNAOWS L ¥0d
$129 €L 9Tt 40 ALID
%05’y ® dAVIA
na NOILYOd NOILLNOd J1VY 1SFUAINI
I._.DN_\HH_.W_ o osH LNNOWY W31 ANTHAND / ¥3aToH 193aa

RLALsAN 9NO1

1NIWAVdIY ADIAY3S 1930 40 I TINAIHDS

(5,000 $)

LTOZ ‘TE HOUVI 40 SV
S3ILITIAVI1 193 WY3l DNO1

Si



JFWOONI

(Z10'%) (Z097%) v0Z [09T%) (955°%) DNILYY3dO 13N
€/8'C 008’ (11) 158°C 0v9°z NOILVIDIud3Iqa
ASNIIXT
AdNV (IWODNI)
- - - - - ONILVYIdONON
(€245 9) (zos't) €6t (60¥'1) (916) IWOONI ONILVHIdO
0081 4YAFS €Es 91T 65T
- - - - - ¥IHIO TV
NOLLOWOYd
ST 6T ) +1 01 GNY ONILINYVYI
SADIAYIS
- - - - - TVNOISS340%d
142 %S (zz) 192 652 SILLILLN
FALLYILSINIWNQY
121 Sb1 $1 80T et ANV I74aNID
IDNYNILNIVIN
SALLTIOVS
£69 vt (b14) /86 €L8 ANV SONIAIINg
S1I43INTE any
969 00T (zo1) 95/ 669 SIDIAYIS TINNOSYId
SaASN3IdX3
ONILVYIdO
SIANNIAY
959 096 (ov) yAVA 779 ONILYVYIdO
WNILOY 13sang JONVIYVA  139dng WNLOV
J1vad OL UVIA ¥YIA 3iva Jva oL
AYIA YOId WOSI4 INTHAMD Ol dvaA UYIA
(s,000 $)
9l

230

AOH

L6C'TT S06°/T 659°0¢
5102 9102 L0z
LT0E
Do a3s une

31va OL ¥V3IA V

o5 anc Al

Y

0z

- 40

833

ST0¢

24y

+ 0
< 000'0T
r 000°0Z

~4 000'0%

000 ‘ot

000’05

-~ 00009

4}

LT

18T

9ed

WNLOV
d1va

i

OL¥v3aA

HOTdd

1d40ddIV HLNOWS130d

191
§8S

139dnd
dYIA
VOSIH

ANFIIND

Viva INIWINVIdN3

b1 3¢

F1T1) STT

ST S

184 0T

14 6Lt

JONVIHVA 13oang
AVIA Jivda

OL¥v3A

0¢

191

1944

wvNLY
1iva

OL dv3aA

000°0L

YIHLO 1V

SINNIATY
EEE]

SANNIATY
NOISS3ONOD

SUYONYH
ANV O91YD

INTY
SALLITIOVS

SANNIATY

e

LT0C ‘TE€ HOUVYIN DNIANI AdOTy3d
HLNOW ININ FHL Y04 SNOILVYIdO 40 INFWILVYLS

ONILLVd3d




v0Z SPE [ 89¢ TSE
09T 062 8/ 1T S6T
i) (55) (s) (1) (95)
(344 508 @) [ (]34 86T
69 201 #) Y74 5%
b S - %4 &
¥ 143 ) v 0T
v 9¢ (s) [T 44
12 S8 () #9 65
L€ 9 91 PE 05
G8T T5C 7E) 67T wT
NIV 135ang  IONVIMVA  13oang VNV
J1va ol UVIA AVAA 3lva 31Va 04
HYIA YOI VIS INTWIND  OL ¥vIA WVIA
(s,000 $)
Ll

FWOONI
ONILYYIHO 1IN

NOILYIOIdd3Ia

ISNadX3
ANV (IWODNI)
ONILYYIJONON

FWOONI DNILYHILO

73Nd -¥93HLO TV

NOILOWO¥d
ANV ONLLINYYIW

SFDIAYIS TYNOISSIH0Ud
SN

JALLVYLSINIWQY
ANV TV33IN3D

FONVNILNIVIA SILLIIDVA
ANV SONIQTING

S1I43N39 ANV
SADIAUIS TINNOSHAG

SISNIdX3
DNILVd3d0

SINNINTY
ONILVYIdO

(€85 1)

(866)
(£99)

697
¥£8'7
50¢ 15
(€zm) 8%

WIOL SAaNNd

INVED

[ASE 158'9¢
STh$ 19%'21
3OTd
v
atA

I

5]
~
— v
in
o]

08 ot

S0T

NV
a1va
QL ¥VIA
d0rdd

0€T

135dnd
dV3A
TYOSH

e

dv3IA
IVLIOL

00T BZZ7) {608)
10T A4
(oot) (580°1) (z85) -600C A4
- (z6c'e) (60T) ST0T Ad
- (e6T) (gs) 9707 Ad
- (s01) (99) LT0C Ad
AVdTY aN3dx3 Yd3do MO
1g3a WLIdVD HSYD 13N
ort'6T 026 9107 A4
19521 SSh £10Z A4
31va HINOW alios
OLdvaA INTHAND 1EN4 40
SNOTIVO
[¥45)] (743 T
1 I 4 Y¥IHIO TV
(80) 08 4 SIS 13nd
SUYONYH
(on) 86 88 ANV ODYvD
FONVINVA 139ang IVNLOY
UVIA 3lva 31va SINNIATY
INFHIND OL¥VIA  OLYV3IA

ONILVY3dO

1d0dAUIV NIAVHINS
LT0T ‘TE HOYVIW DNIAN3I AOIy3d

HLNOW 3NIN 3JH1 404 SNOILVY3dO 40 LNIWILVIS



FWODNI

786'F €099 Z8¢ 096'v I¥eS ONILVYI4O 13N
129 918 1) z19 865 NOILYIDIUd3qg
ASNIdXI
ANV (3WOONI)
- - - - - ONILVYIJONON
£09'S 6Tt'L €LT TiL's Sv6'S FWOINI ONILYHIdO
G5 68/ (86) 80F 01¢
19 obT (62) SOT 9/ ¥3IHLO TV
NOLLOWOd
0T 89 {(89) 89 - ONV ONLLINYVIN
$aDIAY3S
- - - - - TYNOISSIH0Ud
80T SHT (99) 601 €9 SILLTILLN
IALLVYISINIWGY
(£ Iy 1 s¢ o€ ONY WVHINID  georg 5078 73 8T STA)
FONYNILNIVIA
SALLITIDVS
622 68¢ (9sT1) 16¢ SET ANV SONIQTING
0€T 9T 65T L0T 792 YIHLO TV
S1I43INIE ANV
- - - - = SIDIAYIS TANNOSYHId STV
876°S 790’8 €40 66'S 40 TVLNTY
SISNIdX3 6 90 (08) 0’9 €
ONIlv¥ado NV 13nang IONVTIVA 13anang WLV
SINNIAIY  FLvaol UYIA UVIA 3iva 3iva oL SINNIATY
3509 3078 <7 5979 <75 ONILVYIdo YVIA YOIUd TVOSI4 INTJIND O ¥v3IA uv3aA DNILYYIdO
WNLV 13oang FDNVIUVA 139ang WALV
Jiva ol UVIA Uv3A 3iva J1va
UVIA OTId OSH ANTHEND OL dv3A OL dv3A e
(s,000 $)

130d3aavil
LT0T ‘T€ HOUVIN DNIANI AOTy3d
oL HLNOW 3NIN JFHL 404 SNOILVY3IdO 40 INIWILVILS



|

e
N
]

0zH'1

#H9'T
wviotL

9L0°T

0€T'1
vd3do

/aood 3SHNOD

891

$91

dOHS
Odd

FNODNI
ONLLYY3dO
L3N

(NOILVIOTHd3a
DONIANTOX3)

SASNIIX3
DNILVH3dO

SIANNIAIY
ONILLYH3dO

SISATIVNY
LINN
SS3NISNg

S0C
568

91¢

IVNLOY
J1lvd oL

0|

[43

JONVIUVA
dv3IA

dY3IA ¥ORId INIFHAND

(s,000 $)

61

9
€17
0z

(8L

#0C

135ang
a1va
OL ¥vaA

506

9€C

ALY
a1va

OL dv3A

YIH10 any
ISIANVYHOUIW

SNOSSFT
HOLYINIWIS

SAIHSYIIWANW

5334 4709
SANNIAIY F34

SANNIATY
NOISSIONCD

SANNIATY

ONILVYIdO

€0T
PSE'T
€61

e

691

€T

1344

P9

VRLDY
31vVa ol
AVIA WO

6CY
06’1
bCe

184

[4%4

AN

143

2305)

139dang
AVIA
VOST4

€T

T1
(1)

11

60¢

JONVI¥YA
AYIA
ANIHAEND

I k=

9g
6LE7T
PP

1€

8/T

91T

074

€99

SEV'T

139ang
31va
OL ¥v3aA

(€D
£L6C

¥TT
(747280
T6T

144

8T
LET

LLT

TeC

L9

PO

VNV

alva
OLdv3A

JWODNI
ONILYYIdO 13N

NOILVIDIidaa

IASNADXI
anNyV (IWOONI)
HNILYVYIdONON

FWODNI ONILVHEIdO

AIHLIO TV

NOLLOWOYd
ANV ONLLIMAVIN

SAOIAY3S
TVYNOISS3JOYd

S3ALLTILN

FALLVILSINIWNGY
ANV IV43IN3D

FONNIINIVIN
SATLITIOVS
ANV SONIQINg

S1I43NIg aNV
SADTAYAS TINNOSHId

SISNAdIX3
ONILVY3dO

SINNIATH
ONILVHIdO

(s,000 $)

i

3S¥N0D 470D
LT0T ‘TE€ HOYVIW DNIAN3I AOIy3d

HLNOW 3NIN JHL 404 SNOILYYIdO 40 LINIWILVIS



£65'T6T €87°9T 5334 WOOY NV 004 oTTTe WiOL

66.'8L 5569, S3anova mm%mm - T o e v

ST6°0TT 1951€T AV1d INFWYNSNOL NOSV3S ~SANfIOU STOE &7

69T'6€ 106'8€ 0b-T SdNOYD SE6HS TVLOL —— e S

609'4€  YIAWIWNON f  ows
aix aix SNOLLONNA LTELT RECINED

9TOTAd  £T0T Ad 3SUN0D /9N NOSV3S -5aNNOY 9T0Z s
e j oo
IBSTE  EIOPITT § TOCSOTS  TE6ETT 3
651507 - anne =i ) AN (NOSV3S) SANNOY YAAWIWNON / YIFWIW 9T0T
e ) - o - - P e e e
E - Ty 200’9 = Y 0T1'ZS 011’28 986%S Q3Av1d SANNOY
€0+'c6 £8€'98 HOYwW 0zt 0€T's7 HOYYW NOSV3S  aia QLA
e8s'T8 6€5'8 Advesd 50597 €71t AMVMIEIS e o, SEOE  PEOH
78948 b00°T6 AYVONYE WT'HT 120'87 AMVONYC em _owe  wws s owr et :
SLT'SOT 004801 ¥38WI03a ) . NE—
L1002 890°88 WIGWIAON — oTpiTT ST o
TSS'ETT 917z ¥380.100 - J2ae -
£99'997 £5€°09T ¥IGWILAIS = ) N T 07
S1/'581 Y161 1snonv ) +9 15M5NY
6SH'9LT §  bL'E8T $ AN ) 5w $ e

SIS
9T0Z Ad £T0T A4 mﬂwmw 910 Ad £10T Ad zwwaq__mpww (NOsv3s) @IAVd 410D 40 SANNOY
anv ¥va

4709

LT0T 'TE HOYVW 40 SV
V1Vd OSNDRIVWHON3E 3SUNO0D 4709 AN

114



|

(@3.10141534NN) FYTHSAWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLAY 1¥0d
LT0T ‘'T€ HOYVIW DNIAN3 AOIy3d

697 z 90% 5T & (23] ONI dO 13N
(NOILV1034d3a
ONIINTOX3)
SISNIdXT
0/¢ Tee SLT 6¢ 3ET 041 ONILYHIHO
SANNIATY
£ 8¢c¢E 189 £0E 181 9%T ONILYNIO
Ninav DYNYW 133448 ¥3ld HSHd HOguVYH HOgIVYH SISATYNY
HO8HYH 13NN HLNOWS1A0d JAY NOLJWYH LINMN SSINISNG
6891 1S€C Y&LT ¥S9'T ViOoL
9/ 66 LL L YIHLO TV
€18 0SZ €89 89t S3TVS 13N
009 ¥E8 009 765
»OT Y44 T 1T M00a / FAYHM
00T 04T ¥6 96 SNOLLYYISIDTY
68 148! €8 88 ONDIAVd
JA74 5333 15¢ e S33d ONTIOOW
ANN3AZY 334
INNIATY
S 9 9 S NOISS3IONOD
STV.INTY
Sév 799 88 £0§ ALTTIOV4
WNIDY 13anang 135and WALV SANNIAIY
31va Ol AYIA Jiva 3iva ONLLYY3dO
HVYIA HOId TYOSId Ol dv3A OL dv3A
(5,000 $)
4

8¢

0€T

6SG'T
£8E

€T
66

8ET

STT

908

689°T

NV
41vG 0oL

AVIA

dOndd

S6v €e

TITT 9€T

0Fe'C 9¢¢

S0/ (902)

14 (n

9z (9)

$ST (z€)

05T (s»

/91 (1e)

9¢0'1 09

15€7T 00T

135an9  JONVIIVA
AYIA ¥vaA

ANFIEND

3 4

(44
FAVAN
8¥S

6T
STT

56

£GT

LLL

PSLT

139ang
a1va
OL dviaA

08€
655

()

84T
9P
(4243

eT
8/

08

9¢T

[E8

$S9°T

IVNLOV
3iva

OL dvaA

AWOONI dO 13N

NOILVIOFUd3Ia

ASNA4X2
ANy (IWODNT)
ONILYVYIdONON

JWOONI ONILVYIAdO

13Nd - ¥3H10 Ty

NOLLOWO¥d
ANV ONILIAAVIA

SADIAYIS
TYNOISS3J0Ud

SALLIN

JALLVILISININGY
ANV TYH¥3INID

JONVNILNIVIA ANV
Jv4 ANV SONIQTINg

SAI43IN3E aNY
SADIAY3S TINNOSYId

SISNIdXI
ONILVY3dO

SINNIATYH
ONILVY3dO

HLNOW 3ININ 3HL Y04 SNOILVY3dO 40 LINIWILVIS



- () T ()

Wl
[o)}
1
~

- T (1) T

95 T

el]
<

VALV
Jivd
OLAvHA
dJOndd

135ang
HV3IA
WOSTH

AONVIAVA
dv3A
LN3JHND

135ana
3iva
OL1 ¥v3aA

Lol

NV
diva
OLdv3A

FWOINI
ONILYH3dO 13N

NOILYIOZddad

ISNIAdX3
any (IWODNI)
ONILYYIdONON

FWODNI
ONILVHIdO

dIHLO TV

NOILLOWO¥d
ANY ONLLIXEYIN

SADIAYAS
TVYNOISS340dd

S3LLIILN

IALLVYLSININGY
ANV IVHINTD

JONVYNILNIVIA
SALLIIOVS
ANV SONIQIING

S1I43N38 aNY
SADTAUIASTINNOSYA

SASNIdXE
ONILVY3IdO

SANNIATY
ONILVY3dO

INOZ 3avil
NOIZHO4

(s,000 $)

(@3.1014153%) IYTHSAWVH M3IN 40 ALTYOHLNY 130d
LT0T ‘T€ HOYVIW DNIAN3I AdOIdad

TET 6T

(002) LS

Lo
o
[en)
)]

(744 0s

S8 £0T

VNIV 135and

J1va oL AVIA
dVIA HOTdd VOSId
e ——

61

(m

144
ae)

(se)

el

JONVIVA
WV3A
INTHIND

STy

o™i

6¢

LE

69

139ang
31vQ
OL ¥V3A

8y

(1)

9L

Wl

RV

31va
O1 3VIA
e

JIWOONI
ONILYY3dO 13N

NOILYIDRidIa
4SN3dX3

ANV (IWODNI)
ONILYIIdONON

FWOONI
ONILYY3dO

dAH10 1Y

NOLLOWO¥d
ANV ONILINYVI

SADIAGIS
TYNOISS340ud

SALLNILN

AALLVULSINIWNGY
ANV TYY3NID

FONVNILINIVIA
SALLIOVS
ANV SONIQINg

S1I43IN3g ANV
SADIAYLS TINNOSHId

S3ISN3IdX3
ONILVY3dO

SANNIATY
DNILVA3IHO

ONIDA3ua

- HLNOW 3ININ 3HL Y04 SNOILVY3dO 40 INIWILVIS



%) €8t

"'SANN d3¥3153N03S S3ANOXA (4)

T'vI
£0L £'e6 1’68
PST'T €971 811
T8Z §80°T 0S0'T
999 56 S16
STT TET SET
V43 8L Eral
4 - -
0ee 8/ 8¢t

ST0Z-0£-90 970Z-0£-90 LT0C-TE-€0

LY 30ONVIvE

LV 3DNVIVE

1V IONVIvd

(&)

% -(ADN3IOI430)
SS30X3 ANN4

(%) % -31vy
NOILLVZITILN
TVLIdYD

W3 L ONOT
LNFHEND

ONIANVISINO
SNYO1

SANNd
Q3¥31S3Nd3IS

SANNL TYYaNID
SAONVIVE HSYD

AT UTS T AN L e e

NOLLVITIONOD3Yd ANNd NVOT DNIATOATY

(s,.000 $)

£C

(@ILOTM1ISTY)

=]

8T

OLvNLOV
AVIA HOIYd

3

130ang
RRENS
WISId

NI

el

ADNVIYVA
dv3aA

__INFHD

A

139ang
aivd

OL dV3A

a3

NV
3iva

OL¥vIA

(aanNLLNOD)

FUIHSdIWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY L30d
LT0T ‘T€ HOYVW HDNIANI AOIy3d

FWODNI
ONILVYHY3dO 13N

NOILYID3INd3Ia
ASNIdXI

ANV (3WOOINI)
ONILVHIdONON

JWOONI ONILVYIdO

YIHIO TV

NOILOWOYd
ANV ONLIINAEVIN

S3DIAYES TYNOISSIH0Ud
SaLILLN

JALLVHLSININGY
ANV TVY3IN3O

JONYNILINIVIA
SALLITOVS
ANV SONIQTINg

S1I43IN39 ANV
SAJIAY3S 1INNOSHId

SASNAAX3
DNILVYIdO

SINNINTY
DNILVY3IdO

aNnd Nvo
DNIATOATY

HLNOW 3NIN 3H1 304 SNOILVY3dO 40 LNIWILVIS



|

0
o~
L~

yI0Z Ad €107 Ad

.....Llllll:.lr ..... - -

0€ INNC LV
NOILISOd Q31OTHLSIUNN L3N

'S1IJIN3g ANV

SAOIAYAS 1INNOSHId OL IALLY 1Y
NOLLYIVOS3 1S0D A9 a3a330x3
N338 SVH IdD / NOLLY1VDST INNIATY

"INIWAYLIY

193d ANV S1D3r0dd V.11dvD

Q1Y 13 INVYONON 1:0ddNS OL
NOILYOIIE0 TVIONYNIZ AINNIINOD

(Y2 Z6 7SN 74 & 7 NOILLISOd 13N 1V.10L | &g NOISN3d
\ ) _ $30UNOSIY 40
(££57) (z90'n) QALOTIISTANN | SMOT41LNO QI¥YILAG
- - INOZ 2aVYL NOIFYOd | §7976% 605765 $13SSY V1oL
- - ONIDATYA JOGUVH |
- - ANN4 NYOT ONIACTATY _ = = FJ19VAIIOIY LT -HIHILO
MO QILOINLSTY |
| TG9'ZS 0v9°S5
£5696 9£7'G8 SLISSY IVLIdVD NI INIFWLISIANT LIN (FI#-0T# S39Vd) G0N
NOILISOJ 1IN 815 609 NI NOLLONYLSNOD
— — " ANTWGINDI
1ot 9t NOISN3d _ bLT'LS 1£0°SS ANV SONIQTING ‘ANVT
S$3IDUNOSTY "
40 SMO4NI Qau¥343a | S13ASSY VLIdVD
SEFFIE FEFTE | :
LS 767'S SALLINIEYIT Wi0L E = P —————
VAVALS G80E |
- ) 13N
6b€ L1€ SILLIEVIT 1T ¥3H1O | °© - -STIEVAIIOTY SINNODDY
89¢€’¢ 80¢’E ALTTIGVIT NOISN3d 13N
| = - SINTTVAINOI ANY HSVD
SALLITIAVIT INIHUNONON |
S13SSY Q4101H1S3Y
G002 TITC SALLMIGYIT INTHAND WLOL
917 911 SILLTTIAVIT 17 -NOLLYOd INTHEND | 886'T 698°C S1ASSY INTHAND WLOL
81¢ £5¢ ANNIATY AINYYINN 13N
697 b5 NOLLONYLSNOD -T19VAVd SINNODDY | FCS 988 “F1@VAIOTFY SINNODOV
20eT 6851 T18VAVd SINNODDY | €E0'T 18%'C SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
SILLIIIAVIT INTHNND | S1ASSY INTHAND
9102 10T S3LLTNIEVIT | 9T0T LI0T S13ssvy
DENNE  TEM¥VW 0E NNC TE UV
(5,000 $)

ve

(FYIHSIWYH MIN 0 ALTHOHLINY 1¥0d ONIANTIXT) NOILISOd 13N 40 INIWILVYIS

ALTYOHLNVY LNIWdO13IA3IQ ISVYad

000°s-

000’c-

000t~

000t

(s.000 %)



"'STIATT IDINY3S

000~

(5,000 %)

SISATYNY NV NOISSNOSIA

S¢

SANN4 AILOTILSTANN -NOILISOd 13N 40 LINIWILVIS
JUIHSdWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNV 130d

%96 9v1'6 NOILLISOd 13N 1oL | EST esT NOISN3d
{ $30¥NOSIY 20 i -
{t£9) (0zS) QLD ESTUNN _ SMOT41N0 QI¥YILIq
- - 3NOZ 3QVHL NOTFHOd |
) : ONIDAIUA UORUVH | yaemy  Zoe7p% S13SSV TV.LOL
- - aNNd NYOT ONIAOTATY |
404 AIOTYISTY | 00ZTOT 9596 S T -
s s (rs-01# 539v9) SSIDOY
96101 999’6 SL3SSY LIV NILNIWISIANI L3N | /1 NI NOLLYMLLSNOD
NOILISOd 13N | INIWGINDI 9l 3 g| v_u_ £10T Ad
5% o6 NOISN3d | 6107 6596 ANV SONIGTING ‘aNV] = ; :
$30UNOSIY _ S13SSY WLIdVD |
40 SMOHNI Gayu343a | _
i |
9951 gTET SALLTTIEVIT TV.LOL _ - - $135SV AIDLISTY WIOL | )
388 706 _ L3
- 61 SILLTUSVIT LTHIHIO | - -ST1GVATIOIY SINNODDY 0€ ANNC Lv
- 838 5 AN g NOILISOd QILOTHLISIUNA L3N
| - - SINTFTVAINDI ANV HSYD
SITLTTIFVIT INFHANONON | .
| T — SHONVIVE ANN4 31014 1SFUNN
=— = _ A8 43940Sav N338 SYH NOTTIW 6°0% F1IHM
849 | ¥4 SILITIAVIT INTHUND TVLOL " SIINOW NI NOITTIW 0°T$ a3aIAOYd
| SUYIA VST L Lo7d NE SLa0D oIrOnd
- - SALLTNEVIT 17 -NOLLOd INTHIMD | g7 o7 1 -
| T8 ros SESSY IR WIOL > [ {ENTAOUAT ANV NOLLYOTIAON RILSAS
- - ATTIOV4 D0TONINIOASY | g¢ 67 51355V 4aHLo | ANFWIDYNVIN YILVM WIOLS NI NOTTHW 61 $
6L¢ T0€ ANNIATY QINYVIND | 13N _
: - | 89 4 -II9VAIZOTY SINNOJDY ANIHAND IONITIVHD AV ANV FdNIDONALS
b NOLLONYLSNOD -I19VAVd SINNODDY | . ASUJ@M_W_M_ @ wmm_ wmwwmx_m m_:wn__/_ mxﬁ w %wwow M
| 089 029 SINITYAINDI ANY HSYD
o6t oct FEpAvaaIlingsa i | NOLLYSII90 TVIDNVNIH GINNLINGD
SILLIIEVITINIHAND | SLASSY INTHUND |
910z £10T S3ILTNEVIT | 9TOZ £10Z S13ssv
O0ENNC TS ¥VW | OENNC  TEWVW
(5,000 $)




]
3l

IS 8 NOILISOd L3N TVi0OL

__ NOISN3d
) ) ! | S32UNOSTU 40 |
J3LOTALSIANN | SMOT4LNO aa¥YIdIq |
15 8t INOZ 3AVHL NOTIHOS |
) i bl - |
ONIDAIUA YOFAVH || TE g% S13ISSV IV10L |

N - ANNd NYOT ONIAOTATY

_ _ _ _ _ 910T AJ STOT A4 +107 Ad £10T Ad
MO4 Q31OTULSH | | - = _ : :
“ (b1#-0T# 539Vd) SSID0U |
- - S13SSV TVLIdVD NI LNIWLSIANI L3N - i NI NOLLOMYLSNOD |
i
NOILISOd 13N i INTWIDT |
- - ’ | R o I ———
E - NOISNId _ QNY SONITTING ‘ONVT |
$30¥N0S3Y m S1ISSV TYLIdYD
40 SMOT4NI A3¥d343q | |
- - [ |
SERgANTEIINTY KON _ | 7§ 17 S13SSY GALOTNLSTY VLOL |
) ) | | 13N
- - SILLIHEYIT LT ¥aHlo | | = S -STNGVAIZO3Y SINNODDY |
- S ALTTIGVYIT NOISNAd Lan _ i
| 18 £b SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
SILLITIAVIT INFHANONON | | og
B _ M | S13SSY a3LDTuisIy
- : SALLITIGVIT INTHIND WLIOL | | _ 0€ INNC LY
L | I Od A310I4isay 1IN
- - SALLIAVIT 47 -NOILYOd INFWIND | _ z z SLASSY ININNMD IVLOL | NOLLIS ALOTALSIY 13
- - ALTIDVS DOT ONINTOARY | | . 135SV IHLO
_ _ - Z14 NI NOILVdIDIL|Vd JIFHL a3aN3dSns
ANREAZY CENEVSNN ) 13N OIMIDF1I ISNOHONLISIM 9T0Z A4 ONRING =
- - NOLLDMYLSNOD -F18VAVd SINNODDY | | ~ - “F1VAIIOIA SINNODDY |
i | m "SAONITIVHD TYIDNYNIL
- - JF1aVAVd SINNOIDV __ [ - = SINFIVAINO3 ANV HSYD 40 NOLLVYOIGNI ON HLIM 31V.IS AQV3LS n
] _ |
SITLITIAVIT INIUHND | | S13SSV INFHUND
N SISATYNY ANV NOISSNDSIA
9107 £10T SALLTTIAVIT | |  9T0T £10T S13SSY
_ 1

0E NNC TEUV

0E NNC TE UV _

(s,000 $)

ANOZ 3@VYL NOIFYO4H -NOILISOd 13N 40 INJWILVYIS
JUIHSdIWNVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY 130d

9C

(5,000 $)



9107 Ad STOT A4

SRS

¥TOZ Ad

£10T A4

- - 0cEe
0£ INAC 1V e
NOILISOd Q3LIOTH1SIY 13N
4 SAX0d TIVD DH¥3ANI L]
ZT SATd ¥3ANZA =
+T FAYHM vy n
LT0T A4 .
ST YIHIO TV Ry
(8174 AIVISONYL o
9107 Ad =
514 JIHLIO TV =
8L JTVIS DML ANNOYD L
STOC A4 .
P8E  IADQING SSADDV HINOS
Zt NISVE DNINYNL -+107 A4 -
8|71 NISYE ONININL -£707 A4 b
007 NOLdWYH / MOO¥avIs -Z107 A4 =
ovT $ HOGUYH NOLAWYH -TT0Z A4 -
'SNOLLYY3dO

LdOd Y04 IDONVYNIINIVIA ANV SHIVdTIY dO

S103004d WLIdVD qISANGWIZUNN 190ddNS

OL NOLLYSIIE0 TVIDONVYNIJ QINNILNOD

| €06 £%6 NOILISOd L3N TVIOL  _ ) NOISN3d

P ) | - - S30UNOSIH 40

QALOTILSIUNA | SMOT41n0 a3¥¥343a

- - 3INOZ 3VHL NOIFUOS |

| 11z 897 ONIOGRUA YORUVH | g7y 00TT CIHSSY oL |

P - - aNN4 NYOT ONIAOTATY | “

HO4 GIOTYISTY | B89 089

| | (Fra-01# S39%4) SSIDOU

| 769 599 S135SY VLIV NLINIWLSIANI L3N | = NI NOLIDMMLSNOD

| NOILISOd L3N | LNEHAIND3

_ = - NOISNId 769 999 ANY SONIQTING ‘AN

i SIDUNOSIY m S13SSV TV.LIdYD
40 SMOTNI Q3u¥343a

m He 235 SALIAVITIVIOL | o7p 0Z% S13SSY Q310T4LSIY VLOL

- ) | ) 13N

| - SALLINIAVIT LTYIHIO | § - -S31aVAIZOIY SLNNOJDY

- - ALTIEYTT NOISN3d L3N |

_ | ey 0zs SINIFWAINDI ANV HSYD

| SIILTTIFVIT INIHANONON |

_ _ S13SSVY 431014153y

| TZZ 79T SALLTTIAVIT LNIWIND WLOL

| | - -

“ - = SIUITEYIT 17 -NOLLIOd INIHAND | - = SIISSY INTHAND TVLOL

|- - ALTTIOV4 DO ONIATOASY | _ . S.1355V ¥IHLO

| - - INNIAZY GINYVINN 7 13N

|9 - NOLLDNY.LSNOD -I18YAYd SINNOIDY _ - - "F18VAIZO3Y SINNODY |

| s9z L9z TIVAVd SINNODDY | - - SINIIVAINGS ANV HSYD

| SALLIIAVIT ANIHUND 7 S13SSV INIHUNO

-] {174 LT0T SILIIGVIT | grqg £107 S13ssy |

| OENAC  TEu¥VKW | OENAC  TIEUVKW

| A0 e — 1 - =

(5,000 $)

LC

ONIOAIUA YOFUVH -NOILISOd 1IN 40 LNIWILVIS
FUIHSdINVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY L30d

(s,000 $)



i

8¢

NVOT ONIATOAIY -NOILISOd 13N 40 INIWILVIS
JUIHSdIWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHINY 130d

651°T Y74 % 1 NOILISOd 13N TY1OL | NOISNId
N i i _ $30UNOSIY 40
(HLOTHESIUND | - = SMOT4LNO aa¥Y343a
i i e i oIl _ 910T Ad STOT A4 ¥iD ] z
B R [ | A TA £10Z A4
, , DONIDAIFHEA JOgUvH m. gd.lﬂr % S13SSVY IvioL | SE— b i e et D06
6617 LT NN NYOTONIAOTARY | |
MO4 GALOIULSHY | = -
. (bT#-0T# SIOV) SSIIOUd |
- - S13SSY WW.LIdYD NI INFWISIANI L3N | 3 NI NOLLOMALSNOD | L (A
NOILISOd 13N INTWAIND3
= = NOISNZd | - - ANV SONIQTING ‘aNY1
$30¥nosay SLASSY TV1IdYD
40 SMOT4NI a2yyI43a — —~-L DOT'T
& ¢ SALLTIEVIT V101 29T 6LT°F S13SSY QIIORILSTY TWLIOL | i~
z = i 1=
| e oo BN .8
- - SALLTIAYIT LTY¥IHLO | $80°T TS0'T -STIGYAIIOIY SINNODDY | e S - L oozt
- - ALTTIEVIT NOISNId 13N | ”
8/ 8¢T SINTTIVAINDI ANV HSYD 0€ INNC 1V
SIILITNIAVIT INFHANDINON | 135SV QILOTHISTH NOILISOd QI1DIMISTY LaN
€ k4 SILLITIAYIT LNIYEND TVLI0L _ W
- - SALLTTIEVIT 17 -NOLLHOd INIHAIND _ z T S13SSY INTHIYND WVLIOL "ONIANVLSINO SNVOT
| ! INTHAND 40 INFWAYATE ‘ATIVILNILOJ
_ | N ATIVIINIL
- - ANNIATY QINUVANN _ 13N S30Q FLYWITD AYOLVINDTY INTIHND .
B i § | - - -I19VAIZOIY SINNOIDY
e | 5 sy sz AN L oL
| - - SINIIVAINDI ANV HSYD
g 4 HBVAT] SENREOSY | 40 NOILLYDIONI ON HIIM 31VIS AQVALS =
SILLTTIGVIT INIHHND | S13SSY INTWUND
| ;
9107 £10C SAILITIFVI 9T0T LT0T S13ASSY :
[ 0ENNC  TEUVW OENNC  TEUVW
(s,000 $)




ALIOHLOY INIWJOTIAZO I5vTd

zzzzzzzzzzzzz

LTOZ ‘ST AV ).;l
HNILIIW S, MOLDTAUIA 40 GUVOY

8T0T ‘'TE€ AUVNNVC
ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HLNOW 3ININ
JH1 Y04 SNOILD3AC0OUd MO14 HSYD

e e A T TR T LS PP Sos =
=r (= e e




veO'T 16€'E V1oL

vic's JONVIVE ANNd DNISOTD
4! 11 Q31VNOIS3A vad
20T 08¢’ Q31OT¥1SIUNN Yad = MO HSVO 13N
9T0Z-05-90 ZT0Z-06-50 1ol
LV 3ONVIVE LV 3ONVIVE S3IDNVIVE ANN4d TVLOL o1T INIWIHLLTY 1830 WYL ONOT
1598 i HSVD Q3.5 TYISTUNN 888G (£#-5# S39¥d 335) INVED NON -STUNLIANIAX3 TVLIdVD
066 S3ASNIdXI ONLLYYIIO
NV( 230 AON 120 B35 anv me NAC AV ,
e : : P o SPT'y S.LI43NTF ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHId
T e €40 1a3a vioL - e 7802 (## 39Vd 335) INVD -STUNLIANIAXT W.LIdVD
- i 002 SANNd 40 sasn
l} Al i .
N P el / 00t SSIvT
\ N— i - - 13N -TVAIdVD ONDIYOM M¥NVE TYNYILXT
7 S 000's g
ﬂ .l L8 (89) 13N -(d0D) 334 IDIAYIS VAIDINAW
: = . 000'9
0bT SINNIATY 13N ANV YYONYH LHOJUIV NIAVHANS
S3ONVIVE 193a ANV HSVD G1.103C0ud
ok L1HOdYHIV HLNOWSLYOd
" SWYIHLS INNIATY LHO4IavL Mm SSH'T SANNIAIY NOISSIONOD ANV 334 3SYN0D 4109
.. ANV 1SVD3H04 FUNLIANIAXT TV.LIdYD 40 ADVHNIDV (7 , :
SAUVYMY INVED JLVLS / IWY¥3A34 40 141303y (T 3an1ONI £18'S (8# 39Vd 335) SAUYMY LNVID
SNOLLDAC0YUd I¥NLNS QYYMOL SILLIALLISNIS INTHEND : ,
§86'9 SLNVYN3L 1HOd3avyL
"STANLIANTXT TYLIdYD QI LVI3Y INVYED d310300dd
JONVYNIJ ATRIVINTAd OL MNYE INJAIAOYd IHL HLIM SANA4 40 S32UNOS
LIAFD 4O INIT WYL LYOHS LT 3ZTT1LN ¥3H LW 0L —
Q33N IHL ILVJIDILNY LON S304 Yad IHL ‘JWIL SIH1 1V 08E€ FONVIVE ANN4 DNINIHO
NOISSnosIa INNOWY (5,000 $)
(5,000 $)

8T0C ‘TE AYVNNVYC OL ZT0Z ‘T AVW
(s¥yogyvH ANV SLYOd 40 NOISINIa ONIanox3) ;mH >¢W >o >¢<zz=m BOI—E —-—m<u

ALTIHOHLNY INIIWdOTIAIA ASYId

[4



vics VITS STt Z6vv EVCF 80 TIPE  690'F 68e 068'S JONVY1VE aNNd ONISOTD
veS'T 8€6'T (Tzz’'t)  vse STZ'T (r6£) €5¢€ 08t (tog’t) o158 MOTd HSVYD 13N
P09'ST  9CTT G881’ ST 0681 S8ZT ShCT  S8CT  SGhC 887
91T 9TT - - - E 3 = g - INIWIYLLTY 1930 WHTL ONOT
066 06 08T S01T 56 STT 56 06 S0T STT S3SNIdXT ONLLYANIIO
£89°C - 0Se'1 - = - - 1¢ 1€T - 334 IDIAYES WIIDINNW
884 - S¢ ST1 St1 SS 0L St STT 8¢ (£#-5# S39Vd 335) | NVIDONON -V LIdYD
780, 0Sv 0ET'T 002’1 00C'T 0ST'T 019 689 85h 6T (# 39v4 735) QILVIIY INVYED -TV.LIdYD
SY1'dy 0L¥ 09% SSt 0S¥ S9% (/A7 0Lv S9% Obb SLI4INTE ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSYHId
SANNd 40 3sn
SEV'ZT F90°E PEE'T 6TC  SOTE T6eT  865T  S9CT ST 86CT
- - = = = - - - 13N -DOTY WLIdYD ONDINOM
ovT b1 v1 b1 (T 9T 91 LT 9T 97 LUOAYIV NIAVHANS
ozv 0s Sb St 0s Sv Sk 0S St S 140d¥IY HENOWS1HOd
SSP'T SL S8 oct 061 S6T 012 ST1C 00¢ 9971 3SUNOD 4709
S29°C SLE 0S¢ 0S¢ YAS 0S¢ 0S¢ S/€ 0S¢ 0S¢ 334 3DIAYIS TVdIDINAW
£18's 0L¥'T 006 SS0°'T €6E'T 092 LS¥ 8¢ 8¢ 7ee (6# 39vd 735) SCAYMY INVIO
S$86'9 080'1 09 Sb9 080°T §29 029 080T S19 009 SLNVNIL 140d3avyL
SANn4 40 SINAUNOS
08€E 977’ L6v'Y EPTV BITOE TIP'E G690 685°C 069F  OSEE FONVIVE ANNd DNINIHO
WIOL NVT 33a AON 150 Id3s onv nt NNC AVIA
(s.000 $)

8T0T ‘T€ AYVNNYCL OL £TOZ ‘T AVIW
(SHOFYVH ANV SLYOd 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIAN1Ox3) BOI— m —l—m<u mo sz zm-—-<-—-m
ALTYOHLINVY 1INIIWdO13A3A 3SYad



WAQUddY QuVOd ONIANTd 4
‘2LON

|

o
)
c_!
~
(=)
n
q-
o
M
-
i

|
|
|

[+
2]
O
0
n
<t
] 0
b

002°T 0071 0ST'T 19

S8YC E 0€5 0a 0aC 0S¢ 005 055 00E 53
003 - 005 = - - - E - = % MOTd AV.LOY
g - - - = = = - - S (NSISIQ) SINIWAAVA INVIIXVL
0£8°T - 0€ 08 05¢ 0S¢ 00§ 00S 0S¢ - (NOLLDNYLSNOD) LNIWIAV INVIIXYL
08T - - - = - - 0S8 05 09 NOLLDNYLSNOD AVAMNNY
JUOdAUIVY NIAVHIS by
[65% 05% 009 0STT  0%6 006 01T BET 86T 0bT
0¢ - - = E = - - = 0t SNOLLYAONTY WOOUH1VE
0S1 - 001 0§ - = = . - - *+ AGNLS INJWIONYHNT TYNIWYIL
STH - 00T 001 00T 001 = S 01 = NOISIA AYYNIWIIIUd MY
11 3SYHd
qz1 - - = - - 01 01 08 SC -WALSAS INTFWIDVNYIW NOLLYIIJLINIAT
13SYHd
9zT - - = = - - b1 Va4 59 -WALSAS INFWIDVYNYIN NOLLVDIJILNIAL
00S 00€ 001 00T - - S s - - LDMILISNOD -NOLLYSLLIW NOLLONYLSEO
18§ - - - - - - o) 12 0z NDIS3G -NOLLYSLLIW NOLLDNYLSHO
00Z'c 0ST 00€ 006 0S8 008 00T 00T - - YHATV AVMIXVL GUYND TYNOLLYN Y1V
LAOdUIV HLNOWSLYOd
INIWISINGWITY LNVHED
WIioLl NVC 53d AON 156 1435 5nv nt NNC AVIN
(s,000 $)

8T0C ‘'TE AUVNNVCL OL ZT0Z ‘T AVIN
(SYOgdVH aNV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIQG FHL ONIANTIXI) mmm :-—.Hﬁ— z m ﬂ—xm _..—<..—|H n—<u
ALTYOHINY INIWdOT1IAIA ISYAd



TYAQUddY Q3V08 ONIGNId
2LON

0s 0¢ 0€ ONINVID ¥OLYHVAIS ¥ILVM 110
03 013 0907 YaIMOL ¥ILVM
JA0d3aviL
LINFWISANTNITY INVIDNON

V101 NVT 53d AON 130 1d3S 5NV ant NNC I\

(5,000 $)

(Q3INNIINOD) ST10C \Hm AAVNNVYL OL/ZTI0C n.H AVIN

(SYOGUVH ANV SLIOd 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIXI) m Nﬂ_ :._.Hh_ Z W n_xm .._<_._.Hn_<U

ALTYOHLNY INIWJOTIAIA 3ASVad |



TYAQHdAY QYVOd ONIONId #x
310N

85T c - 09 o - - g 74 8T

09 - - - - 09 - *% JIMOW AVMAUIYS
S - - - S - - s NDIS3A 3avi9DdN OLLYd
S¥ - - S€ = - - - - ot SNOLLVJIJIGOW INVENYLSIY
0€ - = T4 = - - - S - =+ SIDARIL ISYNOD INMg

e
o1 - - - - - - - o1 - +x YITIOY SNIFYD

g - - - - - - - - 8 *x UAMOTE ST¥E3A
ISANOD 4109
- ) . _ ) . _ L s SNOLLYDINNWWODT 3L
08 - 0¢ - - 0¢ - 0T - / SYINGAS / TAYMIL0S / SHIINIYd / SUTLNdWOD
NOILVIISININGY
.On._w. = = = Wﬂ mIN. = - Z z
5S¢ - - - - 54 - - - - sk LOT ONINYYA TWNIWYIL
ST - - - ST - = - - - sk (SONIAAS) UIVAIY / INTWIDVIdIY HOOd TUS
J1HOdYIV NIAVHANS
1INIWISANTWITY INVIONON
RiATe N NVC J3a AON 100 1438 5NV nt NNL AV
(5,000 $)

mie> QLT “TE AYVNNVE OL £LT0T ‘T AVI
(S408YVH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIA FHL DNIANTOXT) SUNLIANIAIX3 TVLIdVYD
ALTIHOHLNY LINIWJOTIAIA ASVYad



WAQUddY QUVOE ONIANIG +x
410N

0
00
[T
)
[Te)
o
in
v
i
n
4
1
\n
S
N
2
4
3
Lo
3
[}

LNVIONON V10L

LN
[e)!
'
1
&
o~
Rl
™~
'
v
[
i
L]

S - = - Sb - - - - - sx INIWADYTdIA 13374 ITOIHIA
0S - = 14 S¢ - - - - - ++JANLINALSYAINI ONIATING
FONVNILNIVI
SoT - 53 01 0 0¢ 0z 01 - [or4

0T - = - - - - 01 - - *x FOVYNDIS -5370d LOT ONINYVd
0¢ - - - - - - - - 0¢ ONILVIS TYNIWYIL
S€ - S€ - - - - - - - #x HOLVYANID NOLLVLS YIHLVIAM HINON
0s - - 071 ob - - - - - *x 8# ANV £ # LNH 40 ONIJ00Y3Y
0§ - - - - 0¢ 0¢ - E - s+ (Q37) ONIWYTITY AVAMNNY TYNIWYIL
LHOdYUIV HLNOWSLIOd
HaaNNLLNOD) " INIWISANGWITY LINVUONON

WIOL NVL 33d AON iiolo] IRES 5nv nt NNt AW

G000 $) amne 8T0C ‘TE AYVNNVYLE OL ZT0Z ‘T AV
(SHOFYVH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ FHL ONIANTIXT) mmﬂ_ : ..—.HQ an_xw .._<.._.Hn_<U
ALTYOHLNVY LNIWdO13A3A ISVad



(444 ANVAD 101

Sy VA4 - - - E - - - - MOld AWV10Y
L - - - - - - - - L NDIS3A -LNIWIAVA ANVIIXVL
LET'T qzs - - S/b & LET - - = NOLLONYLSNOD -INIWIAVA INVTIXVL
GS¢ 3 - - - obT - : - 812 NOLLDNYLSNOD AVMNMY
LYOdYIV NIAVHAAS
95 8¢ - - - - - 8¢ - - SNOLLVAONZY WOOUH.LYE
Iy VA - - - - - - - - AQNLS INFWIDONVHNI TYNIWYIL
S0Z - - S0z - e - - - - NOISIA AYYNIWITZIA MY
11 3SYHd
811 = - - 811 - - - 5 a -W3LSAS INFWADYNVIN NOLLYDIHLLNIAL
1 ISYHd
0eT 3 3 - - - 0zt - = = -WALSAS INFWIDVYNYIN NOLLYDIALLNIAI
56 56 - - - - - - 3 o 1DNYLSNOD -NOLLYOLLIW NOLIDNYLSE0
8t 2 - - - 0z - - 82 = NOIS3A -NOLLYOLLIW NOILONYLSE0
0S0’e 00€ 006 058 008 001 00T - = = VYHA TV AYMIXV.L Q¥VND TYNOLLYN dIv
LAOJUIV HINOWSLYOd

V101 NV J3a AON 150 1438 5nv nc NOC AV

s 8T0Z ‘TE AYVNNVE OL ZT0Z ‘T AV
NWQQQQV%\ dNV SLY¥0d 40 NOISINIQ FHL INIaGNTOX3T) mam<;< |_lz<¢u l—lmHmumm
ALTYOHLNY INIWdOTIAIG ISYId



4102 - 9107 SI0T @ = =

23a ) AON ) 120 ) 4a3s oW ne NN AVH Hdv YV g934 Nv{
, R _ ‘ . [ 5o FIINVEVND
e - memcooe 1 : 3LV1iS IHL
2 T T et meoae =SS i S50 A¥UVD LON S30a Y3HLO
— G0
e GG NMOGMYYEQ
S9°0 WAWINIW ON 40 IZIS WNWINIW
00 SINIOd
- 680 = SIsvd 0S¢ +
6o (QISSY1D) 91H4
HANOW 3INO 31VY ISTUILNI
IVLIdVD
ONDIYOM
3AINOYd OL 3s0dind
0sv 4 IOVYIAY
Q3LHOIIM LT0Z-TE-TT 31Va W3l
114 6ve
T10Z-01-£0 31Va IALLD34d43
HLOOWSLYOd
0S'v 020¢-1€-¢T S9b 6%t 40 ALID
000's F1VIIVAY LNNOWY
(Oo™) MNVE
31aVIdVA £102-T€-2T - - AIN3QIAOYd IHL MOV TS
- - 000°s TAVNIOINO 40 INNOWY
P IIVY 3Iva 9T0C-0£50 ZT0¢-tc-v0 STSKTVNV 1a3a
1STYIINI ALTANLVIN v v ONIANYISLNO (OOTI) INvE
JIONVIVE FONVIVE 1IN3dIAOYd FHL
(5,000 $)

SISATVNY 1930 ODNIANVLISLNO ANV SIILITIDVH 11d3HD
6 ALTYOHLNVY LNIWdOTIA3A ISVad



l\\'
N
o~
Ll
N
o~
qJ
i

Wiol

8/ 8¢T AaNNd NVOT DNIATOATY
9% 334 INOZ 3aVyL NOIFHO4
$6€ JONVIVE NN ONISOTD
1A 618 ONIDATYA HOFUVH
089 Ve di SANN4 Q3LOTYLSTUNN 433 MO HSVD 13N
970Z-0€-90 ZT0Z-05-50 ST
1V ADNVIve 1V IDNVIVE SADNVIvVE aNnd 1viol 0g STUNLIANIAXI TYLIdVD
66T LINIWINOOYd 1aNd
NY( 23d AON 150 435 ony anc NN AV
- e - : ’ 00z qGE SASNIdX3 ONILLYHAdO
o 00¢
L ook T€8 S1IJ43NI8 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHId
NG oos SANN4 40 s3sn
e T, ) e 8
~— ™ 0T
— = e - 008
80¢ SNOISSIAONGD ANV S334 ONDVYd
SIONVIVE HSVD GILOTHLSTUNN AI1D3C0Ud
7 0ce SIS 13Nd
"03INIWY3L3Q 39 OL L3A SYH ‘(NISYY
ONINYNL YIATY YNOV.LYOSId) V-N4-SZ §H HLIM GILVIDOSSY 56T JOVIUVHM / SNOLLVYLSIOTY
31vd 1SFHIINI ANV QOTHId NOLLYZILIOWY NVO1 267 $
01 S334 ONTIOOI
"£10T ‘TE ¥AAWIDIA STUIAXI NOLLYLIOISNYYL
40 INFWLHYAIA INIVIN 40 FLVIS HLIM INFWITUOV 3SvaT 06b STVANTY ALTTIOVA
IWLLYIAO 3IA0TdI 4O INIWNIVLNOD GINNLINOD (b SANNd 40 s35uN0S
YOI U0 ANY SHIV T NOT VA R0s A LS
'1SVDIYO4 FUNLIANIdXT TV.LIdYD 4O ADVHNDIV (T JAMTONI 244 dONVIvE ONNd DNINIJO
SNOLLD3C0¥d FUNLN4 AYYMOL SITLIALLISNIS INIHIND S

NOISSNDSIA

(5,000 $)

(s,000 $)

8T0T ‘TE€ AUVNNVYCL OL ZTO0Z ‘T AVIN
(SANNH 31o1Y1SIH ONIANTIXT) ;N H >¢ m >O >~_<—>_ z:m >>O.._ u_ —.—W<U

SYOYYUVH ANV S1L30d 40 NOISIAIAQ



|
|
|

n|
D
™M
)
L
(]
o
10
i
n
3
N
g
0
0
3
0
3
0
3
o)
N
d
™~

FONVIVE dNNd DNISOTD

(zeg)  (8zn) (€ (91) (901) 91 01 (£6) (£1) 6 MO HSVD 13N
ST¥'T  €1¢ 0T 91T [ord EET yaa €eT 6T k441
o€ g - ot - - 01 - 0T - U3AHLO ANV STUNLIANIdX3 VAIdVD
66T 81 8T 81 8T £z (T (T Via € INFWFINDOY¥d 13N
(11 - 0T = - 01 = = ot - SAOIAYZS TYNOISSIH0Ud
8ET 91 ST 2 ST ST ST ST b1 61 SALLITLLN
<6 6 6 6 [4) 1T 01 1T 6 T JALLVALSININGY ANV TVHINID
S6 0T S S 0T ST 01 01 01 0z SILLITIDVH GNY SONIATING
1€8 091 0s 09 08T 68 <SS 0/T 6 8t SLIFINIE ANV SFDIAY3S TINNOSHId
SANN4 40 3Isn
€80T 8 3 007 (Y41 [528 ZET 9¢T arT 15T
0zz 0z 0z 0T 0T T4 o€ o€ o€ Y4 STVS 1and
06T = - St S¢ Sb 1 ¢ ST 01 S334 ONDIRIVA
SST 0T 01 0T ST 0z ST ST 01 0S ‘ I9VAUYHM / SNOLLVYLSIOTY
ot - - - - = - - - 01 S334 ONRIOOW
81 - - - v b € Z € [4 SINNIATY NOISSIONOD
06t 5§ ] S 5 S ¥ bSs v S STIVLNTY ALITIOVA
SANN4 30 S3IDUNOS
2z fX4] 9% 79S8 899 789 9 6L 95 It JONVIVE ANNd SNINIJO
TVIOL NVt 33a AON o0 IEE 5NV It NnC VR
(5,000 $)

8T0C ‘TS AYVNNVYC OL ZT0Z ‘T AV
SANNH AILOTYLSTINN -MOT4d HSVYD 40 INIWILVYILS

SUYOGUVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAIQ



O
¢
Q)
O
*
™
o)
3
0
<
:
<
3
<t
3
N
3
=
)
3
n
3
N
L0

IONVIVE ANNd ONISOTD

)
(=]
n
Nt
o~
~~
O
i
S
—
o]
~—
o]
—
@
o™
~
(o)}
~
o
o~
~—
I~
el

MOTd HSVD 13N

(o]
L
i
Ly
[gli
™~
i
[}
<
=
[}
&
[a\
tt
<l

0L 5 S¢ - - St E 0¢ - - (0092) -¥3aHLO TV
- - - = - 5 - - - SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIHOUd

- - - - - - - - SILUTILLN
14 = - (A - - - 4 - - IALLVYLSINIWAY ANY Tv3INID
0s S - ST - 0z E 9 - 14 S3LLINOVH ANV SONIQTINg

- S1I43IN3E ANY SIDIAYIS TINNOSYID

SANNd 40 Isn
(24 A 6 6 8 Vi 6 8 Z 0T
1T 4 4 € € € Z 4 Z < S334 I9vMOTd 13Nd
ST 4 4 Z Z T Z i T 4 SNOLLVYLSIDTY
8¢ € S ¥ 3 € S S 14 9 $334 39VSN ¥3Id
SANN4 40 sIDAUNOS
619 L9Y €87 T6% €8Y 1¢s IS r43+ T4 615 FONVIVE ANNd ONINIJO
IVIOL NVC J3d AON o0 1435 9NV ntc NAC AVIW
(s,000 $)

8TOZ 'TE AMVNNVC OL £T0Z ‘T AVW
GNN4d ONISAIAQA YOFAVH -MOT4d HSVD 40 INIWILVYLS

SYO9UVH ANV S1L30d 10 NOISIAIA



0s 0s 0s sy 0S 05 0s £S [ 8y FONVIVE ANNH DNISOTD

r4 - S (s) - - (€) - S - MOT HSYD 13N

g : : 5 : : € : - :

- - - UIHLIO TV
8 - S € - SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIHONUd
- - - SILLITLLN

AALLVYISINIWGY ANV TVHINTD

SAUTIOVL ANV SONIQTING

- S1I43NIF ANV SADTAYIS TANNOSYId
SANNd 40 IsSn

o1 T s T = - z = g -
- = - - - = Y3IHIO TV
(1) 4 - S - - - = - S STVLANTY ALTTIOVH
SANN4 40 S32UN0S
F:32 0% S 08 0s 0S €S €8 8v 8% FONVIVE ANNd DNINIdO
IvioL NVL 33d AON o0 1435 5nv TNt NAC AV
(5,000 $)

8T0TC ‘T€ AMVNNVL OL ZTO0Z ‘T AV
dNOZ 3aViL NOIFUO4 -MOTd HSVYD 40 INIWILVLS

SYOFUVH ANV SL3O0d 40 NOISIAIQ



TIT €T 95T orT GeT 60T Z6 iz (41 £PT FONVIVE ANNd ONISOTD

St L1 91 ST 91 LT ST r) (@ a1 MO'1d HSVYD 13N

6TT Z 4 3 Z 4 € 29 (112 3

- - - - - = - - - - HIHL0 TV
j 4 4 4 € 4 4 € 4 @ 3 SIDIAYIS TYNOISS3H0Ud
= - - - - - = - - - SALILN

- - - JALLVILSINIWAY ANV V43N
- - - S3LLINIOV4 ANV SONIATINg

- - S1I43IN3E ONY SIDIAYIS TINNOSHI

86 - - - - - - 09 8¢ - aanssI SNYOT MaN
SANNd 40 3Isn

¥otr 6T 8T 8T 8T 6T 8T 8T 81 8T

- E = - E - - - - - SANNd a3¥3153ndD3s

[3¢]
—
t
i
'
—t
L}
t
'
—

JONVIVE NN -IWODNI LSTUTLINI

3
58]
[¥a}
LN
%3]
LN
LN

Ly
w
T

SNVYOT-JIWODNI LSTUFLNI

LTIT €1 €T €T €T cT €T €1 €T &1 SINIWAVCIY NYOT

SANN4 40 SADAUNOS

8¢T 991 orT SCT 60T Z6 Y74 1 EVT 8¢T IONVYIVE ANN4 ONINIdO
IVIOL NVT J3d AON 150 1435 5NV ant NN AV

(s.000 $)

8T0T ‘TE AYVNNVCL OL £T0Z ‘T AVI
NVO1T ONIATOAIY -MOTd HSVD 40 INIWILVIS
SYOFGUYVH ANV S130d 10 NOISIAIA



- £T0T ‘ST AV
. _.,.mwa_H._.mm__Z SA0LDIVIA 40 auvod

LT0T ‘'TE HOUVIN
NOILVYLSINIWAVY LNIWdOTIAIA DIWONOD3I

dHL OL ONITId TVNNNV-IW3S

dNNd NVYO1 DNIATOATY




SANN4 g3¥3153aND3S S3aNT0X3 (»)

(%) WAWINIIW

NOILVITIONOD3Y 3SVd 1VL1IdVD

V&) ¥0 (€6 T VA4 7 %0'SZ INOFY
% NOILYDI190
: $S30X3
ol o e _ (%)
£18 'Sz 4759 g8 56 1’68 3svd 4T 40 % Y SY
; JONYIVE LNINAND
asvdg
SpTT £511 85T1 o1 1 VL) 6LTT IVLIdVD TVLOL
£t £v £ Sb - - SANN4 @3Y3LSIN0IS
20z €42 78¢ 8.1 0s 871 TVLIdVD ONDIIOM
MNVE LNIAIAOHd
-IONV1VE aNnd
006 L£8 e/ 6£6 LTT'T 150'1 wz&mﬁmmwmmm
SNYO140
LNNOWY LNIHIND
NOILLNAIYLSIq
DNIANNd
v10T a10¢t ST0Z 910z 9102 £102
0€1d3s TEUVW  ogjd3s TEUYW  0gld3s  Te ¥y
40 SV 40 SV 40 SV 10 sv 05y 40 sv
(s,000 $)

dNN4d NVOT DNIATOATY

™~
Ao

(65£)

|

[~}
™
@0

NOILJIONI
WOMd LNNOWV

IALLVINWAND

ISV TVLIdVD TVLOL

3SVd TviidvD
NI 3SYIHONI L3N

@
340 NILLTYM SNYOT

SADINYIS
IALLVYLISININGY
40 1S0D

5334
YNVE ANV LNNODOV
WOdd SONINYVZ

SNYOT WOYd LSTHILINI

NOILd3IDNI IDNIS
QINUVR IWOONI

QAdVMY INVYD va3

NOILVITIONODIY
anNnd




- SHINOW XIS

(5,000 $)

$T0T ‘0€ 1Ld3sS
ONIAGN3

0T

STOT 'TE YV
ONIAN3
SHLNOW XIS

N
[
)|

D
@0
o

oo

)]

S10T ‘0f Ldas
ONIAN3

SHINOW XIS

'!

[os]
P~
P~

|

j=)
ay
o~

<t

14

9T0Z ‘TE UV
ONIGN3

SHINOHN XIS

|

|
D)
i

)|
™

il

91

9102 ‘0% 1d3s
DNIGNT

SHLINOW XIS

LN
=

=i

01

£T0T "IE HYIW
ONIAN3
SHINOW XIS

JWOONI 474 40
% V¥ SV SISN3IdX3

13N -IWODNI 4714
JALLVINWND

13N -3WOONI 474

S3ISNIIX3 WLOL.

51500 d3HLO
SADOIAYAES TYNOISSIL0Yd

AWOINI 474
Ol Q3IDUYVHD SISNIdX3
FNLLVHISINIWQY

FWODNI 47

IN3IWILVLS ISNIdX3 ANV IWOINI
dNNd NYO1 SNIATOAIY




61
4y *
9'c

0'€
T'g
¥'E
P'E
Al
0%
6%
0's
T'6
L'ET
6'%1
PLT

OT1041404d
474 40 %

(s.000 $)

ST
8T
0z
ET
LT
{43
EE
9¢g
9€
6E
(44
IS
s
96
144"
98T
€8T

ONIAONVISINO
SINNOWY
JALLVINWND

474

NYWHIHSIH IBINVA
INOYLL

YANLIFLS

AT3HO4

NMOYE

INNDOW

ANTMYd

A3SIFH

INTTOdWYD
JIDNIYIG
T100S1dd
SANIHSIH WL
HO134

34800

NOSSYM

HOIFT AANIM

JT1 'NAIOYYD 133MS
"0D ONIHSIH 9v1 YOvig
INODYYI

D77 “INTUVIN ONDA
4315907 399
3AI¥d Nv3D0

AINVdIDILYYd

(99) ALIALLDV NYOT L3N

(99) (SNOIYVA) AIvd3y SNVO

g (M3N) a3anssI SNVO1
INNOWY

TVdIDONIYd aoIdid JHL YOd ALIAILDVY NVO1

- 001

- 00C

- 00¢

- 00b

- 00S

- 009

FINGIHIS ALTINLYIN NVOT4TH

ONIANV1ISLNO SIDNVIVd NVO1
dNNd NVO1 DNIATOATY

(5,000 )




z U

\
>
AS

T

55 international Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801

TERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Preston:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorize the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with New
England Seacoast Region Chapter 225 of the Experimental Aircraft
Association (EEA) at Skyhaven Airport for the purpose of staging and
hosting EAA 225 Young Eagle Flight Rally events through December 31,
2017; all in accordance with the memorandum from Paul E. Brean, Airport
Director, dated May 10, 2017, and attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\ROE EEA 0517.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE



36 Airline Ave., Portsmouth, NH 03801
603.433.6536

MANAGEMENT

Memorandum

To:  David R. Mullen, Executive Director /BA/\/

From: Paul E. Brean, Airport Director @,}
Date: 5/12/2017
Subj: Experimental Aircraft Association (E.A.A.) Skyhaven “Right of Entry”

The Experimental Aircraft Association (E.A.A.) Chapter 225 based at Skyhaven Airport
is requesting a “Right of Entry” for use of Skyhaven Airport, Rochester NH to host
E.A.A. Young Eagle Flight Rallies. A rally consists of aviation activities including
flight operations that introduce children and young adults to aviation. Events are
scheduled for Saturday, June 10. 2017 and Saturday October 7, 2017. E.A.A. will
provide insurance coverage to Pease Development Authority prior to each event.

I request that you seek Board of Directors approval at the May18, 2017 meeting, to
approve “Right of Entry” for the use of Skhaven Airport for E.A.A. Chapter 225 to host
the scheduled Young Eagle Flight Rallies. Pease Airport Management will require
proof of insurance for each rally. Attached is a copy of the written request from E.A.A.

Chapter 225.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.




EAA Chapter 225

c/o Gerard Peterson
523 Ridge Road
Middleton, NH 03887

T (603) 512-2356

loldeagle@gmail.com
http://www.225.eaachapter.org

September 9, 2015

Andrew Pomeroy

Pease Development Authority
36 Airline Drive

Portsmouth, NH 03801

RE: EAA 225 Right of Entry

Dear Andrew,

EAA Chapter 225 based on Skyhaven Airport, Rochester, NH is seeking a “Right of Entry” to hold
EAA Young Eagle Flight Rallies at Skyhaven Airport during 2017. Our schedule has EAA 225 holding
events on Saturday June 10 and Saturday October 7 as sanctioned EAA Young Eagle Flight Rallies. Our
EAA Young Eagle Flight Rallies generally begin at 8:00 am with registration and mini ground school for
participants with followup fights commencing around 8:30 am. In the past, though rare, due to rain, our
event may run on the following Sunday. The flights run from 8:30 am to 4:00 pm on the days that they are
held. We would also request to have 1 week in advance of the rally for set up of signage and sufficient time
for the maintenance personnel to mow the grass between the FBO and the hangar used for General
Aircraft Maintenance, and repositioning of the aircraft normally tied down in that area.

We will contact your office prior to each scheduled event with proper insurance coverage as we

have procured our insurance from EAA Risk Management in Oshkosh, WL

As in the past we would like to hold a Pancake Breakfast and BBQ Lunch fund raiser in
conjunction with the Flight Rallies. All proceeds from this portion of out event benefit our Annual
Aviation Scholarship program. If you need any additional information please contact us at your earliest

convenience by phone or email.

Sincerely yours,

Gerard Peterson
EAA 225 NH Young Eagle Coordinator

cc, Peter Bruckner, member of SAAC



55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with the New
England Aerobatic Club for the purpose of holding airplane aerobatic
practice at Skyhaven Airport through December 31, 2017; all in accordance
with the memorandum from Paul E. Brean, Airport Director, dated May 10,

2017, and attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\ROE NEAC 0517.docx

O00O TAKING YOU THERE



36 Airline Ave., Portsmouth, NH 03801
603.433.6536

MANAGEMENT

Memorandum

To:  David R. Mullen, Executive Director KPM
From: Paul E. Brean, Airport Directo

Date: 5/12/2017
Subj: New England Aerobatic Club “ROE” Skyhaven Airport

The New England Aerobatic Club, Chapter 35 is requesting a “Right of Entry” for use
of Skyhaven Airport, Rochester NH. Similar to years past the New England Aerobatic
Club would like to conduct aerobatic practice sessions. All flight activity will be in
accordance with a Certificate of Authorization from the Federal Aviation
Administration (F.A.A.). Insurance will be provided by the Experimental Aircraft

Association for each practice session.

I request that you seek Board of Directors approval at the May18, 2017 meeting, to
approve “Right of Entry” for the use of Skyhaven Airport for the New England
Aerobatic Club. Pease Development Authority will require proof of insurance for each
aerobatic session and will request a copy of the Certificate of Authorization from the
F.A.A.. Attached is a copy of the written request from the New England Aerobatic

Club.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.

R T

INNN TN e a s 6w Nr oo~ a1



Farrell Woods MAY 01 2017

162 Bush Hill Rd.
Hudson, NH 03051-4403
(603) 801-0276

To:

Ms. Marie Aleksy

Pease Development Authority
S5International Drive
Partsmouth, NH 03801

Dear Ms. Aleksy,

On behalf of the New England Aerobatic Club, aka IAC Chapter 35, | am requesting from PDA a
“Right of Entry” for the use of the Sky Haven Airport, Rochester NH. The New England
Aerobatic Club would like to conduct a small number of aerobatic practice sessions this year;
the dates of these sessions are yet to be determined at this time.

As in the past we will fly in accordance with a Certificate of Authorization from the FAA,
Portland ME FSDO. We will obtain insurance for each practice from the Experimental Aircraft
Association, the terms of which we’ve worked out in the past, and we will supply a copy to PDA

for approval prior to each practice.

| will look forward to receiving PDA’s Right of Entry document and the Chapter will look forward
to flying at Rochester once again this year.

Thank you and best regards,
Farrell Woods,
President, New England Aerobatic Club



u
>
EAS

-<
ZIEm

s N -

MEMORANDUM
To:  Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director ’ﬂ‘\/
Date: May 18, 2017
Re:  Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and KAT Implants, LLC

In accordance with the Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease
Agreements adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA has
approved of a sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership (“222ILP”) and KAT
Implants, LLC (“KAT”) for 4,042 square feet for a period of seven years effective September 1,
2017. KAT will use the premises for office and light industrial use.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

“A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease;

pL The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on
222ILP’s continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the

PDA/200ILP Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director

Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PATWOINTLA222 International\Board memos\BoardmemKATImplants 051817.docx

OO0O0OC) TAKING YOU THERE

35 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801



MEMORANDUM
To:  Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <"

Date: May 18, 2017

Re:  Sublease between Two International Group, LLC and Primmer Piper Eggleston and
Cramer, PC

In accordance with the Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease
Agreements adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA has
approved of a sublease between Two International Group, LLC (“TIGLLC”) and Primmer Piper
Eggleston and Cramer, PC (“Primmer”) for 3,176 square feet for a period of five years and two
months effective September 1,2017. Primmer will use the premises for office and related uses.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

“A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

L. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease; '

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and .

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

Conditions one through three have been met. " As to condition four, PDA relies on
TIGLLC’s continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the

PDA/TIGLLC Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director; Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director

Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PATWOINTL\2 International\Board Memos\BoardmemPrimmer 051817.docx

OO00O0 TAKING YOU THERE

55 International Drive, Porlsmouth, NH 03801



>\

55 international Drive, Porisnmouth, NH 03801

=0

o
z
>

lw}
»m
c<
—-l:'_“_ =
T z
o°|»
N-U -
-2
= m
<z

~l -

MOTION

Director Torr:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of the Concept Plan submitted by 119 International Drive, LLC
attached hereto for the premises located at 19 Rye Street, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire; all on terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of
Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated May 12, 2017, attached

hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Concept Plan 0517.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE



>\
rm

NATIONAL
LOPMENT
HORITY
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director /)”A/ .
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager ﬂaﬁ,&ﬁu
Date: May 12, 2017
Subject: 19 Rye Street Concept Plans

Attached are concept plans submitted by 119 International Drive, LLC (119 International) for
abuilding at 19 Rye Street. The building will be 29,718 square feet on two floors, 14,859 square
feet each, and replaces the former base chapel located on this site. The developer anticipates
an office use and the tenant will be the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human

Services (NHDHHS).

The site plan shows the general layout of the building, parking, traffic circulation and
stormwater management areas. Based on the information provided, the proposal seems
feasible. As further progress is made on the design, we will be looking for additional
information regarding the wetlands to the east of the proposed building and how earthwork
operations will be managed to avoid impacts to the wetlands and their associated buffer.
Another issue that will need to be addressed is the management of snow on the site. There is
very little area for snow storage and some type of agreement may be required to remove snow

offsite.

During Site Review staff will work with the developer to resolve these concerns without
significantly changing the conceptual layout. If this is not possible, the applicant will be
required to come back to the Board for conceptual approval of a redesign. This decision will

be made upon review of the engineered drawings.

As a condition to the approval, staff recommends that PDA and 75 New Hampshire, LLC, an
affiliate of 119 International, document the obligation of 75 New Hampshire, LLC to commence
the demolition of the building at 50 International Drive, the present home of NHDHHS, within

six months of occupancy of the new building.

At the meeting next week, please ask the Board for conceptual approval of the 19 Rye Street
plans on the terms set forth above.

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2017\19 Rye concept.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

SN/

A5 intermational Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801



Teflerman Zey 1000 (Ck ((08) My 2SI~ Ih nnDn_lI-

0 HH “ensunis ‘tach g peorensi oot
wy  DUJTSDIB{I0SSY

(]

< Jauue] ‘I)A

L10Z 'O AW

W oor e yaup |
{1334 n )

TIVIS DIHIVYUD

s,.z e P
BNkiHS soook |8 5350003 b NOLLONYLSNOD ¥O4 10N
ONIdVOSONYT =) AN3N3AVd
@ v B e NY1d TWNLdIONOD
3LONOD oNIgung
sowum ] Azows [ oowe 1328 3y 08 a0 313 any !
INFHLYIRL ALIONOD oNIgINg g HLNOWSI1H0G 40 411D 0L \
MILVMNNOLS SHILSIX3 D SNUSIXa O D TS0 S e
3 o
anaoat ,
- - - - L..l -7 S z%_._xwm_ﬁﬁm lllllllll STYMIAS ONOD 3aM N\\ H - -
3 P JILYMAEOLS — - NIUTTHD HOTS. ) —.0—8 0350d0Ud
B 334l 133US il )
H MIYMIOIS "ONDD 3aW QALYI0TTY Y onand 14 09
[ o oasoddud— ® S MY I LTFIHLS [T
] = — = =t cr = z
~ e =T SIS N
# ErOLIE S Sm———

LN3NS0TIAIO 33VE 30M0I HIV 35¥Id HOYJ INUSIXIs

£6'v) %16 (Iv 0¥7) 45T
{as zo1) (95 091}
W 14 06 M 13 &8
S30VdS § S30Yds ¢
$30vds 8t SA0VAS &
10vds 0z¢ SIOVS SOF
L3 BTt L 00k
14 691 130G}
«14 5L 11 008
14 2°€0Z 14 008
14 608 14 008
+13 507 13 002
L3 S¥Ty “L4 0002
OV 6504 ¥ 00
JFANOH EIEE]

“30vdS N3dO

“SNOISN3NIA TIVLS
SONOIHYd INEISSITIVY NVA
‘ONDIYYd T18ISS300Y
SONDINYS

HOVEL3S INIMYYY ¥VIY
SHOVELIS ONDIYYd QIS
“HOYELIS ONIMYd LNOYS
SHOVALIS QuvA ¥Y3Y
HOVALIS QYVA 3a1S
AIVALIS QUVA LNOUS
39VINOYd 101

AWV 101

NOILLYINORY

SINIWIHINDIY TYNOISNIWIA

ILISNG SONYL3M SNONILLNOD
NON 40 S3H0V 8'0 J3INNSSYe

OF'T = %X6T X 656 'GDIY N3JO
Wo= 30VdS N30 GNYTLIM
65'6 = V3IYY_QNVIIN IVI0L
£ot = 3ZIs 107 Lol

(ov o1'Z) 45 008'ts

3 T = 9/6 VL0l 40 9 ¥3d 1
Q034 6 = SINAS 00S O lo¥

S3DVIS £o¥ = 0IUINOIN WLOL
WS 681 = 45 002/°9S 91L'LT
YOO SSOUI “5'S 007/30VdS |
01340 SSINSNA) LIFYIS IAY 61

\IOVAS GBI = INNUVL ONISIXT
LTS 34¥ 61

SIOVIS 89 = ONINNVI INILSIXI
TYNOLLYNYZINI 611

A4S BIL'LE = VLol

4'S 66B'¥l = INI¥dLOOA

LT X L

13341 Y 61

IVIOUINAOO/ BSINISNE 140UV
(S3u0v 6E°0L) 5 9op'ESy

¥ 107 SOE avr XvL

L0E0 HN HLAOWSLYO

3ATIQ TYNOLLYNYILNF 611

L0BE0 HN “HLNOWSLYOJ

UBS “INN3AY JUIHSAMYH MIN L
SNOYD TIWNOLYNYIALHI OML 0/
971 “1334Is MY 6L

L08£0 HN ‘HLNOWSLYOd
3AING WNOLLYNYILN) S5
LLIJOHLNY LNINJOT13A30 3SVIS

00 30YdS N3O %L
THONVENNUSIA 0 VIV UL
SHIFSSIIOY NVA 01
ONDIYYE 3T18ISSIOOY 6

SONDRIVY g

‘SNOISNZNID OMOINE "L
ONINOZ '9

WY S

‘G107 103rans ¥

‘SS3WAAV 107 153reEns ¢

ANYONddY T

‘QHO03Y 40 YINMO L
vivd 3Lis

HN "HLNOWS LHOd
133448 FAH 64

NIQTINg 301440 .
01S € d3S0doyd

vV y0d
NVd 3LiS

ANV 3INOLSON3Id

03YINTEA SNV — 8

£ 107 SOF dVH Xvi
3AYG T VIOSHOD ¥1L—F01
ANINDQTI3A3Q HIINOIG
ARIINIOS HO HON

WHIN2D
AUYYOGHDD.
ONIQUNG AINSE

o)

xS

0¥ D/

3 #2918 N/,SCISH

L 107 SoC oVA XviI

A0 21 7800507 \
ALBOHINY _ININAOT3A3D 35¥3d

LI0Z '€ AVH NO
071d 'SINVLINSNOD

1
i
= | oesSme /

FU0HT M0

60.6C §

g

Ag

]
Sy

MG LPHE N

9 107 SOC dvH XVi
JASG TYNOLWNUIINI 101
S9070I8 YZNIT
ANWINGOS HO MON

9 107 90€ oY 5
ARG TYNOLYNYZLA

»ED dNOYY INTHIPYN
235 1 INVA 070
(Ve | 971 X0ouFUSW
owm,m A0S HO M
wen EEere

3 W=

63 wa 1N 221

St

z Folad

1
1

33134 ¥NIT NIVHD




a<‘ TN AV IN WV IV IN WS B IN T W AN @1
_ w

SHHQ yim pezileuy oq 0}
S[ELSIBW PUE SI0]00 108X

BlON

SI00(Q AQUT / SMOPUIAA ©1MDId

[BLIBIB)N 9SBg Moug I

uondo J1ojoD) |pued [BleN

% M} ovZEs

uondo [eusiel\ sS4
:UONBULIOMU| 8peoE 1da0ouo)

(199415 ©AY 18 1U0Id) uoneAs|d yiNos Buiping SHHQ pesodold

e
e

v oz o

podepe)| asesd HN UINOWSHO4 18041 Ay A1



nlANE

suoneAs|3 bulpjing
SHH Pasodold

A8y UONBAS|T

e

== aon

LA 3 = NOUVYAID LS¥a 4350408

O NOIVATE HINOS JE040%




2%

55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

TERNATIONAL
VELOPMENT

UTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
FROM: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <=~
RE: Contract Reports

DATE: May 18,2017

e ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok oK sk ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok ok o ok sk e skolok sk ok ok sk itk ek sk ksk ok ok sk sk skok sk kokok stk ok sk dokok ok R ok sRorRokok dokok
In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following:

b Project Name: Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services

PDA Obligation: $4,850.00

Board Authority: Treasurer Allard
Summary: For the review of operations of the Pease Golf Course and providing

an assessment

2. Project Name: MTE Turf Equipment Solutions

PDA Obligation: $7,765.00
Board Authority: Vice-Chairman Loughlin
Summary: For the purchase and delivery of one Turfco Tow behind debris

blower for use at the Pease Golf Course

3. Project Name: Tec Solutions Concepts, Inc.

PDA Obligation: $4,000.00
Board Authority: Vice-Chairman Loughlin
Summary: For the purchase and installation of the CyberKey electronic key

system at the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease

PABOARDMTG\Contractrpt 0517.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE



B S

Colliers

INTERNATIONAL

April 17,2017

To: Mr. David Mullen

Executive Director

Pease Development Authority
RE:  Consulting Services
Dear David:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist the Pease Development Authority (PDA)
in the review of the business functions at Pease Golf Course. We look forward to seeing the significant
investment the PDA has made into the golf course, offer an assessment of the current state of the business
and what actions can be made to further enhance the profitability of the club.

Outlined below is a brief overview of the services we could anticipate performing at Pease Golf Course
during this initial Assessment Period, however additional services are available for future discussion.

SERVICES:

Management and Staffing — Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services will review all existing
personnel, evaluating their individual abilities and customer service skills. Our team will work
with the PDA and onsite management to set forth the new expectations for the facility, and offer

job descriptions to achieve those expectations.

Facility Operations — Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services will systematically evaluate each
specific revenue center currently utilized at the property making comparisons to customary results
at similar facilities and industry benchmark standards. Further our team will recommend
programs and policies that will both improve the efficiency of the operation as well as maximize
facility revenue.

Agronomic Programs — Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services will review the existing
agronomic programs as well as the labor usage currently in effect at the course. Improvements
and/or modifications to these programs will be recommended to ersure course patrons are
presented with the best-conditioned course for its value within the market always.

Market Analysis — In conjunction with facility operations and golf maintenance
recommendations, Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services will conduct an analysis of the local
competitive golf market. Competitive facilities are nieasured against Pease Golf Course in terms
of price, location, services as ‘well as overall course conditioning. We would then recommend a
strategy and action plan on how to best position the facility based on these findings to maximize

revenue potential.

Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services
1801 Market Street, Suite 500 o Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103 « 717.554.8519



REPORT PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION:

Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services will schedule a mutually agreeable time to visit the property and
review the existing business operations as well as-meet with Pease Golf Course and Pease Development
Authiority personnel. Within 60 days from the execution of this agreement, Colliers Golf Course Advisory
Services will present a draft presentation of our findings. Based on feedback of the Draft Assessment,
revisions may be made before a final electronic copy as well as a printed final report shall be prepared for

preseritation and distribution, if desired.

TERMS / CONDITIONS / FEES:

Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services will propose to provide the research, time, and intellectual
property to consult on the above services for the sum of Four Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty Dollars

($4,850 USD), in accordance with the following payment schedule:
Upon Agreement Execution $2,850.00

Upon Presentation of Final Report $2,000.00

In addition to the above fee structure — Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services would also request the
reimbursement of all reasonable travel expenses as defined by the Internal Revenue Services (i.e: standard
mileage reimbursement, airfare, rental car, enteitainment, hotel and other incidental expenses). Travel
expenses shall not exceed one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500) and is based on two visits to
Portsmouth from Philadelphia, two nights lodging and meals while fulfilling this site review.

ACCEPTANCE:

David, thank you again for the continued opportunity to partner with the Pease Development Authority
for the betterment of not only Pease Golf Course, but the entire Portsmouth community. I will follow up
with you in the coming week. In the interim if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact
me at 717.554.8519 or via email at allen.depity@eolliers.com. We look forward to getting started!

Your signature below indicates acceptance of this proposal and its terms. This proposal is accepted and
forms an agreement between Pease Development Authority and Colliers Golf Course Advisoty Services.

ON BEHALF OF PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Name = Bavid Mulley), Exegutive Director
Date: ,4/, 25/ 72

Al N

Title — Allen DePuy — Vice President — Golf & Leisure Properties
Date: March 31,2017

Colliers Golf Course Advisory Services
1801 Market Street, Suite 500 » Philadelphia, Penrisylvania 19103 o 717.554.8519



m
>
m

55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director < &L

From: Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager

Date: April 25,2017

Subject: Request to purchase Debris Blower

This is a request to purchase a Turfco Torrent 2 Tow Behind Debris Blower. The funds have been
reserved in the FY2017 capital plan. The purchase is under $10,000 and three separate quotes were

requested to determine the most favorable pricing.

e Turfco Torrent 2 $7,765.00
e Toro Pro Forec $7,059.67
e Buffalo Turbine $8,324.61

The Turfco is not the lowest price provider however it is the only unit with a variable chute control
feature, has the fastest chute rotation maximizing in use efficiency, and is the quietest running unit
available. Given these unique options staff recommends purchasing the Turfco Torrent 2 Debris

Blower.

Thank you for your consideration.

O0O0OO TAKING YOU THERE



Turf Equipment Solutions, Www.mte.us.com
q\

BillTo:

118 Lumber Lane
Tewksbury, MA 01876
Phone: (978) 654-4240
Fax: (585) 334-6332

‘Pease Golf Course (580582) | |, -

‘E.J. Shea

i200 Grafton Drive

‘Portsmouth NH 03801

QUOTE

Quote: 03-23959 PO:
Date: 2/23/2017 - Custld: PEASE GC

Cust Email: ej.chea@peasedev.org
Phone: (603) 433-6088 x0000
Salesperson:  jhamilton

User: jhamilton

Ship To:

;'Attn: Maint
200 Grafton Drive
‘Portsmouth NH 03801 US

Quote for EJ Chea

ej.chea@peasedev.org

603-433-6088

603-235-8939 Cel
Turfco Torrent 2 with Auxiliary Control and Magna Point
Item Type Description Qty Tax Price Discount Net Price
TUR.85651 PA WG -Torrent 2 Tow Behind Blow 10000 Y  $7,428.00 $7,428.00
TUR.86198 PA WG -Blower Auxiliary Control 1.0000 Y $112.00 $112.00
TUR.86504 PA WG -Magna Point (For Torrent 2 Blower) 1.0000 Y $225.00 $225.00
Total: $7,765.00
Totals
Sub Total $7,765.00
Total Tax: $0.00
fnvoice Total $7,765.00
Balance Due: $7,765.00
Signature:

THIS QUOTE VALID FOR 30 DAYS. PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN TO EXECUTE THIS CONTRACT, PAYMENT MUST BE MADE AT OR PRIOR TO
DELIVERY. FAX: 585-334-6332 OR EMAIL: BHOLMAN@MTE.US.COM. THIS DOCUMENT CONSTITUTES A LEGAL BINDING AGREEMENT.



Tec Solutions Concepts Inc

Tec Solutions Concepts Inc
511 Sixth Ave , Suite 152 Q UOte
New York, NY, NY 10011

03/10/2017 | 11801

 (212)732-4658
eric@tecsolutionsinc.com
http://www.tecsolutionsinc.com

Ed Pottberg

Portsmouth International Airport
36 Airline Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801 USA

256.00 1,024.00

03/10/2017|TSCL-SF03  [Best, small format IC core

03/10/2017 |TSCK-IR7C Control key for TSCL-LF01 and TSCL-SF03 only, 1 104,00 104.00
replaceable battery

03/10/2017 |TSCK-RXD2  |CyberKey II, rechargeable battery, replaceable case, 19 105.00 1,995.00
USB micro port.

03/10/2017 | TCCAP-100 CyberAudit Professional software 1 1,100.00 1,100.00

03/10/2017 |Shipping Estimated shipping cost, i 30.00/ ° 30.00

Accepted By Accepted Date




AR~
PSM {}; DAY

36 Airline Ave. Parlsmouth; NH 63801

AIRPO R T . _ He 4
MANAGEMENT 603.433.6536

Memo

To: Andrew Pomeroy, C.M., Airport Operations Manager

»L,

C.C.: Dave R. Mullen, Executive Director

From: [EdPottberg, C.M., ACE, Airport Security Coordinator

Date: 3/21/2017

Re: Efectronic Key System

Andrew,

[ am writing this memo to request the purchase of an electronic key system to feplace
Pease Development Authority’s conventional key system (LAKS). The conventional key
system continues to be one of the Pease Development Authority’s weakest security
system. On average the conventional key system is. compromised once year by
someone losing a key, causing the Pease Develgpment Autherity to rekey multiple
properties. On average, the cost to rekey a single door averages around $720 per door.

Moving over to-an electronic key system the Pease Development Authority would no
longer have to rekey a door to any of its properties. When a key gaes m;ssi g the key is
taken out of the electronic key system costing the Peasé Developrnent A ty only
$100 to replace the key and a few hours to update the doar locks of the changes.

The initial cost to implement the electronic systeim would be around $4, 000 which govers
the software (ohetime fee), three locks and 20 keys. This would cover the airport
management office and one lease office in the terminal building. The system can be
expanded at any time to cover all othér Pease Developmient Authority properties
landside/airside as more parts of the conventional key system becomes compromised.
To add additional doors to the electronic system would be $266 per daor plus $104 per

key per person that need access through the door.

The airpoit management department will be loeking to charge a onetime fee to of $55 to
issue a key to individuals who are not Pease Development Authority employees and if a
key has gorie missing or when a key is not returned in good working order a $1 10 Key

replace fee will be charged to replace the lost/damage key.




55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

o}
z
>

<z
=l i

MOTION

Director Preston:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract
with Turf Products Corp. of Enfield Connecticut for the purchase of a Toro
Fairway Mower for a price not to exceed $59,981.36; in accordance with
the memorandum from Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager dated May 4,

2017 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Golf Fairway Mower 0517.docx




A4

55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY . '

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <Jade~—

From: Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager

Date: May 4, 2017

Subj ect: Request to Purchase a Fairway Mower

This is a request to purchase a Toro Fairway Mower from Turf Products Corp, 157 Moody Road,
P.O. Box 1200, Enfield, CT 06083, for a price not to exceed $59,981.36. The equipment was
advertised in April with the bid openings taking place May 2, 2017. The item is part of the FY2017
golf course capital schedule. The new fairway mower is part of the Tier IV program which
significantly reduces engine emissions, and will be replacing a 2001 unit. There was only one bid

recejved.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.




55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NMH 03801

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to:

(1) accept on behalf of the PDA for design work for the runway
reconstruction at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, a
Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA") Grant Offer of AIP
funding in the amount not to exceed $838,065.00;

(2) accept from NHDOT Division of Aeronautics an amount not to
exceed $46,555.00 for project costs;

(3) expend $106,555.00 PDA matching funds which includes a
contingency of $60,000.00;

(4) enter into a contract with Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, Inc. for
the PSM runway reconstruction project in the total amount of

$1,165,900.00;

(5) accept a grant offer for an FAA Reimbursable Agreement
associated with the project including $30,395.00 in AIP funding

from FAA;

(6) accept $1,689.00 in matching funds from NHDOT Division of
Aeronautics;

(7) expend PDA funds in an amount not to exceed $1,689.00;




(8) enter into an FAA reimbursable agreement in the amount of
$33,773.00; and

(9) execute such other documents and/or agreements as are
necessary or appropriate, to implement the PSM runway
reconstruction; all in accordance with the memorandum from
Maria J. Stowell, PE, Manager - Engineering, dated May 10, 2017

and attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Grant Offer-PSM Runway Design 0517.docx



>\

35 international Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801

TERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY .
MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director -
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Managerﬂaﬁm;/
Date: May 10, 2017
Subject: AIP Grant for Runway Design - PSM

Design, Permit, Bid: Reconstruct, Light, Sign, and Mark Runway 16-34 and Replace PAPI’s,
Windcones, Rotating Beacon

As you know, we have been working towards the reconstruction of the PSM runway so that construction can
begin in 2020. Last year, the Board approved a contract with Hoyle, Tanner & Associates (HTA) to cover work
leading up to the preparation of two grant applications that PDA submitted to FAA on April 28", The two grants
will provide resources to complete the design work. Separate grant applications are needed to comply with
FAA procedures. The larger of the two grants will cover all of HTA’s work to design, permit, and bid the project.
A smaller grant will cover FAA labor. This memo will describe the work to be accomplished under each grant
along with costs, and will request the Board approval needed to implement the project.

The design, permit, and bid grant is in the total amount of $1,265,800 and is comprised of three line items. The
first is $7500 to pay for PDA administrative costs. These include the cost of advertising for bids and the cost of
hiring a consultant to conduct an Independent Fee Estimate (IFE) of HTA’s contract amount. The second line
item being requested would reimburse PDA for the HTA contract approved last year. The work accomplished
under last year's contract included coordination with FAA, NHDOT, and NH Air National Guard (the parties
providing funding) to determine the scope of the work and the cost allocations. This involved detailed analyses
of existing conditions and extensive negotiations to determine the financial obligations of the parties. The
contract cost was $92,400. The final line item is for HTA’s contract to complete the design work for $1,165,900.

This amount can be further dissected.

The entire scope of work description with associated spreadsheets for the $1,165,800 contract is fifty-six pages
in length. Rather than attach the entire document, | will summarize the tasks and their costs here:

1. Administration includes grant related reporting, application submission, reimbursement requests, and

PIOJECE BIAAING ovoiveiveisisreisseseresiuesssssscessssassressesaes s s bacnin bt ssssseissssssns st sissssssasssns e sas ot $ 68,600
2. Design includes data collection, materials testing, aerial survey, ground survey, geotechnical

exploration, design drawings, and technical specifications ........ccu e $ 794,700
3. Airport GIS is required by FAA and will convert airport approach and departure data into GIS format

for use in FAA's airport database .. $ 109,300
4. Pavement Management System is requured by grant assurances and wnll enhance PDA’s current system

by providing customized software to track required mainteNance ... $ 54,600
5. Permitting includes the cost of permit application fees ..., $ 138,700

It should also be noted that the total amount of $1,165,900 includes $349,295 in sub consultant fees with
$108,830 contracted to DBE firms. The fee has been validated by an IFE and it is within statutory limitsimposed

on the Air National Guard,




The FAA labor grant, known as a Reimbursable Agreement grant, is to reimburse FAA for the time its employees
will take to assist the design team. FAA’s role will be to review the design for any physical or operational
changes that may impact FAA facilities. FAA Engineering Services (FAAES) group will perform the review, and

that group provided an estimate of $33,773 for the work.

As noted earlier, ANG will participate in funding the project along with FAA, NHDOT, and PDA. Last month, the
Board authorized you to complete negotiations and enter into an MCCA with ANG to secure its portion of the
funding. The following table summarizes the costs and allocated shares for each grant. This information is the

best available at this time.

$ 838,065

Adinitrtive Expses - ' S A

2016 HTA Contract 92,400 | ANG 334,625
2017 HTA Contract 1,165,900 | NHDOT 46,555
PDA 46,555

Total $1,265,800 Total $1,265,800

$33,773 $30,395

ANG 0

NHDOT 1,689

PDA 1,689

Total $33,773 Total $33,773

The cost sharing proposal is now under federal agency review. In the event that the federal review results in
shifting additional costs to PDA, | recommend requesting that the Board allocate $60,000 as a contingency.

At next week's meeting, please ask the Board to:

1. Accept a grant offer for design work for the runway reconstruction at Portsmouth International Airport
at Pease including $838,065 in AIP funding from FAA;

2. Accept $46,555 in matching funds from NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics;
3. Expend $106,555 in PDA matching funds. This amount includes a contingency of $60,000;

4. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Hoyle, Tanner & Associates in the amount
of $1,165,900.

5. Accept a grant offer for an FAA Reimbursable Agreement associated with design work for the runway
reconstruction at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease including $30,395 in AP funding from FAA;

6. Accept $1,689 in matching funds from NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics;

7. Expend $1,689 in PDA matching funds;

8. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an FAA reimbursable agreement in the amount of
$33,773.



Mor 13, 2017 = 7:260m

Drawing nome: H: \062857\dwg\Contract\052857~G103.dwg

12

- MONUMENTS SHALL NOT BE OISTURBED. IF A MONUMENT BECOMES OISTURBED
THEN THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY REPORT THE INCIDENT TO THE
RESIDENT ENGINEER.

THE TOTAL DURATION OF THE PRO!

100 CALENDAR DAYS.

Jé b \ e | *
o .M.W L “ﬁl; \ - \ N
o e
2 e ) ) _ B
~ / AL GUARD, o . B
- s \\® <y 'ﬁ ; \ z
1 , ] 2 /V / - We
2 .. e 7 h L\ ’ _. %
/ NORTH \3 v A\, ! T T [ S > \ i ,m,
: APRON = e W B 5 LLH\ ‘ "
/ < 1 el » LOCATICN OF NEW OESTRUCTION - s 3
2 . | ] LIGHT AND ELECTRIGAL FEED. V= 3
| = . = 6Ll T T == v = ARe
!
: H] : 3 : [ ey [l Y Vil a
| A { ' | | REMVAL AREAS TRaUGH GATE Vb 4
EH . ) g
; o Sp At = (1L i _ (Ea eI ) £\ s, .m.m .ma. I
- i . ATET = ] (PHASE 2 (WEST) ONLY] - amile MEHy i
4/ v o, AREA OF OBSTRUCTION ' ﬁ | [ ¥ L H e ile
N 7, REMOVAL (NORTH) ' _ "4 rmee v i . TR .
P y 4 = | 1 - . o a0 4 ‘.
&y s __A w .».K.....} | p MANAGEUGHT TERMINAL _.. i_ : [ Jncua T '
e Ra /- LOSATON OF NEW HAZARD BEACON AKD P _ ~ ] —— e or cosruoron BN o
CEM = (ELECTRICAL FEED (HEIGHT RESTRICTIONS WPE ) - mﬂ.l! REMOVAL (SOUTH, WELL
1 cr 104, L , o, AT .. 3
: : 3 SR . = . (T N Ay 4
WA o R s = e == - X /.,,/ ORI L ey [ a
cP 103 3 e o S — ——fli— 5 = 7 (
= S —— o ol
.~ . o f BN NI
/ k\ — B ACCESS TO WEST OBSTRUCTION L " APPROACH
r il i R T REMOVAL THROUGH GATE 6 A ILs 2 i
o -LIGHTS AND LOCALIZER —as4 w— (PDA GATE GUARDS REQUIRED) m = BB e
g > | oA i J) (PHASE 2 (WEST) ONL i G 2
7 3 — e = == T — — = — - — — — —— — — — e =T =S e — =t —a : . * !
o c-dem—me T — o' o GUDESLOPE CRITICAU AREA _ e, FENGE (TYP.)D —~PSM D, [T L L - 4 B =
e 5 Lk , = : / s BRI 5 .
“ \ . i N et R (R SR g i | ANTENNA o Py PE
1 / w1 f S i ==, SN ! .. AREA OF OBSTRUCTION
- ” h. E ~ REMOVAL (SOUTH, TVP.)
L e e AREA OF ommﬁmodozr o) ﬂW/J )
. \ i : REMOVAL (WEST) GOLF SN A : 0 ’ SOLF 7
L i e o casvonon TS . L i - Cotfse . AP SN (B e en A, [PHASE 3 (SOUTH)
of REMOVAL (NORTH, TYP.) S Az . = c=— '~ GLIDESLOPE CRIMCAL AREA ) b I - Y
~. e — p . T — 7] HAUL ROUTES FOR WEST OBSTRUCTION
ASE 1 (NORTH 5 ; REMOVAL AREAR. CONTRAGTON 10 SEHARS N N\
wn [ CAND FOLLOW ONLY OESIGNATED HAUL ROU
; ol s kiﬂm THE AIRFIELD FERIWETER FENCE.
v S PEVERL . Fo e WE INFIELD' P THCE, S
ﬂﬁ ﬂ.\ NO CONSTRUGTION AGGESS Y Y = 1 5 ~_. /T ame C A N
; PERMITIED OFF OF MciNTYRE N, : (WEST) . : — TRl Ty s
GREAT BAY MATIONAL ROAD DA NG S — & N, TS ~. 5 N 0
WLDLIFE REFUGE a 7 N ACCESS TO WEST 0BSTRUCTION Ry % nﬂ
.. ~ \ . - / /&4. REMOVAL AREAS THROUGH GATE B 5
P N L ¥ / SN 4 (PDA. GATE GUARD REQUIRED) z “.:/ L
A f w g | / // (PHASE 2 (WEST) ONLY) ) _ a
I & F Nt - | Al 1\ \ 7 : s
P il PHASE PROGRESSI! SORIP N
AIRFIELD CONTROL POINTS (NGS PACS AND SACS) NOTE: THIS WORK PROGRESSION IS TO BE FOLLOWED TO MINIMIZE RISK OF SPREADING INVASIVE SPECIES:
NAD 83, NAVD 88 1. REMOVING TREES AND VEGETATION IN UPLAND AND WETLAND AREAS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS; MULCHING -
2 AND COMPACTING OF SOILS, STUMPS AND ROOTS AND/OR APPLICATION OF TOPSOIL AND SEED IN AREAS 1. PHASE 1 (NORTH): INCLUDES AIRSPACE OBSTRUCTION TREE AND VEGETATION REMOVAL, GROUND
CP # [ELEV. [NORTHING JEASTING DESCRIPTION OF DRY UPLANDS (FOR AL PHASES). PREPARATION SUCH AS GRINDING STUMPS AND ROOTS; CONSTRUCTION OF AN L-864 HAZARD BEACON
PSM G |78, - = 2. CONSTRUCTION OF POWER FEEDS AND INSTALLATION OF AN L—864 HAZARD BEACON (PHASE 1 (NORTH)) Of -
SM C |78.7 208,553.13 | 1,211,036.74 | NG5 PAD "PSW C' FID: AHBE7Y AND AN L~B10 OBSTRUGTION LIGHT (PHASE 3 (SQUTH). 2. % INCLUDES AIRSPACE OBSTRUCTION TREE AND VEGETATION REMOVAL, GROUND
PSM.O {76.7 | 211,991.78 | 1,205,00535 | NoS SAC “FEN D° POy AHBATS P OH AS GRINDING STUMPS AND RODTS N .
- 3. PHASE_J (SQUTH): INCLUDES AIRSPACE OBSTRUCTION TREE AND VEGETATION RE! OVAL, GROUND
ISz |834 | 206,347.51 | 1.213467.58 | NGS SAG s 2 13712° Pib: AHBETZ PREPARATION SUCH AS GRINDING STUMPS AND RUOTS; CONSTRUGTION OF AN L-810 OBSTRUGTION LIGHT
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION SAFETY AND PHASING NOTES TOWER AND POWER FEED
1. ANY CHANGES YO THE CONSTRUCTION SAFETY AND PHASING PLAN MUST BE SUBMITTED IN WRIING AND
AIRFIELD _CONTROL POINTS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER, THE PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND THE FEDERAL AVIATION
CONTRACTOR SHALL VALIDATE HORIZONTAL AND ADMINISTRATION  (FAA). _~ 3 uomq:" aumﬁm (INCLUDING HAZARD BEACON AND POWER FEED)
VERTICAL DATUM_OF THESE CONTROL POINTS IF USED) 2 - TR0
. THE CONTRAGTOR SHALL NOT AT ANY TIME DRIVE ON ARFIELD AIRGRAFT PAVEMENTS QR WITHIN ANY . SOUTH: 35 INGLUDING OBSTRUCTION LIGHT AND POWER FEED
CP # |ELEV. |NORTHING [EASTING DESCRIPTION RUNWAY SAFETY AREAS (RSA), TAXIWAY SAFETY AREAS (TSA), RUNWAY PROTECTION ZOMES (RPZ), OR g, fsoumk OAYS ToNtieH R )
101 56.09 | 212,761.99 | 1,213,665.77 | PDA 379-0890 NAVIGATIONAL MDY (MAVAID) CRITICAL AREA, AND SHALL REMAMN OMNLY ON DESIGNATED HAUL ROUTES AS FIE
102 19276 | 215,912.60 | 1,207,044.69 | PK NAIL : 1. NORTH: NO CLOSURES, ALL WORK IS OFF AIRFORT. HEIGHT RESTRICTIONS APPLY PER PLANS
10310142 | 217,390.92 | 1,206,80088 | ANG DISK "DEGREE 35 3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FUR MEETING ALL APPLICABLE Fih AND AIRPORT REGULATIONS 2. WEST: WO CLOSURES, WORK IS OFF AIRPORT BUT HAUL ROUTE 15 ON-AIRFORT, OUTSIDE OF ALL SAFETY
noﬁgzaﬂvﬂ;ﬂgﬁngg.gginEngamrga%a AREAS, DUTSIDE TAXIWAY OBJECT FREE AREAS AND OUTSIDE OF ALL NAVMD CRITICAL AREAS.
104 }107.82 | 217,075.46 | 1,207,844.05 | PK NAIL : THE AOA THROUGH THE GATES IN THE PERIMETER FENCE. NO OPENING WITHM THE FEMCE LINE THAT 3. S00TH: NO ELGSURES. ALL WORK 15 GFF MRFoRT HEIGHT RESTRICTIONS AFPLY PER PLANS
105 [10249 | 215,17.43 | 1,208,462.11 | DRILL HOLE IN SIGN BASE e aecees 10 THE AGA SHALL BE LEFT UNATTENDED. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
SECURITY ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE ARFORT, WHO WILL PROVIDE GATE GUARDS FOR GATES #1 AND 4 PHASE RESTRICTIONS:
— Ewyoﬂﬂaznimﬁscaxuiﬂpﬂﬁu«@g;ﬂoﬁ,ﬂﬁgﬁﬂhzﬁ. !
PR 1 il e e i § SRS SR IS T e resony 1 ompines o
2. Of AREAS IOR ISSION IS OBTAINED FROM THE AIRPORT
1 COORDINATES BASED ON NAD 83 NH STATE PLANE GOORDINATES. 4. AUL AIRCRAFT OPERATIONAL AREAS WILL REMAIN OPEN AND ARE NOT AFFECTED @Y THIS PROJECT. 3. UNLESS PRIOR PERMISSION IS GIVEN BY THE AIRPORT, CONCURRENT WORK ON THE TWO OIFFERENT

PHASES IS PROHIBITED.

(4] 600 1500 3Jooo

1"=600"

!

B0 Deow Spoet

PROJECT DESIGNER
L SO PR NORA,

oxE |

TE

REMOVE AIRSPACE 0BSTRUCTIONS
AND RONSTRIICT ORSTRUCTION fIAUTS

[N}

OESCRIPTIOR

B

3
3
g




55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Bohenko:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to:

(1) accept on behalf of the PDA a Federal Aviation Administration
("FAA") Grant Offer of AIP funding equal to 90% of the project costs, in the
amount not to exceed $1,017,000.00, for removal of airspace obstructions
and construction of obstruction lights at Portsmouth International Airport

at Pease;

(2) accept from NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics 5% of the project
costs in an amount not to exceed $56,500.00;

(3) expend PDA funds equal to 5% of the project costs in an amount
not to exceed $56,500.00;

(4) enter into a contract with Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, Inc. for
construction phase engineering services for the project in the total amount

of $197,200.00; and

(5) enter into a contract with Pine Hill Construction, LLC for the
project construction in an amount not to exceed $824,786.00; all in
accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, PE, Manager -
Engineering, dated May 9, 2017 and attached hereto. |

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Grant Offer-Airport Obstruction 0517.docx




A4

TERNATIONAL 35 international Drive, Portsmouth, NH 33801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director —2*"~"
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager Wi
Date: May 9, 2017
Subject: Grant to Remove Airspace Obstructions and Construct Obstruction Lights at

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease

PDA had previously received Airport Improvement Program (AIP) funds to design a project to
remove airspace obstructions and construct obstruction lights at Portsmouth International
Airport at Pease. The project, designed by Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, Inc. (HTA) will remove
airspace obstructions and increase the visibility of the approach light system for pilots. The
design is now completed and the project has been bid. This memo is to seek Board approval for
actions to accept anticipated grant funding and complete construction.

Bids were opened on April 11, 2017 with four contractors submitting bids. A bid tabulation is
attached. The low bidder was Pine Hill Construction, LLC (Pine Hill) with a price of $ 824,786.00.
The contractor appears qualified to complete this work at Portsmouth International Airport. Staff

therefore, recommends this award.

In addition to the bid price, the grant funding, includes the costs of construction phase
engineering services to be provided by HTA, and sponsor (PDA) administration and force account

costs. These are itemized here:

Pine Hill Construction, LLC $ 824,786.00
Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, Inc. ~ $ 197,200.00
Sponsor Administration Costs $ 92,414.00

Sponsor Force Account $§ 15,600.00
Total $1,130,000.00

If a grant is offered, FAA will support 90% of the total and NHDOT will provide 5%. PDA is
obligated to cover the remaining 5%. The costs will be allocated as follows:




FAA (90%) $1,017,000.00

NHDOT (5%) $  56,500.00
PDA (5%) $  56500.00

Total $1,130,000.00

Staff expects to have the available grant funds within three months, with the goal of starting the
project in August 2017.

With regard to the scope of work, the Board should be made aware that the project consists of
the removal of roughly 25 acres of trees and vegetation that are obstructing airspace and
visibility of the approach light system by pilots. The majority of these areas will be areas
converted from forest to meadow on the North, South, and West sides of the airport. Also

included is the construction of two high mast obstruction lights, poles, foundations and electrical
services, one on the south end of the airport and one on the north end of the airport.

At next week's Board meeting, please seek approval in connection with the Removal of Airspace
Obstructions and Construction of Obstruction Lights at Portsmouth International Airport at

Pease, to:

1. Accept from the FAA, through the AIP, up to $1,017,000.00 (90% of project costs} in
AIP Funds;

2. Accept from NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics up to $56,500.00 (5% of project costs) in
matching funds;

3. Expend up to $56,500.00 (5% project costs) of PDA funds;
4. Enter into a contract with Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, Inc. for $197,200.00; and,

5. Enterinto a contract with Pine Hill Cdnstruction, LLC in an amount not to exceed
$824,786.00

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2017\PSM Obstructions and Lighting.docx



Removal Airspace Obstructions and Construction Obstruction Lights
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Bid Tabulation

Firm

Project Total

Pine Hill Construction, LLC

$824,786.00

Comprehensive Land Technologies, Inc.

$874,052.85

Northeast Earth Mechanics, Inc.

$1,058,150.00

Sargent Corporation

$1,077,566.00

Engineer’s Estimate

$1,170,639.03




N
7
PEAS

NAT
DEVELOPMEN
AUTHORITY

55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

il L

MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to:

(1)  accept on behalf of the PDA a Federal Aviation Administration
("FAA") Grant Offer of AIP funding equal to 90% of the project
costs, in the amount not to exceed $353,700.00, for design
work for the Terminal improvement planning at Portsmouth

International Airport at Pease;

(2) accept from NHDOT Division of Aeronautics 5% of the project
costs in an amount not to exceed $19,650.00;

(3) expend PDA funds equal to 5% of the project costs in an amount
not to exceed $19,650.00;

(4) enter into a contract with McFarland Johnson, Inc. for the PSM
Terminal planning project in the total amount of $389,900.00;

and

(5) execute such other documents and/or agreements as are
necessary or appropriate, to implement the PSM Terminal
improvement planning; all in accordance with the
memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, PE, Manager - Engineering,
dated May 8, 2017 and attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Grant Offer-PSM Terminal Planning 0517.docx




IN 55 Intarnational Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801

MEMORANDUM
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director ~@4&~—"

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manage.q/ .' p
Date: May 8, 2017
Subject: AIP Grant for Terminal Planning - PSM

In response to the increase in enplanements at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease and its impact on the
terminal, PDA has submitted an application to the FAA for funds to study the facility’s needs and recommend a plan
for improvements. It is proposed that the study be done by McFarland Johnson, one of PDA’s on-call airport

consultants.

Late last year, PDA and McFarland Johnson met with FAA and NHDOT to discuss the scope of work needed for such
astudy. The attached document was produced as a result of that meeting. It describes, in detail, the work needed
to look at medium and long term needs to accommodate both domestic and international carriers. You will see that
Fennick McCredie, an architectural firm with previous experience with the terminal, will participate. The study team
will be looking at items such as ticketing, screening, baggage handling, concessions, departure and arrival areas, and

international arrivals processing.

The grant application requests funding to cover McFarland Johnson’s fee of $389,900 and PDA administrative costs
of $3,100 for a total of $393,000. As required by FAA procedures, McFarland Johnson'’s fee proposal was validated
through an Independent Fee Estimate conducted by GHD Consulting. If the application is approved for funding, we

anticipate the typical 90/5/5 split:

Federal Aviation Administration $353,700
NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics " $ 19,650
Pease Development Authority S 19,650

Total $393,000

At next week’s meeting, please ask the Board to:

1. Accept a grant offer for Terminal Improvements Planning including $353,700 in AIP funding from FAA;
2. Accept $19,650 in matching funds from NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics;

3. Expend $19,650 in PDA matching funds; and,

4. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with McFarland Johnson, Inc. in the amount of
$389,900.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2017\Terminal Planning grant approval.docx




April 27, 2017 Final

EXHIBIT A
Attachment |
Work Order No. 01
Scope of Work and Fee

Terminal Improvements Planning
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease

This Scope of Work and Fee are Exhibit A, Attachment | to the Agreement for Airport Planning &
Engineering _Services (the AGREEMENT) between the Pease Development Authority and
McFarland-Johnson, Inc. dated February 22, 2016.

Background

Portsmouth International Airport (PSM) has been experiencing increase enplanements and
commercial service aircraft operations over the last six months. These increases primarily result
from additional flights by Allegiant Airlines. At the same time, military troop flights have
stabilized at a level below their peak of several years ago and they show every indication of
continuing. In addition to this existing activity, the Pease Developmeni Authority (PDA) is in
discussions with several other domestic and international carriers interested in instituting

scheduled service at PSM.

The current terminal facilities at PSM are barely sufficient for the flights arriving and departing
from PSM in 2016 and are insufficient for the flights already scheduled for the spring and summer

of 2017.

Based on this, the PDA has decided to take a focused look at the terminal building and ancillary
heeds in the medium-term (2018-2020), and long-term (2020 and beyond). This study will
consider the needs of both domestic and international carriers. For the medium-term work, the
PDA would like to look at doing some of the preliminary work (known as Phase 1) as soon as it is
practical while completing the Phase Il work in about 2019. The Phase | work will be done so that
it will be integrated seamlessly into the Phase Il work-while addressing some of the most critical

needs in the existing facility as soon as possible.



April 27, 2017 Final

Core Objectives

1. Understand and qualify medium-term Phase | (2018-2019) and medium-term Phase Il
(2019-2020) terminal operational characteristics and space / functional needs.
2. Understand potential long-term (2020 and beyond) terminal operational characteristics

and space / functional needs.
3. Establish an implementation plan for meeting medium-term plans in consideration of

long-term possibilities. Plan to consider timing, functional and aesthetic design,
construction phasing, capital cost, and funding strategies.

Project Funding

This project is an aviation planning project that isintended to be funded through FAA AIP Primary
Entitlement funding (90%), NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics funding {5%) and PDA funding (5%).

Project Team
The project team for this Work Order includes:
Company Responsibility Discipline
Code
McFarland Johnson Aviation and Project Management E
Structural S
Mechanical and Fire Protection M
Electrical EE
Fennick McCredie Architects | Architecture A
| Cost Estimating EST

(Note: The discipline code is used in the scope of work and the fee spreadsheet)

Scope of Work
The Consultant shall perform the following work tasks within the hours on the attached fee

spreadsheet:
Task 1.0 - Project Administration

This task consists of the tasks related to defining the project, preparing scopes and fees resulting
in a signed Work Order, preparing FAA and NHDOT forms and reimbursements, attending
meetings identified below, and preparing FAA and NHDOT project closeout documentation.

Specific subtasks include:



April 27, 2017 Final

~ Schedule, prepare documentation for, and attend a project scoping meeting at the

1.1
PDA offices (E, A).

1.2 - Prepare draft Scope of Work and fee spreadsheets. Revise Scope of Work and
spreadsheets based on PDA review. Prepare draft Work Order and finalize based on
PDA review (E, A).

1.3 — Prepare graphics, coordinate with PDA staff, and attend an Airline meeting at the
PDA office (A).

1.4 ~ Prepare FAA Project Readiness Form and provide to PDA (E).

15 - Attend PDA meeting to provide support to PDA staff in presenting findings (E, A).

1.6 ~ General coordination with PDA, PSM, and subconsultants (E, A, S, M, EE).

1.7 - Prepare FAA Grant Application and review with PDA (E).

1.8  —Prepare FAA and NHDOT Reimbursement Requests and year-end SF 424 and provide
them to PDA for review (E).

1.9 - Prepare and file an OEAAA (Form 7460-1) notice and attached figure for the
proposed short-term improvements (E).

1.10 - Prepare and submit FAA Project Closeout documentation to PDA and after review
to FAA and NHDOT (E).

Task 2.0 - Programming

This task consists of preliminary site investigations, space programming meetings with PDA and
airlines, and preparation of a space programming report for PDA review. Specific subtasks

include:

2.1

2.2

23

24

25

— Schedule and attend a site visit for the project team to investigate existing
conditions at and around the terminal building. Meet with PDA staff and obtain copies
of plans and reports that will be useful to the project team. Coordinate with PDA to
obtain an electronic base map (E, A, S, M, EE).

— Schedule and attend meetings with the PDA, PSM, Airlines, TSA, and Customs and
Border Protection (CBP) to determine needs and requirements (E, A).

— Perform analyses and reviews and prepare space programming report with
equipment needs, space needs, utility needs, access needs, and critical adjacencies
for domestic service upgrades only (E, A, S, M, EE).

— Perform analyses and reviews and prepare space programming report with
equipment needs, space needs, utility needs, access needs, and critical adjacencies
for domestic and international service upgrades (E, A, S, M, EE).

— Meet with PDA staff to review space programming preliminary reports and reach
agreement on what to use for further work (E, A).



April 27, 2017 Final

2.6  —Finalize the space programming reports and distribute to PDA in PDF format as well
as two (2) paper copies (E, A).

Task 3.0 - Conceptual Master Plan

This task is to look at the long-term plans for the Terminal building so that the short and medium-
term recommendations do not restrict the long-term development plans. The long-term
development will not produce detailed long-term plans but rather will produce general concept
sketches. Specific subtasks include:

3.1  -Assemble and review existing documentation on Terminal long-term plans including
Airport Master Plans, Terminal Studies, and other previous planning efforts (E, A).

3.2  ~Perform analyses and prepare three concepts for long-term terminal development
including apron layout, jet bridges, curb-side access, and major utility access (E, A, S,
M, EE).

3.3 - Schedule, prepare for, and manage a meeting with the PDA and PSM to reach
consensus on fong-term concepts (E, A).

3.4  —Revise and finalize two (2) long-term terminal concepts to reflect discussions with
PDA and PSM (E, A, S, M, EE).

3.5  —Prepare memo on long-term terminal concepts and distribute to PDA in PDF format

as well as two (2) paper copies (E, A).
Task 4.0 — Medium-Turn Concept Design and Implementation Plan

This task looks at the medium-term needs of the domestic and foreign airlines and ways to modify
the Terminal to accommodate those needs. Because these improvements will likely include
things like building additions, additional boarding bridges, and associated utility and site
upgrades. Forthe medium-term work, we will look at doing some of the preliminary work (known
as Phase 1) as soon as it is practical while completing the Phase Il work in about 2019. The Phase
f work will be done so that it will be integrated seamlessly into the Phase [l work while addressing
some of the most critical needs in the existing facility as soon as possible. This task will start with
the preparation of six medium-term terminal architectural layouts which will then be reviewed
for structural, mechanical/plumbing/fire protection, and electrical needs and recommendations.
Curb-side, terminal access, and parking needs will be prepared in Task 6.5 but will be included in
this review. The design team will meet to discuss all the systems and will finalize the six layouts.
We will then meet with the PDA and PSM staff to review the concepts, finalize the preferred
concept, and prepare a final memo and order-of-magnitude cost estimate. The concepts will be
prepared for increases in domestic flights as well as increases in both domestic and international

flights. Specific subtasks include:



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411
4.12

April 27, 2017 Final

Schedule, attend, and document an on-site design team meeting to review facilities

and systems (E, A, S, M, EE).
- Prepare six medium-term terminal concept architectural layouts (three Domestic

only and three Domestic & Foreign) (A).
— Review structural needs and systems for six medium-term ;6ncepts and prepare

structural recommendations (A, S).
— Review mechanical, plumping, and fire protection needs and systems for six
medium-term concepts and prepare mechanical, plumping, and fire protection

recommendations (A, M).
~ Review electrical needs and systems for six medlum-term concepts and prepare

electrical recommendations (A, EE).
— Review curb-side and terminal access needs for six medium-term concepts and

prepare access concepts (See Task 6.5).
~ Design team meeting to discuss all systems and determine six consolidated medium-

term concepts (E, A, S, M, EE).

~ Finalize six consolidated medium-term terminal concept architectural layouts (three
Domestic only and three Domestic & International) (E, A, S, M, EE).

~ Schedule, attend, and document a meeting with PDA & PSM to present and reach
concurrence on concepts (E, A, S, M, EE).

- Revise and finalize two preferred concepts (E, A, S, M, EE).

~ Prepare memo on medium-term concepts (E, A, S, M, EE).

- Do preliminary quantity takeoffs and prepare order of magnitude cost estimate on

preferred concepts (E, A, S, M, EE, EST).

Task 5.0 — Terminal Enhancements Schematic Analysis

This task advances the concepts from Task 4 into a single concept for a medium-term
development. End products will include schematic building footprints, floor plans; construction
phasing plans (highlighting Phase | and Phase Il work), exterior elevations, interior conceptual

perspectives, as well as a project schedule and .funding plan.

Throughout this phase, the

consultant team will hold three on-site work sessions with the PDA.

51

5.2

5.3

- Synthesize medium term domestic and international concepts into a single project
plan (E, A).

- Perform supplemental site investigations of existing architectural, structural,
mechanical/electrical/plumbing/fire protection, and site conditions to support

schematic development (E, A, S, M, EE).
- Prepare schematic level floor plans for both levels (E, A).



April 27, 2017 Final

5.4 - Prepare schematic construction phasing plans including possibility for an early
construction package (Phase I} (E, A, S, M, EE).

5.5 - Prepare exterior conceptual elevation studies of hew construction (E, A).

5.6 - Prepare Interior conceptual perspectives to show general architectural feel of the
space and finishes (E, A). )

5.7 - Develop a project schedule and project funding plan (E, A, S, M, EE, EST).

5.8 - Perform three on-site stakeholder/client work sessions during schematic planning

task phase (E, A).

Subconsultants for this phase will include a Surveyor to perform a survey in the area surrounding
the existing Terminal Building for use in schematic design and a geotechnical engineer to provide
an opinion on the suitability of the native soils for construction.

Task 6.0 — Non-Terminal Considerations

This task looks at the non-terminal needs for the medium-term Phase | and Il development.
These include parking, terminal access, passenger boarding bridges, aircraft parking aprons,
canopies, and vehicular pick-up/drop-off areas. The analysis of these needs will occur in this task
but the results will be included and presented as part of tasks 4.0 and 5.0. Specific subtasks

include:

6.1  —Obtain base mapping for Terminal, ramp, and parking areas outside the limits of the
survey in Task 5, update base mapping based on Google Earth and PDA plans, and
prepare a planning level base plan for the terminal, apron, and parking areas. This
assumes that the PDA can provide us with a base map in a CADD format to use as a
starting point (E). .

6.2 - Based on input from PSM and PDA, prepare projected enplanement and parking
need estimates. This is NOT a formal forecasting effort (E).

63 - Prepare medium-term (Phase | and Il) parking layouts (two each for Phase | and
Phase Il and domestic only and domestic & international) (E).

6.4 - Prepare medium-term apron layouts with jet bridge recommendations (domestic
only and domestic & international) (E, A).

6.5 — Prepare medium-term terminal access layouts (one for medium-term Phase | and
two each for medium-term Phase Il for both domestic only and domestic &
international) (E, A).

6.6 - Review structural implications of revisions to canopy along drop off area (E, S).

6.7  —Revise parking, apron, jet-bridge, and access layouts (E).

6.8 - Prepare memo on parking, apron, jet-bridge, and access layouts (E).

6.9 Do preliminary quantity takeoffs and prepare order of magnitude cost estimates for

the preferred concepts (E, Est)



April 27, 2017 Final

Task 7.0 — Environmental Review and NEPA Compliance

This task will investigate the existing environmental constraints for the project area, submit an
FAA NEPA categorical exclusion form for medium-term Phase | improvements (if it is eligible for
a categorical exclusion), and provide a memo outlining environmental conditions and anticipated
permitting required for the medium-term improvements. Beyond delineating wetlands in the
project areas, data acquisition will be limited to information available from PDA and from state

Vagencies. Specific subtasks include:

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

— Research existing environmental conditions at PSM by meeting with PDA staff,
reviewing PDA records, reviewing NH Natural Heritage Bureau and USF&W databases,
checking the NHDES OneStop database, and contacting NH Division of Historic

Resources (E).
~ Perform a site visit and delineate wetlands in the areas of the medium-term

improvements (E).

— Consult with FAA and prepare a NEPA Categorical Exclusion Form for the final
medium-term Phase | concept (if it is eligible for a categorical exclusion) (E).

— Provide a memo that outlines existing environmental conditions in the project area
and renders an opinion on the environmental permits likely to be required for the
medium-term terminal improvements (E). '

Task 8.0 — Final Documentation

This task will include the preparation of a consolidated report with plans and figures using the
memos, concepts, and estimates prepared in previous Tasks. The consolidated report will be
delivered to the PDA in a hard copy format (six copies) and PDF format. Specific subtasks include:

— Using the memos, concepts, and estimates prepared throughout the project,

8.1
prepare a consolidated report in paper and PDF format (E, A).

8.2 ~ Print and deliver 6 copies of the report to the PDA (E).

Project Schedule

A. FiNal SCOPE AN FER ...ucviuereerieeiiairinieccriensrecs st st b sssss s s st s sbenens 4/21/17
2 T 1 = U OO U OU TP PO R O SPPISPPRR P 4/21/17
C. Grant Application — Planning Grant ... 4/28/17
D. Conceptual Master Plan t0 PDA......cccoviarmiminim i cnsrersnesnssinsians 7/117
E. Medium-Term Development Preferred Alternative Agreed to......c.cccveeve. 8/1/17
F. EnVIronmental REPOIT.. ..o ccieriaesrarerienieceiecesissncainsinisssesssnessssstnssssssancasanes 8/1/17
G. Project ComPIetion ... e 10/1/17



55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Torr:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to:

(1) accept on behalf of the PDA a Federal Aviation Administration
("FAA") Grant Offer of AIP funding equal to 90% of the project
costs, in the amount not to exceed $452,822.00, for snow

removal equipment for Skyhaven Airport in Rochester, New
Hampshire;

(2) accept from NHDOT Division of Aeronautics 5% of the project
costs in an amount not to exceed $25,157.00;

(3) expend PDA funds equal to 5% of the project costs inan amount
not to exceed $25,157.00;

(4) award a contract to the lowest responsible bidder in an amount
not to exceed $487,205.00 for the purchase of snow removal

equipment; and

(5) execute such other documents and/or agreements as are
necessary or appropriate, to purchase the snow removal
equipment which total project is estimated to be less than
$503,200.00; all in accordance with the memorandum from
Maria J. Stowell, PE, Manager - Engineering, dated May 12,2017

and attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Grant Offer-DAW Snow Removal Equip-0517.docx




e

35 interpational Drive, Portemouth, NH 03801

o}
z

o
] =
z

smfz N
<
5:_" wlll
RS
)
m (p]
=
S1-m

MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director o s
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager, Engineering _J_/l(lfu.,&/
Date: May 12, 2017

Subject: DAW - FAA Grant Offer for Snow Removal Equipment

Earlier this month, PDA submitted a grant application to FAA for the purchase of snow removal equipment
(SRE). The equipment consists of an airport rotary plow with carrier vehicle and will replace the worn out plow
that PDA inherited with the Skyhaven transfer. The plow is needed to clear snow and ice from the newly

reconstructed runway and taxiways at Skyhaven Airport.

In the event that a grant offer is received before the next board meeting, staff needs approval to accept the grant
offer, provide matching funds and enter into contracts. Bids were opened in April and the breakdown is as

follows:

Firm Project Total
J. A. Larue $416,448
Team Eagle $547,320
M-B Companies $487,205
Engineers Estimate $500,000

J.A. Larue had the lowest bid. However, they were disqualified because they did not meet Technical
Specifications A1-5 in regards to axle capacity nor 4.3.2 in regards to the input auger. The next lowest bid was

received from M-B Companies, Inc. (M-B).

Funding for this purchase is provided by PDA, NHDOT and FAA. Both PDA and NHDOT Bureau of
Aeronautics will provide 5% of the costs. The remaining 90% is provided by FAA.

Based upon the anticipation of a grant offer, please seek Board approval:

1. To accept from the FAA up to $452,822 in AIP Funds;

2. To accept funds from the NHDOT Division of Aeronautics in the amount of $25,157,

3. Expend $25,157 in PDA matching funds; and,

4. To award a contract to M-B Companies, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $487,205 for the purchase of

snow removal equipment,

Please note that the total project amount is estimated to be less than $503,200 ($487,205 to M-B, $11,922 to
Jacobs (contract approved by the Board in March), and $4,009 for force account work).

NAENGINEER\Boatd Memos\2017\DAW SRE.docx




3b An‘lme Ave Portsmouth NH 03801
| 603.433.65386

MANAG’EMEVNT
Memorandum

To:  Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Manager

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Operations Specialist ™,
Date: 5/10/2017

Subj: Noise Report for April 2017

The Portsmouth Intérnational Airpott 4t Pease received a total of 28 noise inquiries in
April 2017, 24 rotor and 4 fixed wing,
The 24 totor wing inquiries originated from 5 Portsmouth tesidences and one Lee

residence. One caller inquired 18 times with concéms about the altitude and the path
that Seacoast Helicopters flies. Two callers inguired about media helicopters reporting

on a large fire. downtow.

The four fixed wing inquiries originated from Durham, Newmarket and Portsmouth.
The inquiries include both altitude and noise concerns of military and commercial

afreraft.

Attached is a copy of the Neise Report for April 2017.




‘.40 | 98eg

“teded 9y Buipeas ey
wye Apessie sem oy Inq-Jurudoin

ROX UYL,
*BSROY AW SONEYS A[|eaap] prE prio

A2} S¥ asiioy Lw: uw_«:m.mozn_a jo

Uy pazedap jey) 8,514 13 ynoge sdiyasayy, JWIEO0L T8 31034003 dur(d Jo

.a:«u uﬁ 03 uv_nn_w :mso:o%i

...u;m:_ a0 Em.ua

nped Jugeay sy je Smiky a1

0416 AU PUE SUORIPUOD AAGIEaM
31} 03 INP-ash Ui SeM o Aeamuny

9}{E3:9y} pauliofui §EnouoIAl _Ean mswn_ muﬁﬁn_éw.ﬁ_ ..E .h Ipafiguig

TIIROMISIIOG WA OFUMOD: UL-041)
1B 03 O Stk AJAOE L0018 Yy

201{E2 A4} PattLropm YINCUOEIIA

YINOUSII0Y BMOMIAMOP- L3}
e 0} 0p sesm KUATIR pPeadae g
i Jajjkaay panLiojul tiSnouo A

*L1ess3gaunn sy 1jB2 g
ed ayy ur pa33epul sey _ﬁ:wr:cnn

.uﬂ._.uuawm iy ..o.._w...nuua. oy ohw_wmam.

J3,ast3ng Sutagorud 9q Asw spopd

- 23 aeNyezyeaa T [sABp:0ay o) asnoy

ang sas0 amor Lusa Supky Apuenbo.

E «EES

dsou. sty yo Fdiaaai ainyuoo oy

AU [[BI ‘BSBI|J "SIIN0; .,ﬁw.-._....ﬁ.:.«bmno_n
sasInaexe SuiuURL I} peoyoqudion
IOKO DYJe ]

“UrE Q3L 3Se] 1% Tun Smmuinoes

we gg:g punose JepuuSag tpapeury

uo quM 81 .ua.w,s m..._._uov:_...t. v.

we ] pus 31943 30 paom ayy Sugynd
Ur] 0 ‘PP J1q ¥ Swass Y ‘Sulip

staEjnqgeuedaie up ao taydostjey

LB SIJUIT MO ), Hop | “ApRialiT

"INOWSLIO 240" Bugoan uedq

seyj E,ﬁaEcm MOLE INOY HEIn0gE
400y Yoo _:. 5 Imoqe sif .Emﬁ H

*ashoy Al 1oA0-LFoomip aadooyay
_x.m “INIVIJINOD BSION: -pajrewg

$,8T-4, paseguopN

aN

ek aydiyjriu puE paseq-(quio?).

LEOT g1 Koy Kep

EOSE0. FIN “j3nowspioy
13318 PPUAT

9T 90:L

$TREO HN ‘wivyung
PO Augy

9T bTip

~FOSE0 HN ‘yinomsiiog

INUIAY: B[ISED AN

¥zI 009

Swmo HN ‘yinowsyioy
uAou UL

(14

~108€0 HN ‘yinoumsrog
ANUBIAY- B[ LA

89 6EST

dy sojiog

SRATBLLBN]

s1aydodyjay umowyun paseguoNy
19pdodrpary umouyun .vww«m.& N
JBIDIE UOSUIGOT paseq
- yEDRAY uonEd0Y

0} L/ /¥ ‘poriad ayy 40.f

L 3[jen |uny,

S0 jo.n

© YO

LYIOTIOLY.

€S LIOT0LE

LTSI

€

(4




$30.798ey

“Aaessosouun sy AIEG e2 € 1B}

d 931 paTEdIpEL S jeTipyAIpHY

osupdsa:i.oN safessaiin v gjory

“RABSSTOAMUN SL HORG JUS. & 360,
d oy ur payeorpny seRpenpIAIpUy

phnwu_ 0 En_u._

19 578
Fie a0y Aur 1340 AP0 P U ETIN
= LNIVTIJINOD TSION :pajreury

sAoqysLu: Eom B30}

%2&5:?:: Sty pue-Kipnonnp ayy jv
BuiMouwy S b_:E:E e pimg EE w:.ﬁu_
nekioaw Aymy YIROWSII0F ko IMOp

IA0GE 193] 8RE HOGTIN 1pRpEWH

.wo«,moo_.,o:
ﬁom BZHQ,ESOU Hmzuz “pajrety

.Q__..EF—H.

AUy 2118 U0 30T Siy3 INoqe
Supyewos op o) pasu am ssnedaq Horq
‘{ied v Rewasdde pinom | og MO 'sean
oUy FYO-amBU 23§08 Klgtqoad pmom

I J3eispamord ey (s 1 Juem nok

- 1 “supidiay)uo. Bunyyfusis 208 igo.
"}39}. 08T Joqe: .n_E. stagpue 5,08 pue
qono3 131y §o yunod 15913ty et e

29 pinoys 241, Bufighut: o srequinu
aigy Buryowoadde Jou 33, £oxgy os Aeaun..
Yy 10J Faf, pPUIAMUMOD 113ty 0.9, Kot
uana Ajersadse ‘waaped e w do

g 03 pasu Koy} wiayy 193 03 sjoqd asay
A atiop ag oy sei Sunponiog we.

1 24304 MO} NOK YUKy | PUE 210j2q
PRITEYSARY [ ~oul] umO} Wegan(
vufwﬁtut ayy uo Legryeann uo

uLy ME—.EEEmZ 1 S0y A 4940 Jo0)
" 0SZ PUBIHHZ PUNOIE DIIMOUIOS. SHAL

Esﬂ&uﬁﬁsmﬁ ‘Spiganoge os
[l2A ‘pEi6 punoLR pajaels:

: o punos Supion wn jldy

0 WP 93 SN T “AepLig st 3 ‘ung

J5E] SIU) pUY 0SB v 5,08 pue yono)
duiop usepped aiy ur Faxue) 0381)S

€ DU OABIOM SSINUILEGT I88] 213 -10,{
an_:_:w_nEo ST} W03 9w 03 YIrq
ISTEDAY 20103 §IEQ

(EnouodI m.n..uow u:msﬁcm o«nn.o..amu m:au.. Pm

s P o

10T°0T Repy Kepsoupapy

“103€0 HIN ‘ipnowrsiioy
IDUIAY IS

Yb-" pasegq 89 05T LTOT/GELp 6
~I08€0 HN ‘ypnowsyiog
19238 AR
- paseg gL OSWL  LIOTGL/P 8
~108€0 HN ‘yinouispagy
INOIAY JYA]
zaydooney ussurqoy paseg 89 vl ETOT/ST L

“LSRE0 HN ‘PoaetmaNg

- dp mooq

SRATIBIIEN]

LI/9S/¥

o LUy

Bey uoneIO] a1 HyE)

surgy,

OB Iy SO 307 jo43107) 2510



§Joig b8eq

*A1888900 0N ST HoEq freaegegy

doayy up ﬁﬁwu—_z: SeY- _NE:E =~ﬁ

‘KIvssodounn siyaeq [[eo-& jery
d'auy ur payeoipuy sey fENprAIpUE

"Argssasaunn s1 yorq [jEY B euy
d'ayy ur payedIpis wﬁ_ {enprArpug

maﬁ E ?Em_EEu s?a_: uf un

LipesdaIe oy Jo-qiy Kepoj Sukjy

Hedaale 19130 ueyy 1apnoj 9g.0)
Jeqy yyeaoae ppout Jopfe ue osfe
O8Il 1LY, *PZIS 5,31 61 AN A2Ak0]
eadde 0y spuay pue jjeassie 33ue
K198 SLLY Y)Y, "Souigue ¢ sey
yue 3Baey K194 S1 31 IS JOMO]

paueas Iaey KBwr £pL g I3 pUR
fusour:jjyosn .l st 9F Kemundy
~13[je9:0Y} paurioful YEnoUo I

Sy Xoqjieut gy jng sdep.ojessdas
omg uo: __uu uﬁ u:uuknu ﬂu....H.

: \STLOpmYIE
s% %aa% ﬁaaz

Motk Jiiiod Buinsyuap:t 0y
.E:o: E& asud a1 Aoy aopnol Bunyes
WL duikfj-ato

Eo.c Is10U v._e_‘,h 1k 83 ipapewrg

.«mam 2:.2. ‘0 w_ 3_: pinom

m JUQ WIS DY) JOUST S, “Mouy

}Uep | ~dou9a0d ou3 o) Jmeduod

(2 u&qﬁ puE Mo putp pue suus: oM
¥ m:_.ﬁ« SEOUM oUL ([3) puEYoEg |ed
Bour9AI3 nnu noRgr am .ﬁ:nEﬂSm

I 322_ AT F 0P . ﬁa%é N Eﬁs I
pue huunau;a.n uEh: _..E_ .Eu? .uo__t.p

: * _uuoﬁ =2_m uo ?:. ~

dn E:é

%,._ﬁu..,._uaz

Loy

a@dodpey umowun

-9 passg

r-a pasegq

agydeoijay uosuiqoyy poseg;
N

O8N ‘LID *LyLd pue paseqg quoyy

uAOuy

uonBIe]

o1

‘PO 2y A0,

~T08E0 HIN “uinousspiog
INUIAY o[

~T0SE0 FIN “Ynowsyrog
SNUIAY SIHAT

89

~108£0 BN ..f:@i&uqm
VDAY SONFIAL

PT8ED: HN “Wetpang
K pp, SR

$97

- peoyeus
(55 |

a1 94D

307 J0.

89

LTOT 01 KRy ‘Kepsaupay

8K LHOTIOTH #T
LWL LIOTIOTY €1

CSOPT LI0TIoEE  2X

6RTF LT0TIOTY T



$ 30y 98eg

-Kigssavouun SLHIBq |j¥0E 181

63y ur payeaipui $¥Y {BApIAIpUY

"K1essadouitn S| LY [JEd £ yeyy
doyy ug pajesipur sey JEnpIApuy

*Argssavoumn sy HoEQ [IBY & 18y}

d uﬁ 13 m_aﬁu_u..:_ mwn _.«n—:t_,unm.

A ressavauun St LG [[Ed BRI
d 3y ug pageolpus sey enpIAIpuy

en..wmmsuu:ﬁ: S12oRqG
o m.waﬁ _HEEEE wua Ma:E;:Em

“HarSSITIUUN S1 OUG. e ereys
1d 3 a ai eouw

m mu__ —s__w;iﬁ

. 056-2pnye
‘asnoy %E.v..go AP YOSTIN

= LNIYTAINOD HSION :papemy

Buypour 1e3dodijey

PoY - INFVIAINOD TSTON *pojieury

Sumpd Lmﬂmnuzws

.wam. ~ INIVIJINOD HSION *Pafiemsy

Jardootey

PRy - INIYVTdINGD ASION papeiugy
- ‘nok .m.ﬁ:..ﬁ ...&.3_
03 3203 ysnf.ur ~Alir.i0f SMau poos

QAABY NoL ssopuniorq UL 0] HOSEDA

OU S{AUL “KeM L3010 91} usaur

JUOP | "SSINIBNG 0 N0 v | A1e -

S JO-ING-Ag *ITE 13 J0-IN0 JOu J1 JoB]

0007 03 dmyjosq; wyy jed1sea) 3w ues
o/ adoy pue Jsydodiay pasayy gym
dn pajwe. | pue unaels si uosess: siqy

ok 1§01 03 Buijjwo ysnf ar,y ‘Bunyy 3yBjay
eyl pR1qusip-seq oy JEgyIe Bunjoo| aae

QM IIBME 83 WS NG s1 ISRy sig

FEUM G0 3o 03 ppd]. A U0 IBpEL

By anvy | 99 0OOT o0 Ljivnaos

SIL."03 pasni Iy jyB1oy a5 jley moge.

12 3u108 §1 71 1 095 [i5E puE nooum)ye
SHpF 30| £ 1940 Bui08 uadg-sky
yeus sa3d0dgjay pea 3ty Inoqw Aupuoyy

MO O p Fe-BUII[EI UL J904)S SRS UD

ﬁanEﬂLom .S u:o ._ﬂ_am uﬁ ug A1y |

%aﬁE_EoU

ASION]. a1} JoBujjpow &

03 BUI03 M 2% USYAL (STL PN
‘asmol: At Jako APIaIp WDEIIN

- INIVTdINOD STON :papewy

g

1aadooiisy uosmaoy

10340y tosuIgoy

Jpydodney uosiigoy

paseg

pasug

paseg

peseqg

© pesegq

paseg

LTDT 01 Kepy *Repsoupag,

~108€0 PN “qinowsyiog.

ANUIAY A ,
89 LI0Z/6E 0T
-T08€0 HIN ‘yindiitsiog
INUBAY JIIHIAL

OTET  LYOT6TH 61

~108€0 HN ‘yinowrspiog
INUIAY JIITAL

89

DH@NRN e 81

~108€0° HIN “fanowsspaoy
ANUIAY ID{[IIA

89 8T L1

LYOTI6THY LY

~E08£0: HN 52585_

~T08€0 ‘BIN ‘ynowsyioq
AMUALY D] [IAL

hﬂ :

bSNBNE -3

~ dpy mogjox

ooy

:porag ayg 40,1

aiagey asﬁ oam@  ien

307 104410 310N Y @d



§Jo g d8eyg

AEpo} Suiy mg 4993 575 2pmne
‘ashioy Aw 1940 Ao up WIGITN
%&aﬂu Mmzuz E_aﬁa

*A1ussadatiumn; sy Heq i B EQ.
d agy g uu«wﬂﬂ:_

*L6poy. oEa mp ﬁé STp spmpje

NOT ANV MO AAAA
- %—.2_ Kk 1040 uow.:uhonnau__u:

PO - INTVIAINOD ASTON “pajivary

-*Asessaoouun’ SENIEG JEIE Ju

id ayyur uo«mu._u_- waa w:ﬂ

*Aressavoutin: sy yaeq 11¢3. ¢ jeg
wd-ayy nf payedIpuisEy [enpiaIpuy

*Aressayouun SIRq! E2e
ul-awp up: m.ﬁuu_uﬁwan E:w. i

OU .,.Nmuoz _..u:aEn.—

:c:—m%« oE....S:
® m.um %Eaxo E:— 3} nok pinom Kym

~asuodsad o] 98essom v B}y | EBEES% BEYYE «ué vvm 125EQ

“AIESSIDUNN SENIR [JEI B 2wy
:d aﬁ ur ﬂﬁuui—._ m.:_ u:@iﬂﬂn

Agpoyamn g ‘wrde YIEIIN

£epoj amy 35 0501 SpMnE
‘asnoy Ans soa0 KFve40P WOEITN
= ENX OO HSION papeury

"ALESSODIUUAST WPUq j{E3'e J8u).
zd-atpy Ui papesipur ey JenpIAIpiy

L I ) - UD6ITN.

t ccc m um wEmﬁ

= .ﬂZHiAEOU HWHOZ vm__uEH,

123d0dN[jay mosmgoy

(428

1s3doonay uosuigoy

2t

(a0}

!

ﬁaw«m
paseq

‘paseg

paseg

paseg
paseq

pasegq

“108E0 HIN ﬁ«ﬁ@&m«&@.&
INUIAY. JSIIAT

89

~I08E0 HIN ‘Wnowsyioq
INUIAY JIRLA]

89

~F08€0: HN mn_wzo.iwr.am

. ANUIAY JOHTYAT

89 -

“L08€0 HN ‘wnowsyod
INUAY: UB[ITA]
89

~L08€0. HIN ‘Ujnousyiog

IMUIAY, IS[ITA]

89

~E08€0 HIN “wnomsyiog
WO YN

SL.

*~108E0" BN ‘inowsyiog

NUAAY IGHIAL

89

~LO8E0 HIN “inouisiiog
IVUIAY JOIIA]

dpy sofiog

SIANRLIBN

LISy

Peaary

S

WOES0]

‘porag aty 40,

QI toije)

89

10T 01 Lepy “Kepsoupoy

LO%E

601

SpioL
LPLT

bmﬁm

LA

LT

€T

1D

307 104u0D 2510N YA d



55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of $38,232.95 for
legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority by:

1. Kutak Rock LLP
Through March 31, 2017 $11,831.22
$ 7,556.23
$19,387.45
2. Sheehan Phinney Bass + Green |
Through March 31, 2017 $ 18,468.50
$ 377.00
$18.845.50
Total $38,232,95

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Legal Services 0517.docx




210z tdy ybnoyy

« $3347vO31 - SISATIVNY

S6'692'9LL$ 22108 00°066'6% £2'892'2€$ EL VT 8rLS 9TEVT'LELS Ly y00°LLS €30 aAjeINLING
0C P09’ vLS 0E¥00'vL$ 1 Ad
21°00p'23 L1 °00¥'28 SL A4

0E2Lr'PLS 0ECTLV'VIS 9L Ad oL A4

59'/.6.'101$ ZLL10viS 00°066'6$ £6°66L°LL$ LLAd||9TepZ'LeLS ww.mﬁuw\ﬂmﬁw AW
1ejo) uonepuno4 2z tebuey I8 UdARH Aiva jejot uonjepunoy me- [lOM udAeH 3iva
1e9 A [eoslty meT 1ea) |easiy UoneAIasUO)
uoljeAlasuoy
Biaquiels Auleg ‘josunog peas uo)sald uuh :jesunosn pesa
SYILIVIA TV INIWNOYIANG




KUTAK ROCK LLP

WASHINGTON, D.C.
Telephone 202-828-2400
Facsimile 202-828-2488

Federal ID 47-0597598

April 12,2017

Lynn Hinchee

Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Check Remit To;
Kutak Rock LLP

PO Box 30057

Omaha, NE 68103-1157

Wire Transfer Remit To:
ABA #104000016

First National Bank of Omaha
Kutak Rock LLP

A/C #24-690470

Reference: Invoice No. 2286489
Client Matter No. 301603-1 -

Invoice No. 2286489
301603-1

Re: CLF

TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNT DUE

$11,831.22



Pease Development Authority Apr 28, 2017 PAGE

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA
1000 ELM STREET
P.0O. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY

RE: Trade Port - General Representation

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-10167
BILLING ATTORNEY:Robert P Cheney

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $377.00
TOTAL EXPENSES: $0.00

TOTAL THIS BILL: $377.00

PREVIOUS BALANCE: $0.00

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: $377.00

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and
please reference the client/case number on all
related correspondence.

AMOUNT PAID... §



Pease Development Authority Apr 24, 2017 PAGE

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA
1000 ELM STREET
P.O. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY

RE: CLF vs. Pease

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-15395
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn-J. Preston

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $18,415.00
TOTAL: EXPENSES: ' $53.50

TOTAL THIS BILL: $18,468.50

PREVIOUS BALANCE: $0.00

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: - $18,468.50

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and
please reference the client/case number on all
related correspondence.

AMOUNT PAID... §




55 inlarnational Drive, Porismouth, NF 03801

AL

NT

Y

MEMORANDUM

To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <92~
Date: May 18, 2017 '
Re: Commercial Use Mooring Permit Transfers

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, AFprovaI and
Execution of Mooring Permit Transfers” adopted by the Board on January 24, 2002, I am pleased
to report that PDA has approved of commercial mooring permit transfer for the following permit:

Date of
Permit Business Approval
Seabrook Harbor No. 7541 Commercial Fishing 05/03/17
Transferor: Randell Collins
Transferee: Stephen C. Smith

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of Mooring
Permit Transfers provides that:

“A Mooring Permit Transfer request submitted to this delegation of authority shall not be
consented to, approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. In accordance with NH Administrative Rule Por 301.08 (superseded by Pda
508.01 (a) - (d)), a commercial boat owner must submit to the Division
documented proof of the commercial nature of the business being sold.”

These conditions have been met.

P:\PortAuthority\Moorings\Transfers\BoardMemos\Boardmem 0517.docx

YY) TAKING YOU THERE



555 Market Strest, Suite 1 Porismouth, NH 03801

INTERNATIONAL
PORTS AND HARBORS

TO: | David Mullen, Executive Director, PDA
FROM: Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH ﬂ
DATE: May 2, 2017 |

RE: Commercial Mooring Transfer

The Pease Develdpment Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #7541, from Randell Collins to Stephen

Smith.

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of

Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am
requesting approval of the transfer.

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know.



r " .
555 Market Street, Suite 1 Portsmouth, NH 03801

INTERNATIONAL
PORTS AND HARBORS

May 3, 2017

Randell Collins
28 Centennial St
Seabrook, NH 03874

RE:  Request to Transfer Commercial Moorings
Commercial Mooring No. 7541, Seabrook Harbor, New Hampshire

Dear Mzr. Collins:

Please be advised that Pease Development Authority - Division of Ports and Harbors has
approved of your request to transfer the above referenced commercial mooring to Stephen C. Smith
of 4 Liberty St unit 2 in Salisbury, MA in connection with the sale of your commercial business.

You and Stephen Smith have represented that Stephen Smith intends to use the mooring for
commercial fishing related purposes. Please be advised that the approval to transfer the mooring is
- subject to the condition that Stephen Smith will continue to use the mooring for commercial fishing

related purposes.

In accordance with the administrative rules which govém the transfer of commercial
moorings: “If the holder of a commercial use mooring permit ceases operation of the commercial
entity for which the permit was issued, the permit shall lapse.” See enclosed copy of Pda 508.01(d).
By copy of this letter Stephen Smith is being put on notice of this provision.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

| Sincerely,

David R. Mullen
Executi_ve Director

Enclosure

ce: Geno Marconi, Director PDA-DPH
Stephen Smith
PDA Legal Dept.




TIONA

55 International Drive, Porismouth, NH 033801

Director Torr:

MOTION

The Pease Development Board of Directors hereby approves of the
Initial Proposed Amendments to the “Schedule of Pilotage Fees and Pilotage
Unit Rates, Portsmouth Harbor and Piscataqua River” attached hereto; and
authorizes the Division Director to take any necessary or recommended

action in furtherance of this matter;

all in accordance with the

memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated May 11, 2017

attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\DPH - Initial Rate Amd 0517.docx

(YNNI T A w1 N0

v N ol

T U E D



&

585 Marke! Strest, Suite 1 Parismouth, NH 03801

INTERNATIONAL
PORTS AND HARBORS

Date: May 11, 2017

To: PDA Board of Directors

From: Geno Marconi, Port Director

Subject: Schedule of Pilotage Fees and Pilotage Unit Rates

in accordance with RSA 12-G:42, Xi, the Division is proposing amendments to the:
SCHEDULE OF PILOTAGE FEES AND PILOTAGE UNIT RATES. The initial proposed amendments are

attached hereto.

Furthermore, in accordance with RSA 12-G:42, X1 (f); [Fees relating to pilotage shall be comparable with
pilotage fees assessed by other port authorities in the United States], the following comparisons, for the

same ship, round trip, were performed:

BOSTON, MA: $8,862.00
PORTLAND, ME: $8,814.00

PORTSMOUTH, NH:  $5,978.00 (current fee schedule)
$6,576.00 {proposed fee amendments)

The Initial Proposed Schedule of Pilotage Fees and Pilotage Unit Rates was presented to the Division of
Ports and Harbors Advisory Council {Council) at the May 10, 2017 meeting for review and comment.
The Council voted to recommend that the PDA Board of Directors approve the initial proposed

amendments.

The Division will advertise a Public Hearing on the initial proposed amendments in newspapers of local
and state wide distribution as well as on the Division’s web site. The Public Hearing will be held on June
1, 2017 at 6:00 pm at the Division office on Market Street. Written comments will be received until the

end of business June 12, 2017.

(YWY TAKING YOU THERE



The Final Proposed Amendments to the Schedule of Pilotage Fees and Pilotage Unit Rates will be
presented to the PDA Board of Directors at the June 15, 2017 meeting for final adoption with an

effective date of June 30, 2017.

Therefore, the Division of Ports and Harbors recommends that the PDA Board of Directors approve the
Initial Proposed Amendments to the Schedule of Pilotage Fees and Pilotage Unit Rates.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY — DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS

SCHEDULE OF PILOTAGE FEES AND PILOTAGE UNIT RATES
PORTSMOUTH HARBOR AND PISCATAQUA RIVER

INITIAL PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

1.0 COMPUTATION OF PILOTAGE FEES AND UNITS:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

May 3, 2017

Certain pilotage fees for inbound and outbound vessels as identified below are
based on pilotage units. In each such case a minimum fee is also identified. If
pilotage units are not used to set a fee, the fee is set on a flat fee or per unit or

similar basis.

All measurements shall be in meters.

Pilotage units are computed by:

1.3.1 Multiplying the overall length of the vessel (bow to stern) by the extreme
breadth of the vessel (beam to beam);

1.3.2  Multiplying the product of subsection 1.3.1 by the depth of the vessel to the
uppermost continuous deck (bottom of keel to uppermost continuous deck);

and
1.3.3 Divide the product of subsection 1.3.2 above by 100.

The pilotage fees shall be an amount equal to 200% of the applicable charges
specified in this schedule for:

(a)  Any self-propelled vessel lacking propulsion; or

(b) A pilot called out to a scene for any unscheduled event or emergency
situation.

The pilotage rates for a submarine shall be:

(@) An amount equal to the applicable charges in subsection 2.1.1, 2.1.2, or
2.1.3, plus an additional $25-00 $28.00 per foot of draft; and

(b)  Minimum units: 100.

An amount equal to all the fees incurred shall be added to the invoice when the fees
are to be paid by any electronic method, including, but not limited to, direct deposit,

wire transfer, or credit card charge.



2.0 PILOTAGE FEES — TRANSIT CHARGES:

2.1 For vessels inbound or outbound, including barges, the charges payable under this
section shall be as follows:

2.1.1 Per passage where line of demarcation is transited during passage:
(a)  Pilotage units multiplied by $2:70 $2.97; and

(b)  Minimum charge: $266-00 $286.00;

2.1.2  Per passage where line of demarcation is not transited during passage (i.e.
vessel shifting with harbor and river):

(a)  Pilotage units multiplied by $3-50 $1.65; and
(b)  Minimum charge: $182.00 $200.00,
2.1.3  Docking or undocking charges:
(a)  Pilotage units multiplied by $6-70 $0.77,
(b)  Minimum charge: $83-00 $91.00; and

() Must be paid, where applicable, in addition to any applicable per
passage charge assessed under subsections 2.1.1 or 2.1.2 above;

and
2.1.4 Vessel shifting at berth:
(a  $425.00 per call for assistance; and

(b)  Second pilot required for transit or turning off dock: $385-60
3425.00

3.0 PILOTAGE FEES — PILOT DETENTION CHARGES:

3.1  Inbound or outbound vessels of any size:

3.1.1 Charge for canceling call for pilot after pilot reports to vessel: (a) $226-060
$242.00 per call cancelled,; '

3.1.2  Charge for detaining pilot during the mooring or securing of vessel in excess of
one hour once vessel is alongside of terminal:

(a)  $220.00-perexcess-hour-$100.00 per 20 minutes of detention-or-pertion
theseal;

>

May 3, 2017



4.0

3.1.3 Charge for canceling request for pilot due to fog, stress of weather, or vessel
mechanical problem while pilot vessel is in transit to vessel requesting pilot:

(@  Same as subsection 3.1.1; and
3.1.4 Charge for pilot not returned to shore and carried to sea on vessel:
(@  $350-00 $385.00 per day or part thereof that pilot is detained at sea after

outbound passage is complete, plus the cost of return to Portsmouth, New
Hampshire, by the fastest means of first class travel available.

PILOTAGE FEES — MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES:

4.1  Inbound or outbound vessels of any size:

4.1.1 Charge for transporting a pilot launch to or from the pilot station (to be paid,
where applicable, addition to other charges assessed pursuant to sections

2.0 and 3.0 above):
(a) $150-00 $165.00 per single, one-way trip; and

4.1.2  Charge for transporting a pilot to or from a vessel at anchorage in lieu of
boarding at pilot station:

(a) $220.00 $242.00 per single, one-way trip.

May 3, 2017



5/2/2017 Pda 100-700

PART Pda 311 PILOTAGE FEES

Pda 311.01 Pilotage Fees Schedule.

(a) Vessels required under Pda 304.01 to be piloted by a pilot shall pay to the pilot each applicable pilotage fee as
set forth in the schedule of pilotage fees adopted pursuant to (¢) below. It shall be the responsibility of the pilot to request

payment and collect payment of any pilotage fee authorized under Pda 311.

(b) Atleast once a year the division director shall review the schedule of pilotage fees and pilotage unit rates. At
any time, the division director may prepare a proposed schedule of pilotage fees and pilotage unit rates. The proposed
schedule of pilotage fees and pilotage unit rates shall be distributed to each pilot and shall be made available to the

public. Hereafter in this section, references to “pilotage fees™ shall include “pilotage unit rates.”

(c) Within 30 days of distribution of the proposed schedule of pilotage fees to the public under (b) above, pilots or
any member of the public may submit to the division director written comments regarding the proposed schedule of

pilotage fees.

(d) Within 60 days of distribution of the proposed schedule of pilotage fees to the public under (b) above, the
division director shall submit a proposed schedule of pilotage fees to the authority for review and approval, either in its

original proposed form or as modified after receipt of public comment.
(e) The authority may:
(1) Adopt the approved annual schedule of pilotage fees;
(2) Adopt the approved annual schedule of pilotage fees in part; or
(3) Adopt the approved annual schedule of pilotage fees in part and modify the schedule in part,
(f) The authority shall make available to the public any fee schedule adopted in whole or in part under (e) above.

(g) The pilotage fees adopted by the authority shall take effect on January 1 of the following year, or within 10
days of adoption by the authority, as specified by the authority. Once adopted, the annual schedule of pilotage fees shall
be mailed to each pilot and shall be attached to any new commission that may be issued to a pilot. Pilots shall charge

fees only as set forth in the approved schedule.
Source. #7870, eff 4-12-03; ss by #8148, EXEMPT, eff 8-27-04; ss by
#10818, EXEMPT, eff 4-17-15

Pda 311.02 Computation of Pilotage Units.

(a) Pilotage units shall be computed by:
(1) Multiplying the overall length of the vessel by the extreme breadth of the vessel,

(2) Multiplying the product of (1) by the depth of the vessel to the upmost continuous deck; and

(3) Dividing the product of (2) by 100.
(b) For purposes of determining pilotage units, all measurements shall be in meters.
Source. #7870, eff 4-12-03; ss by #8148, EXEMPT, eff 8-27-04

Pda 311.03 Pilotage Fees Based on Pilotage Unit Rates: Flat Fees.

(a) The annual schedule of pilotage fees approved by the authority under Pda 311.01 shall contain the pilotage fees
described in (b) — (e) below.

(b) The following pilotage fees shall be based upon pilotage unit rates established within the pilotage fee schedule
for vessels inbound or outbound:

(1) One-way inbound or outbound transit fee, calculated by multiplying the pilotage units for such vessel by
the pilotage unit rate for inbound or outbound vessels;




5/2/2017

Pda 100-700
(2) Docking or undocking fee, calculated by multiplying the pilotage units for such vessel by the pilotage unit
rate for vessels docking or undocking; and

(3) Vessel shifting berths within the pilotage area, calculated by multiplying the pilotage units for such vessel
by the pilotage unit rate for vessel shifting berths within the pilotage area.

(c) The pilotage fee schedule shall contain minimum fees for all of the fees described in (b) above. The minimum

fee shall apply if the fee based upon pilotage units is less than the minimum fee.

(d) The pilotage fee schedule shall contain fees for the following:

(1) Shifting a vessel at berth established on a per call basis;
2 Cancellanon of the request for pilotage assistance after the pilot reports for duty on the vessel established
on a per call basis;

(3) Detention of a pilot detained during mooring of a vessel after allowing one hour, once along side, for the
securing of a vessel to its berth established on a per hour basis;

(4) Detention of a vessel in transit, cancelled due to fog, stress of weather, or mechanical problem
established on a per hour basis;

(5) Detention of a pilot carried to sea established on a per diem basis, plus the cost of return to Portsmouth,
New Hampshire, by the fastest means of travel available;

(6) Transporting a pilot to or from the pilotage station established on a one-way, single trip basis;

(7) Transporting a pilot to or from a vessel at anchorage instead of boarding at the pilotage station established
on a one-way, single trip basis;

(8) A self-propelled vessel lacking propulsion;

(9) Pilotage of a submarine; and

(10) The calling out of a pilot to a scene for any unscheduled event or emergency situation.

(e) Anamount equal to all the fees incurred shall be added to the invoice when the fees are to be paid by any

electronic method, including, but not limited to, direct deposit, wire transfer, or credit card charge.

Source. #7870, eff 4-12-03; ss by #8148, EXEMPT, eff 8-27-04; ss by
#9928, EXEMPT, eff 5-29-11; ss by #10642, EXEMPT, eff 6-29-14




55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to execute
a License and Operating Agreement with Electro Source, Inc. (ESI) for use
of bulk storage space at the Market Street Terminal, on terms and
conditions substantially similar to those set forth in the draft Letter of
Intent dated May 9, 2017 attached hereto, and such other conditions as
shall be necessary or desirable to this matter subject to concurrence of
the Division Director and PDA General Counsel.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\Electro Source 0517.doc

MY TaAaKING YOIU THERE



May 9, 2017

Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source, Inc.

22 Church Street

Northport, New York 11768

Dear Mr. Lange:

d Harbors (PDA-DPH
erms and conditions

d x-ts Division of Port

On behalf of the Pease Development Authorit
.._,“ the followmg outline'd}

or Port Authonty) we are pleased to submit t

from :'t'h'e Market Street Marme Terminal, Portsmouth, New
of six ships per year are anticipated.

- tion of the fees and rents to be paid and the covenants to be
-- SI and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the
PDA agrees to License to ESI up to 3 acres, as more specifically shown on the
plan attached hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A. The Parties agree
that the Premises is intended for the marshalling and storage of bulk cargo and

operating equipment.

Premises:



Mr. Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source Inc.

May 9, 2017
Page 2

Base Term:

Fees:

The License shall be effective upon execution and shall continue for a base term
of two (2) years, unless otherwise terminated or extended by agreement of the

Parties.

In consideration of the License granted, ESI shall pay to the Port Authority the
following annual amounts:

Storage Fees: During the base term of the License, ESI shall pay to PDA-DPH a
storage fee at the annual rate of $63,000 per acre for the Premises.

Scale House Fee: During the base term of the License, ESI shall pay to PDA-DPH
for non-exclusive use of the Office and Scale a scale house fee at the annual rate
of $12,000 plus any pro rata share of utility charges in connection with this use.

Terminal Charges: During the term of the License, ESI shall pay to PDA-DPH
Terminal Charges, to include without limitation, dockage and wharfage, at rates
established from time to time by the PDA-DPH. As of the Term Commencement
Date, the Terminal charges in effect are attached hereto as Attachment B.

Cargo Reports: On or before the fifteenth (15™) day of each month, ESI shall
prepare and submit a Cargo Report in a form provided by or reasonably
satisfactory to PDA-DPH showing all information concerning ESI's cargo
activities for the previous calendar month. Such report shall, at a minimum,
consist of scale receipts, the draft survey and identifying the scrap metal
remaining in the Storage Area as of the report date. Any confidential financial or
proprietary business information in accordance with NH RSA 91:A, should be

marked as such prior to transmission.

Gate Security Charges: During the term of the License, ESI shall pay to PDA-
DPH the actual cost of gate security required by ESI’s operations. PDA-DPH will
not allocate costs for gate security Monday through Friday from 0600 to 1600

hours. (See Attachment B.)

Sweeping of Licensed Premises: During the term of the License, ESI shall, at its
sole cost and expense, arrange for and provide sweeping services to clean debris
from the Licensed Premises and the DPH Common Areas following loading
operations. At the election of the Division Director, Sweeping operations may be

performed by DPH at an hourly rate of $125.00/hour.

Minimum Annual Guarantee: ESI agrees to provide PDA-DPH with a minimum
annual guaranteed revenue of $450,000 to include only those charges for dockage,

wharfage and storage area rental.




Mr. Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source Inc.

May 9, 2017

Page 3

Use: The purposes for which ESI may use the Storage Area are as set forth above in
“Purpose.”
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, or otherwise consented to in
writing by the PDA-DPH, the following terms and conditions shall be applicable
to ESI's use of the Premises and Scale House.

1. With the exception of the initial two storage periods which may extend to ninety

(90) days following consultation with the Port Director and the PDA Executive
Director, the storage period, commencing on the initial delivery of wood chips to
the Licensed Premises and termination on the day ESI begins to load the ship,

shall not exceed sixty (60) days.

2. The rights of ESI under the License shall be subordinate to PDA-DPH’s rights to
manage the DPH facility and other common areas and roadways, which rights
shall include, without limitation, the right to impose reasonable rules and
regulations relating to the location of equipment, use of the common areas and
roadways and the right to add, delete, alter or otherwise modify the designation
and use of all DPH facilities and parking areas, entrances, exits, roadways and
other areas of the DPH, to the extent all of the foregoing are not part of the
Premises; provided, however, that Licensee shall continue at all times to have
reasonable access to and use of the Premises and the areas available for common

use.

PDA-DPH may, at its sole discretion, authorize ESI to conduct any uses not expressly
authorized under its License subject to the execution of an appropriate agreement which shall
include a provision requiring the payment of established fees and charges that may be applicable
to any such additional uses consented to by PDA-DPH. ESI is prohibited from any use of the
Storage Area and DPH Common Use Areas not specifically granted in the License.

ESI warrants that it holds all certificates, permits, licenses or other entitlement required
by federal, state or local laws in order to allow ESI to conduct the permitted uses hereunder, and
that the same are and will be kept current, valid and complete. ESI further warrants that it shall
at all times abide by and conform with all terms of the same and that it shall give immediate
notice to PDA-DPH of any additions, renewals, amendments, suspensions or revocations. In the
use and occupation of the Storage Area and the conduct of such business thereon and in the DPH
Common Use Areas, ESI, at its sole cost and expense, shall promptly comply with all present
and future laws, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations and requirements of all federal, state and
municipal governments, courts, departments, commissions and boards, any national, state or
local Board of Fire Underwriters, or any other body exercising functions similar to those of any

of the foregoing.



Mr. Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source Inc.

May 9,

Page 4

2017

a ESI, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents, servants and
invitees shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations which
apply to the conduct of the uses contemplated herein. ESI, its employees, agents,
contractors, subcontractors or assigns shall also comply with any rules and regulations
promulgated by PDA-DPH for operation of the DPH as the same may be from time to
time established or amended. Responsibility for compliance with all federal, state and
local laws required by this Article rests exclusively with ESI. PDA-DPH assumes no
enforcement or supervisory responsibility except with respect to matters committed to its

jurisdiction and authority.

b Notwithstanding any other provision of the License, the rights of ESI
herein shall be subordinate to PDA-DPH’s rights to manage the DPH property and other
common areas and access, which rights shall include, without limitation, the right to
impose rules and regulations or issue management directives relating to use of the DPH
Common Areas, and DPH roadways and the right to add, delete, alter or otherwise
modify the designation and use of all common areas, parking areas, enfrances, exits,
roadways and other areas of the DPH.

Condition of

Licensed

Premises: ESI acknowledges that it has inspected the Licensed Premises, including the
parking area and all improvements and other facilities thereon, and that it has
determined that the said Licensed Premises are in apparent good and tenantable
condition. ESI accepts said Licensed Premises in their present condition and
without any representation or warranty by the Port Authority as to their condition
or as to the use which may be made thereof and without obligation on the part of
the Port Authority, except as specifically set forth herein to make any alterations,
repairs, improvements or additions. Further, the Port Authority shall not be
responsible for any latent or other defect not known by the Port Authority or any
change of condition in said Licensed Premises. Nothing contained in this letter or
the License shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of
the State of New Hampshire which at all times is reserved to the State of New
Hampshire.

ESI's

Work Except as specifically provided in this letter or the License, ESI, at its sole cost

and expense, shall do all work necessary to prepare the Licensed Premises for its
use.



Mzr. Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source Inc.

The following is a partial list of issues identified and required to be addressed by
ESI to the satisfaction of PDA-DPH during negotiation of the License in
connection with ESI’s proposed use of the Licensed Premises.

May 9, 2017

Page 5
a)
b)
)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
1)
j)
k)

Indemnification

and

Insurance:

Truck queuing on Market Street

Height of wood chip piles

Compliance with the National Fire Code, NFPA Chapter 31
Compliance with NH Administrative Rule Env-A 1400 as may be
applicable to include a compliance demonstration if no permit is
required and provision of Fumigation Plan, applicable MSDS and
commitment for periodic review and update

Required protection of pier surface

Inspection of pier deck and terminal pavement following loading
ESI’s ongoing responsibility to review and update as necessary its
control procedures and best management practices to assure
compliance with applicable environmental regulations

ESI’s compliance with NHDES fugitive dust regulations

ESI’s compliance with NPDES discharge regulations to include
application and receipt of required permits for discharge of
stormwater and non-stormwater sources, provision of a Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan and recommended Best Management
Practices and consideration of a collection system and/or industrial
treatment to prevent any discharge to open waters

[ESI’s requirement to engage an environmental consultant to review
applicable environmental regulations and certify certificates,
permits, licenses or other entitlements required by federal, state or
local laws in connection with its operations]

[EST’s requirement to cost share the testing of stormwater outfalls at

the Market Street Terminal]

During the term of the License, ESI shall provide and shall require all contractors,
agents or employees of ESI to carry (i) worker's compensation and employer’s
liability insurance in an amount and form which meets all applicable requirements
of the labor laws of the State of New Hampshire, as amended from time to time,
and which specifically covers the persons and risks involved in this License; (ii)
comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million

Dollars ($2,000,000) with respect to damage to property and to personal injury or
death of any one or more persons and with no deductible or such deductible



Mr. Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source Inc.

May 9, 2017
Page 6

Maintenance:

Compliance

amount as may be authorized by the Port Authority; (iii) Longshore and Harbor
Workers” Compensation Act insurance coverage for all maritime employment
related activities in connection with the rights granted under this License; and (iv)
automobile liability insurance in amounts approved from time to time by the Port
Authority, but not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single
limit for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. ESI agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless the Port Authority and the State of New Hampshire
from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, assessments, costs
and expenses, liabilities and losses resulting or arising during the term of the
License actions, demands and causes of actions caused by or resulting from (i)
any conditions of the Licensed Premises, which condition first arises during the
term of the License (ii) from any breach or default on the part of ESI in the
performance of any covenant or agreement to be performed pursuant to the terms
of the License, or from any act or omission of ESI, or any of its agents,
contractors, servants, employees, licensees or invitees; and (iii) from any accident,
injury, death, loss or damage whatsoever caused to any person or property
occurring during the term of the License or as the result of ESI's exercise of the

rights granted to it pursuant to the License.

ESTI covenants and agrees, throughout the term of this License, without cost to the
Port Authority to take good care of the Licensed Premises and related
improvements, including sidewalks, curbs, access routes and or parking areas
designated for Licensees use and to keep the same in good order and safe

operating condition at all times.

On the expiration or termination of this License, ESI shall surrender to PDA-DPH
the Storage Area and Scale House, including any improvements thereon free of all
storage materials, residue or debris, in good order, condition and repair,
reasonable wear and tear excepted. ESI's obligations with respect to this
provision shall survive the expiration or termination of the License.

PDA and ESI shall inspect and record the condition of the Licensed Premises
prior to the Term Commencement Date and within five business days of the
termination or expiration of the License to identify damage and required
maintenance, repair or replacements to the Licensed Premises and or the DPH

Common Areas, as a result of the use by ESI.

ESI's use of the Licensed Premises shall be orderly and efficient and shall not
cause any disruptions to other Port Authority activities. ESI shall not cause or
maintain any nuisance on the Licensed Premises. ESI warrants that prior to



Mr. Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source Inc.

May 9, 2017

Page 7

Security or
Guaranty:

engaging in any permitted use, it will hold all certificates, permits, license or other
entitlements required by federal, state or local laws in order to allow ESI to
conduct the permitted uses hereunder, and that the same are and will be kept
current and complete. In its use and occupation of the Licensed Premises and the
conduct of its business thereon, ESI, at its sole cost and expense, shall promptly
comply will all present and future laws, ordinance, orders, rules, regulations and
requirements, to the extent in each of the foregoing cases that such are applicable

and have the force of law.

Use of the PDA-DPH property shall be subject to the supervision of PDA-DPH
staff and PDA-DPH reserves the right to alter, limit or terminate ESI’s operations
if the same are reasonably determined by PDA-DPH to pose a safety hazard, an
environmental hazard or a reasonable risk of damage to the PDA-DPH property.

The Parties agree that PDA-DPH will require adequate security for ESID’s
obligation for payment and performance under the License to include the
Minimum Annual Guaranteed Revenue of $450,000, ESI’s obligation(s) to
remove stored materials from the Licensed Premises and to remedy any damages

to the Licensed Premises.

This letter does not constitute a reservation of the Licensed Premises, an option to Lease and/or
License of the Premises, or an offer Lease and/or License the premises and no legal obligation
shall arise with respect to the Premises or Lease or License thereof until a License and Operating

Agreement is executed by the Parties, following requisite approval as stated above.

If the summary terms and conditions are acceptable to you, it is our hope that you will be in a
position to advise us of your commitment to the Port Authority by executing this original and the
enclosed copy in space provided and returning the original to me. If you have any questions,

please call me directly.

Sincerely,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director



Mr. Frederick Lange, President
Electro Source Inc.

May 9, 2017

Page 8

I have read the foregoing and it correctly states the terms upon which we will proceed to
negotiate and execute a mutually acceptable License and Operating Agreement subject to the
approval of the PDA Board of Directors and any other governmental approvals that may be

required.

Electro Source, Inc.

By

duly authorized

P:\PortAuthority\Electro Source Inc\LOI Draft002.doc



Attachment A

Plan of Licensed Premises



Attachment B

Terminal Charges



-

PE A SE
. 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Bohenko:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to complete negotiations with Albany Safran Composites,
LLC of Rochester, New Hampshire, and to execute an Agreement for the use
of a portion of Foreign Trade Zone No. 81 on terms and conditions
substantially similar to those set forth in the draft Agreement, attached
hereto, subject to final approval by the US Department of Commerce Foreign
Trade Zones Board; and in accordance with the Memorandum of Geno J.
Marconi, Division Director, dated May 10, 2017, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2017\DPH Agreement 0517.docx

NN 7 A v N v Al T W E DR E



555 Market Street, Suite 1 Porlsmouth, NH 03801

INTERNATIONAL
PORTS AND HARBORS

Date: May 10, 2017

To: PDA Board of Directors

From: Geno Marconi, Port Director /%W
Subject: Foreign-Trade Zone #81 Subzone Application

Albany Safran Composites LLC, Rochester, NH

Albany Safran Composites LLC (“ASC LLC”) has submitted to the U.S. Department of Commerce Foreign-
Trade Zones Board, an application to establish their facility located at 85 innovation Drive, Rochester,
NH as a Foreign-Trade Subzone to operate under the Grant of Authority issued to the New Hampshire
Port Authority in 1983. A copy of that Grant of Authority and application is attached.

With the merger of the New Hampshire Port Authority with the Pease Development Authority (PDA),
the PDA became the GRANTEE of Foreign-Trade Zone #81 (FTZ #81) in accordance with RSA 12-G. The
PDA requires all FTZ #81, Users and Operators to enter into an agreement with the PDA setting forth the
terms and conditions to conduct FTZ activities under the PDA Grant pf Authority. A draft agreement for

“ASC LLC” is attached.

Foreign-Trade Zones are areas, designated by the U.S. Department of Commerce Foreign-Trade Zones
Board (FTZ Board) and under the supervision of U.S. Customs and Border Protection (USCBP). For the
purpose of assessment and collection of Customs Duties, merchandise in a Foreign-Trade Zone is
considered to be outside the commerce of the United States and therefore Customs Duties are not
payable while that merchandise is inside a designated FTZ. This benefit provides financial incentive to
companies to be competitive in the international market thereby creating jobs and stimulating the

economy here in New Hampshire.

The Division of Ports and Harbors recommends that the Pease Development Authority Board of
Directors authorize the Executive Director to enter into this agreement with Albany Safran LLC upon
final approval by the U. S. Department of Commerce Foreign-Trade Zones Board for Albany Safran LLC to
establish their facility at 85 Innovation Drive, Rochester, NH, as a Foreign-Trade Subzone,

(MY TAKING YOU THERE



AGREEMENT

This agreement, by and between the Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and
Harbors, an agency of the State of New Hampshire (“Zone Grantee”) and sponsor of foreign trade
zone services in the State of New Hampshire with an address of 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, NH
03801, and Albany Safran Composites, LLC of 85 Innovation Drive, Rochester, NH 03867
(“Subzone Operator™), is intended to create a special purpose use arrangement within an approved
Foreign Trade Zone granted to the State of New Hampshire in accordance with 19 U.S.C. 8la et
seq. and the regulations of the Federal Trade Zone Board and U.S. Customs.

1. AUTHORITY GRANTED

1.1 Authority Granted. Upon the effective date of this Agreement, and for the term
specified below, including any extensions thereof, the Zone Grantee authorizes the Subzone
Operator to use the Subzone existing in Rochester, New Hampshire in accordance with the use
proposal approved by Foreign Trade Zone board Order No. ____, APPLICATION OF THE PEASE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS, ,20__. The

Foreign Trade Zone board Order of ,20 (¢ , 20 Order”) is attached as
Exhibit “A’ hereto. The physical dimensions of the Subzone are further set forth on the site
map and description attached as Exhibit “B” hereto, and are hereafter referred to as the “Premises.”

1.2 Acceptance and Representations by Subzone Operator. The Subzone Operator assumes
complete and sole responsibility for using and managing the Premises in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this agreement, and all applicable laws and regulations administered by the
Foreign Trade Zone Board and the U.S. Bureau of Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”),
including, but not limited to 15 C.F.R. Part 400, 19 C.F.R. 146, and the laws and regulations
administered by the CBP. The Subzone Operator represents that it has obtained the concurrence of
the applicable District Director of the CBP to operate in the Subzone, as required by 15 C.F.R.
400.27(f), and that it owns the Premises described in Exhibit “B”, and all building and equipment
located thereon, or that it leases said Premises, buildings and equipment from third parties

independent of the Zone Grantee.

1.3 Not to Affect Property Rights. This Agreement describes the parties’ understanding

regarding their roles in the Foreign Trade Zone activities approved by the ,20__ Order,
and shall not create a property interest in the Premises on and within which the approved activities
shall occur in the Subzone, or diminish or affect the Subzone Opetator’s property interest in said

Premises,

2. STANDARDS OF OPERATION

2.1 Operational and Management Procedures. The Subzone Operator shall establish written
standards governing the use and management of the Premises which conform to all Foreign Trade
Zone Board and CBP requirements, and shall enforce conformance to these written standards on the

part of all persons, firms and corporations admitted to the Premises.




2.2 Rights of Entry. Authorized representatives of the Zone Grantee, the CBP, and other
United States Officials charged with enforcement of the customs and Foreign Trade Zone laws,
shall have the right to enter the Premises at any time during normal business hours for the purpose
of inspecting and examining the same, conferring with the Subzone Operator, its agents, invitees,
and employees, inspecting and checking operations, supplies, equipment, merchandise, books and
records, and generally determining whether the business is being conducted in accordance with
applicable law and with this Agreement. All such entries shall be in accordance with the
established security procedures of the Subzone Operator, and shall be subject to the provisions of
paragraph 4 of this Agreement. Where possible, advance notice is to be provided by the Zone

Grantee prior to any such entry.
2.3 Foreign Trade Zone, CBP Forms. In order to expedite shipments, the Zone Grantee shall
appoint one or more employee(s) of the Subzone operator (specifically designed by the Subzone

Operator) as its true and lawful attorney(s) in fact, who shall be authorized to act on behalf of the
Subzone Grantee for the sole purpose of executing CBP Forms 214 and 215, or their equivalent, in

the name of the Zone Grantee,

3. RECORD KEEPING

3.1 During the term of this agreement and any extension thereof, the Subzone Operator
agrees to prepare and to submit to the Zone Grantee an annual report of its foreign trade zone
operations which contains all data required by the Foreign Trade Zone Board, including narrative
statements and photographs. The Subzone Operator shall submit this report to the Zone
Grantee within 90 days from the end of its reporting vear, which currently expires on,
[date to be inserted] annually or 30 days prior to the required filing deadline as set by the
Foreign Trade Zone Board. All such reports shall be signed by an appropriate official of the
Subzone Operator who shall certify to the accuracy of the records for the specified accounting

period covered therein.

3.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph 8 of this Agreement, should either party
terminate this Agreement before the conclusion of the Agreement or any extension thereof, the
Subzone Operator shall provide the reports referenced in paragraph 3.1 to the Zone Grantee within
90 days from the date of termination. In addition, the Subzone Operator shall retain within the State
of New Hampshire the data and records referenced in Paragraph 3 for a period of five (5) years
from the date of termination. Such data and records shall be subject to the rights of access and

inspection set forth in paragraph 2.2 of this Agreement.

4. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

4.1 Any annual reports required to be made under paragraph 3.1, and any other related
systems developed by the Subzone Operator for its Foreign Trade Zone operations, shall be the sole
property of the Subzone Operator. The Zone Grantee shall not disclose such property, or other
details of business operations of the Subzone Operator, to any-other entity or person, except to the

extent required by this Agreement or by federal, state or local law.



5. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

5.1 CBP Service Fees. The Subzone Operator shall be responsible for promptly and fully
paying all fees assessed by the CBP for inspection and other services rendered concerning the
Premises. These fees include, but are not limited to, an annual fee covering routine inspections
during normal working hours, and fees and overtime charges for special inspections or other
services performed outside normal working hours, including inspections requested by the Zone
Grantee. The Subzone Operator shall be billed directly for all CBP fees and charges, and the Zone

Grantee shall have no responsibility for the payment of any such item.

5.2 CBP Bond. The Subzone Operator shall pay the full cost of any CBP Bond required by
the CBP for operations of said Zone by the Subzone Operator. Such bond shall be paid before the
effective date of this Agreement, and shall not be allowed to lapse during the terms of this

Agreement or any extension thereof.

5.3 Annual Fee to Zone Grantee. The Zone Operator shall pay the Zone Grantee an annual
fee on or before the anniversary date of the Agreement, for the privilege of operating under zone
procedures. This fee shall be a nonproratable $5,000.00 per year unless modified by the parties by

executing an amendment to this Agreement,

6. INDEMNIFICATION

6.1 The Subzone Operator shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless, the Zone Grantee
from and against any and all loss, damage, liability, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs,
whether insured or not, arising out of or incident to Subzone Operator’s Foreign Trade Zone
operations hereunder, except where such loss, damage or liability is attributable, in whole or in part,
to the gross negligence or fraud of the Zone Grantee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State of
New Hampshire, which immunity is hereby reserved to the Zone Grantee. This paragraph shall

survive the termination of this Agreement.
RECOGNITION OF SUCCESSOR

6.2. Assignment or Transfer Prohibited. The parties intend that the described Premises shall
be operated as a Foreign Trade Zone site by the existing Subzone Operator for a period concutrent

with the terms of this Agreement, and that no transfer or assignment of rights under this Agreement
shall occur without the prior written approval of the Zone Grantee evidenced by an amendment to
this Agreement. Said approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, but shall in no event be given
unless the successor agrees in writing to be bound to all the terms and conditions contained in this

Agreement.

6.3 Obligation to Notify Zone Grantee. The Subzone Operator shall promptly notify the
Zone Grantee in writing of any proposal to change the name of the Zone Grantee or any change in
the persons who own and control the Zone Grantee, or any other action by the Subzone Operator
which could substantially change the ownership of the Subzone Operator or the nature of the
business conducted on the Premises. This notice shall include the date of the proposed change, a
thorough description of the proposed change, and the names and address of each person acquiring

or disposing of a substantial ownership interest or right to control.




6.4 Ownership and Control of Subzone Operator. The persons who now own a five percent
or greater interest in the Subzone Operator, the present officers and directors of the Subzone
Operator, and the owners, officers and directors of any person who owns or controls the Zone

Operator are listed in Exhibit “C” hereto. See Attached.

7. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION

7.1 Termination by the Subzone Operator. The Subzone Operator shall have the right, at
any time, upon sixty (60) days prior written notice, to terminate this Agreement and all rights and

obligations hereunder.

7.2 Termination by Zone Grantee. The Zone Grantee may terminate this Agreement for
good cause which shall mean any material breach of this Agreement by the Subzone Operator.

7.3 Notice and Cure of Default. The Zone Grantee shall give written notice of default by
certified mail to the Subzone Operator stating the specific material breach committed. The Subzone
Operator shall have sixty (60) days from the receipt of such notice to cure said default, or, if the
default is one which by its nature cannot be reasonably cured within sixty (60) days, the Subzone
Operator shall have a reasonable time in which to cure the default. Such reasonable time period
shall not be greater than the times required by statutes, laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, or
order of the CBP. If the default is not cured within the periods herein described, the Zone Grantee

shall provide written notice of termination.

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Subzone Operator is an independent contractor in all respects and not an agent or
representative of the Zone Grantee of the State of New Hampshire. More specifically, the Zone
Grantee and the Subzone Operator are not, and shall not be considered to be, joint ventures, partners
or agents of each other, and neither shall have the power to bind or oblige the other, except as may
be specifically set forth in this Agreement. The Zone Grantee and the Subzone Operator shall not
represent or hold out to anyone that they are agents of one another or have any authority to act on

behalf of one another.

9. TERM AND RENEWAL

Unless terminated earlier pursuant to paragraph 8 above, this agreement shall remain in
effect until
10. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on the
date this Agreement is executed by the representative of the Zone Grantee indicated below.



11. NOTICES

11.1 Notice to Zone Grantee, All notices to the Zone Grantee shall be sent by certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the Zone Grantee at its office at the Pease Development
Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors, 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801,
or at such other address as the Zone Grantee hereafter designates in writing.

11.2 Notice to Subzone Operator. All notices to the Subzone Operator shall be sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, address to:

Albany Safran Composites, LLC
85 Innovation Drive
Rochester, NH 03867

Attention:

or to such address within the State of New Hampshire as the Subzone Operator hereafter designates
in writing. No other notice shall be required to satisfy the notice requirements of this Agreement,

but the Zone Grantee shall also send a courtesy copy of all notices to the Subzone Operator to:

12. MISCELLANEOUS

12.1 Compliance with Laws. In activities under this Agreement, the Subzone Operator
shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, or local authorities

which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Subzone Operator.

12.2 No Third Party Beneficiaries. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third
party and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.

12.3 Construction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the Foreign Trade Zones Act of 1934 as amended, the regulations promulgated thereunder, and the

laws of the State of New Hampshire.

12.4 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only by an
instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto.

13. INSURANCE

The Subzone Operator further agrees to place with its insurance company and keep in effect
during the term of this Agreement, insurance for the benefit of the Zone Grantee (as well as for the
benefit of the Subzone Operator, including an obligation of the insurer to defend Zone Grantee in
any action covered by said insurance), on all activities at said Foreign Zone sife in an amount not
less than $2,000,000.00 for bodily injury to one person, and property damage on a per occurrence
basis. Zone Grantee and the State of New Hampshire shall be named as additional insureds on such



policies of insurance. The Subzone Operator will during the term hereof file with the Zone Grantee

certificates of such insurance. The Subzone Operator agrees to keep such insurance in effect
continuously during the term hereof and such certificates shall provide that the coverage shall not be

canceled without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Zone Grantee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals

Albany Safran Composites, LLC
Subzone Operator

Dated: By:

On Behalf of the Pease Development
Authority Division of Ports and Harbors,

Zone Grantee

Dated; By:




[Exhibits “A” and “B” to be completed]

EXHIBIT C

Pursuant to paragraph 6.4 of the Agreement - Qwnership and control of Subzone Operator - listed
below are (1) the persons [institutions] who own a five percent or greater interest in the Subzone
Operator as disclosed in the Proxy Statement delivered to Shareholders on or

about ; and (2) the present officers and directors of the Subzone Operator.

(1) As of the following persons are believed by to be the

beneficial owners of more than 5% of only class of voting securities, This
information is received by Millipore Corporation from the beneficial owners listed below as well as

Schedule 13G reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Amount and nature
Name and address of beneficial Percent

of beneficial owner ownership of class




ROCKEFELLER
GROUP

April 4,2017

Mr. Andrew McGilvray

Executive Secretary

Foreign-Trade Zones Board

U.S. Department of Commerce

1401 Constitution Ave., NW, Room 21013

Washington, DC 20230

Re:  Production Notification for ASC LLC
Foreign-Trade Zone (“FTZ”) #81 (subzone pending)

Dear Mr. McGilvray:

On behalf of Albany Safran Composites LLC (“ASC LLC”), we hereby submit this
Production Notification (“notification”) for the company’s manufacturing plant located at
85 Innovation Drive, Rochester, Strafford County, NH 03867. A subzone application will

be submitted separately.

ASC LLC manufactures composite aerospace parts including fan blades, fan cases and
spacers. The parts are currently manufactured for sale fo a related entity, Safran Aeros?pace
Composites LLC, for use in commercial aircraft. The only foreign-status raw material to

be used in the production process is resin. Activities at the proposed subzone will include
receipt, storage, testing, marking, labeling, manufacture/production and shipment of

aerospace parts,

This notification is submitted in accordance with 15 CFR §§400.14(a), 400.22 and 400.37,
as well as the Foreign-Trade Zones Board’s guidelines located at

http://ia.ita.doc.gov/ftzpage/formats/mfg-application.html.

We respectfully request your timely review and approval of this notification. Thank you
for your consideration.

Sincerely,
7t Yoos

= ,qi beeea) L-"u' asid
Rebecca Williams
Managing Director

Enclosure

cc:  Mr. John Macisso, Albany Safran Composites LLC
Mr. Curtis Daigle, U.S. Customs & Border Protection, Manchester Airport, NH

Mr. Geno J. Marconi, Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbor

Rockefeller Group Foreign Trade Zone Services R
2444 Solomens Island Road Suite 200, Annapolis MD 21401 / Tel: 410-897-4858 / Fax: 410-857-9032



Production Notification

. ‘ Engineered Composites

Albany Safran Composites LL.C

FTZ #81




Company and FTZ Site(s)

1. State a) the FTZ user (company for whose benefit the activity would be conducted) and b) the
zone/subzone locations (including site numbers) at which the activity would be conducted.,

Albany Safran Composites LLC
FTZ #81 (pending subzone)

85 Innovation Drive

Rochester, NH 03867

Proposed Activity

2. Provide a short summary (generally no more than a few paragraphs) of the activity that you
propose to conduct under FTZ procedures.

Albany Safran Composites LLC manufactures composite aerospace parts including fan
blades, fan cases and spacers. The parts are currently manufactured for sale to a related
entity, Safran Aerospace Composites LLC, for use in commercial aircraft. The only foreign-
status raw material to be used in the production process is resin. Activities at the proposed
subzone will include receipt, storage, testing, marking, labeling, manufacture/production, and

shipment of aerospace parts.

Products and Components

3. Are any of the listed foreign-status component/inputs subject fo a trade-related measure or
proceeding (such as an AD/CVD order or proceeding, suspension of liquidation under AD/CVD
procedures, or Section 201/204/337/421 investigations)? If yes, explain,

The foreign-status input is not subject to trade-related measures or proceedings such as
ADICVD orders or proceedings, suspension of liquidation under AD/CVD procedures, or

Section 201/204/337/421 investigations.

4. Using the tables that follow (inserting additional rows, as needed), list the finished products
and foreign-status components/inputs that you propose for production under FTZ procedures.

Finished Products: , _ _
- PhysicalDescription:(not HTSUS description) [~ HISUS No: " ' |-\ Duity Rate:. ;-
Fan Blades 8411.91 Free
Fan Cases 8411.91 Free
Spacers 8411.91 Free
Foreign-Status Components: e
" “Physical Description.(not HTSUS deseription) | . < HTSUSNo.~.' -*7] . “DutyRate: ...
Epoxide Resins 3907.30 6.1%




